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(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share data) 
Year Ended December 31  

Sales                                                           

Operating income                                       

Interest expense, net of interest income

Income from continuing operations

Net income

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per share

Adjusted EBITDA2

Net capital expenditures3

Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital

Property, plant, and equipment, net

Total assets

Total debt

Net debt (total debt less cash and cash equivalents)                     

Stockholders' equity (deficit)

Sales order backlog

Shares outstanding (in thousands)

Operating income as a percentage of sales

Net capital expenditures as a percentage of sales

Ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA

Approximate number of employees, continuing operations

$486.7

78.8

31.7

31.0

42.9

0.64

0.89

99.2

17.1

57.6

128.6

89.7

411.9

297.0

239.4

(54.1)

$63.3

47,292

16.2%

3.5%

2.4

3,050

$565.6

84.4

25.7

36.9

38.6

0.77

0.80

111.1

22.5

58.3

128.0

119.7

499.7

325.5

267.2

(43.5)

$98.9

47,614

14.9%

4.0%

2.4

3,450

$487.4

54.5

24.5

21.9

23.0

0.46

0.48

84.3

13.4

55.1

149.5

114.5

483.6

285.9

230.8

(6.7)

$78.1

47,759

11.2%

2.8%

2.7

3,000

$611.5

85.6

25.5

41.4

47.2

0.85

0.97

120.1

19.8

80.7

187.5

108.3

580.9

350.0

269.3

42.4

$133.7

48,236

14.0%

3.2%

2.2

3,600

$831.6

98.0

18.6

49.7

49.7

1.01

1.01

146.9

39.4

62.1

237.0

155.9

884.6

530.4

468.2

69.5

$211.3

48,815

11.8%

4.7%

3.2

4,500

$975.5

114.8

22.0

58.2

58.2

1.18

1.18

168.7

41.6

n/m*

n/m

n/m

n/m

n/m

n/m

n/m

n/m

n/m

11.8%

4.3%

2.8

n/m

1  Pro forma to include full year 2011 of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO.
2 Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and certain items that are expected to be non-recurring or unusual in   
 nature, totaling $0.5 million, $0.0 million, $7.3 million, $5.5 million, $5.4 million, and $5.4 million in 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, actual 2011, and pro forma 2011, respectively.
3  Purchases of property, plant, and equipment, net of proceeds from sale of assets.
*  Not meaningfully different from actual amount.

2007 2008 2009 2010
Actual

2011 2011

ADJUSTED EBITDA2SALES1 NET DEBT

2008 2009 2010 2011

$2
67

$2
31 $2

69

$4
68

2007

$2
39

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$9
9 $1

11

$8
4

$1
20

$1
69

$4
87

$4
87

$6
12

$9
75

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$5
66

Pro 
Forma1
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We are pleased to have the opportunity to 
describe the state of your Company as of the 
beginning of 2012.

2011 | A Transformational Year for Our Company.

2011 was an eventful year. After growing in excess of 15% 
during 2010, our historical Forestry, Lawn, and Garden 
(“FLAG”) business again experienced more than 10% growth 
during 2011. Despite the global economic uncertainty, demand 
in established markets such as North America and Europe 
grew at long-term historical rates of 4 - 7%, and we saw 
significant growth in developing markets such as Africa, Asia, 
and Latin America. We expect these growth trends to continue 
over the next several years, and we believe that global industry 
growth rates will be approximately 5 - 7% in 2012.

We continued executing on our strategic initiatives in 2011, 
including acquisitions. Primarily as a result of acquisitions 
made in 2011, we firmly established a Farm, Ranch, and 
Agriculture (“FRAG”) business with considerable scale and 
nearly $300 million pro forma of revenue. We promoted Paul 
Valas, previously President of our SpeeCo business, to lead 
this new division. We built this business through our core 
SpeeCo acquisition in 2010 and our Woods/TISCO and PBL 
acquisitions in 2011. The integration of these businesses  
is ongoing, and we are focused on maximizing the value of  
these acquisitions.

LETTER to OUR OWNERS
FROM JOSH COLLINS, DAVID WILLMOTT, 
AND THE BLOUNT SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

Josh Collins, Chairman & CEO (right)
David Willmott, President & COO (left)



We made extensive progress on upgrading our supply 
chain capabilities, including expanding manufacturing 
capacity, in 2011. We opened a new Kansas City distribution 
center, initiated the expansion of our Fuzhou, China 
manufacturing facility, selected a site for an Eastern 
European saw chain manufacturing facility, and, in early 
2012, opened a new sourcing office in China. These 
supply chain initiatives will allow us to better service our 
customers through increased product offerings, expanded 
capacity, regional manufacturing, and lower costs.

Our continuous improvement initiative gained considerable 
momentum in 2011, primarily in the historical FLAG 
business. We have seen efficiency improvements in our 
FLAG operations through this initiative, and we have 
trained more than 1,100 employees globally in continuous 
improvement through 140 week-long events.

We launched several new products in 2011, including 
the Oregon® PowerNowTM cordless electric chain saw, 
our first product in the PowerNow cordless electric tool 
family, and the Oregon log splitter. We have received 
an enthusiastic reception for the Oregon PowerNow 
chain saw from distributors and dealers in our FLAG 
and FRAG divisions, and we have built considerable 
momentum for 2012. As contemplated in the SpeeCo 
acquisition, we launched our new Oregon log splitter in 
North America. The product was well received by our 
FLAG distributors and dealers, and we will expand the 
product line and distribution in the years to come.

Since laying out our strategic initiatives in early 2010, we 
have acquired four businesses that fit well within our core 
competencies of manufacturing, global distribution, and 
product development. We acquired KOX in March of 2011. 
KOX, a Blount customer for over 30 years, is a direct to 
customer distributor of forestry-related replacement parts 
and accessories, primarily serving professional loggers 
and consumers in Europe. KOX allows us to directly interact 
with our end-users, increases our distribution capabilities, 
and expands our geographic presence in Europe.

We acquired PBL in August of 2011. PBL is a leading 
manufacturer of lawnmower blades and agricultural 
cutting parts based in Civray, France and Querétaro, 
Mexico. Our acquisition of PBL provides additional 
manufacturing technology and capacity for our 
existing FLAG lawnmower blade business and an 
agricultural cutting parts product line for our FRAG 

business. Additionally, the acquisition establishes a 
presence in the European agricultural parts market. 

Finally, we acquired Woods/TISCO in September of 
2011. Woods manufactures and markets agriculture and 
construction attachments and related replacement parts, 
and TISCO markets a broad selection of replacement parts 
for tractors and implements. Woods/TISCO is based in the 
United States and sells primarily to the North American 
market. The acquisition significantly increases the scale of 
our farm, ranch, and agriculture business. Woods/TISCO has 
excellent brands, a strong market position, and experienced 
managers. Combined with our global distribution and supply 
chain network, this acquisition will provide many sales and 
efficiency opportunities within FRAG.  

2012 | Focus and Priorities. 

Our key areas of focus in 2012 are integrating our 
acquisitions, deploying our continuous improvement 
program globally, enhancing new product development 
efforts, and continuing the development of our people  
and culture.

We have made progress towards integrating SpeeCo,  
KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO into the Blount organization. 
We have completed the move of the SpeeCo distribution 
and assembly operations to our new Kansas City 
distribution center and are focused on a successful 
second season of our Oregon branded log splitter 
line. We intend to enhance our competitiveness and 
increase our market share in the lawn and garden 
and the farm, ranch, and agriculture markets using 
PBL’s manufacturing capabilities and customer 
relationships. We will continue to focus on leveraging 
Blount’s product development, supply chain, and global 
distribution capabilities for Woods/TISCO products.

We are in the process of deploying our continuous 
improvement program globally. In 2012, we are 
implementing the program in Woods/TISCO’s 
manufacturing and distribution, our European distribution, 
and concrete cutting and finishing manufacturing. Our 
continuous improvement program will help us achieve  
and sustain the efficiency improvements required to 
maintain and increase our competitiveness. 

In early 2012, we reorganized our new product development 
team into a dedicated Research and Development group 
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focused on creating innovative products that satisfy unmet 
customer needs. Our Research and Development group will 
drive our efforts to increase our pipeline of new products 
across our end-market offerings.

We are focused on developing our team. In 2010, 
we introduced our P-4 business beliefs, focused 
on our People, Products, Performance, and Profits. 
To build on this effort and complement Blount’s 
rich history of growing and retaining its people, we 
initiated the Blount Business Leadership Training 
program (“BLT2”) in 2011 to promote our business 
values, create cross-company and cross-functional 

relationships in our expanding global footprint and new 
division structure, and cultivate leadership internally. We are 
currently implementing the program with 25 of our emerging 
high-impact leaders from across the Company. We will deploy 
additional development programs in 2012, each reinforcing 
our performance-oriented culture of continuous improvement.

Long-Term Vision and Initiatives for Achievement. 

Our 2010 five-year plan had a goal of doubling revenue 
and profitability by 2014. Our 2011 sales and adjusted 
EBITDA levels are two to three years ahead of the plan 
we outlined due to strong organic growth and better 
than expected acquisition opportunities. Given our 2011 
performance, we are in the process of updating those goals.

In the next five years, our business will look a lot like 
it does today. We will continue to focus on designing, 
manufacturing, and marketing replacement parts and 
equipment for professionals and consumers in select 
end markets, including forestry, lawn, and garden; farm, 
ranch, and agriculture; and concrete cutting and finishing. 
We intend to expand in each of these business segments 
and to grow profitably, both organically and through 
acquisition. We may ultimately expand into additional end 
markets, but we believe that, for now, there is plenty of 
runway for profitable growth in our existing businesses.

We have continued to evolve operationally and organizationally 
as we optimize our business processes in order to improve 
service and value for our customers. We are moving to a 
shared services model to facilitate the global growth of our 
business. Our marketing operations, with in-house product 
design and engineering capabilities, will continue to be 
organized around each of our end-market segments. 
Our Research and Development group will support innovative 
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product development as a shared service for each of our end 
markets. Our sales force will be organized around channel 
and geography with unique sales channels expected for 
each end-market offering. Our supply chain will migrate 
toward a shared service, where appropriate, and will plan, 
buy, make, and deliver products across all end-market 
offerings. We will implement continuous improvement 
globally to ensure an efficient, lean, and competitive 
operation. Finally, our administrative functions will service 
all of our commercial efforts on a centralized basis.

We will continue to invest in our business to better serve 
our customers. Since early 2010, we have used our free 
cash flow to pay down debt, make acquisitions, expand 
manufacturing capacity, establish a sourcing office in 
China, open a new U.S. distribution facility, launch our 
Oregon PowerNow chain saw and Oregon log splitter, and 
form focused supply chain and research and development 
shared services. In the near- and medium-term, we 
intend to use our free cash flow to pay down debt and 
invest in production capacity, including a new European 
manufacturing facility and the completion of our China 
facility expansion. In the long term, we expect to maintain a 
healthy balance sheet and make investments that support 
our long-term vision and initiatives and create lasting value.

Our business will continue to be focused on replacement 
parts because of their attractive characteristics and because 
they leverage our core competencies. Additionally, we 
intend to continue selling whole goods for appropriate end 

markets and expanding these offerings opportunistically. 
We believe that the successful launch of our Oregon 
PowerNow chain saw and Oregon log splitter are 
emblematic of the success we can have in the whole 
goods markets by leveraging the distribution and customer 
relationships built through our replacement parts offering.

Conclusion. 
 
We are excited about the opportunities ahead of us and 
the direction of the Company. We achieved significant 
growth in 2011, and we are focused on the further 
development of our performance-oriented culture of 
continuous improvement. Our strategy is sound, and we 
are well positioned to take advantage of the attractive 
dynamics of our end markets. Furthermore, our team 
is strong, and we have initiatives in place to develop 
the capabilities necessary for long-term success. 

As we integrate our businesses and implement our 
initiatives, we will, from time to time, have short-term 
disruptions. We ask that you be challenging but patient. 
We will have good quarters and quarters where we miss 
earnings estimates, but we are committed to being good 
stewards of your investment and determined to take 
advantage of the long-term value creation opportunities  
in front of your Company. 

Josh Collins, David Willmott,  
and the Blount Senior Leadership Team

1 Pro forma sales includes full year of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO.

Forestry 59% 

Lawn & Garden 11%

Farm, Ranch & Agriculture 28%

Concrete Cutting & Finishing 2%

2011 PRO FORMA SALES1 
BY END MARKET

North America 47% 

Europe & Russia 31%

Asia Pacific 15%

Rest of the World 7%

2011 PRO FORMA SALES1  
BY REGION 
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COMPANY OVERVIEW 

Blount is a global manufacturer and marketer 
of replacement parts, equipment, and 
accessories for the forestry, lawn, and garden; 
farm, ranch, and agriculture; and concrete 
cutting and finishing markets, and is the market 
leader in manufacturing saw chain and guide 
bars for chain saws. We sell our products in 
more than 115 countries around the world. 

Our forestry, lawn, and garden offering includes saw 
chain, bars, sprockets, lawnmower and edger blades, and 
a range of outdoor replacement parts and accessories 
for professionals, consumers, and original equipment 
manufacturers. We offer these products under the  
brand names Oregon®, Carlton®, KOX, and PBL. 

Our farm, ranch, and agriculture offering includes 
attachments, whole goods, and a wide range of 
aftermarket replacement parts for farmers and rural 
homeowners. We offer these products under the brand 
names Woods®, SpeeCo®, and TISCO®, among others.  

Our concrete cutting and finishing offering includes diamond 
cutting chain and concrete-cutting chain saws for the 
construction and utility industries. We offer these products 
under the ICS® and other brands.



OUR CORPORATE MISSION: 
Create long-term value for our shareholders through profitable growth and a performance-oriented culture of 
continuous improvement as a leader in our end markets.

OUR STRATEGY: 
Our corporate financial goal is to increase profitability by 2014 to $180 million of EBITDA using only cash flow 
generated from operations. Our strategic growth categories for achieving that goal are to strengthen share within  
our existing markets, develop new products in existing and adjacent markets, acquire accretive companies with 
a tight strategic fit, and reduce costs.

BUSINESS BELIEFS: 
Defined as P-4, our business beliefs state how we go to work each day. P-4’s message is that we are all about our  
People, creating innovative and quality Products, providing excellence in Performance, and generating sustainable  
and growing Profits.

We design, manufacture, and market replacement parts and equipment for consumers and professionals in  
select global end markets, including forestry, lawn, and garden; farm, ranch, and agriculture; and concrete cutting  
and finishing.

OUR BUSINESS

OUR CORPORATE MISSION, STRATEGY, AND BUSINESS BELIEFS

CORE COMPETENCIES

Product Development: 
We design and engineer cutting and cutting  
related products

Manufacturing: 
We produce high-volume metal parts, particularly 
with cutting edges

Distribution: 
We have a global sales and distribution infrastructure 
to original equipment manufacturers and aftermarket 
dealers via multiple channels

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

MANUFACTURINGDISTRIBUTION

 COMPANY OVERVIEW | BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 8



GLOBAL LOCATIONS & TOP 100 DISTRIBUTORS

9 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. | COMPANY OVERVIEW  

•
•

•

•

•

•• •

•

• •

•

WORLDWIDE SALES & DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

We distribute products through a global  
sales and distribution network that includes 
more than 200 distributors and 30,000 
dealers, over 35 original equipment 
manufacturers, and mass merchants.

Our sales and distribution network serves the global 
forestry, lawn, and garden; farm, ranch, and agriculture; and 
concrete cutting and finishing end markets. The end-user 
base in those markets includes, among others, mechanized 
harvesters, loggers, farmers, arborists, construction crews, 
and consumers such as homeowners and ruralists. 
We believe our distribution network is our most significant 
competitive advantage and the most difficult to replicate. 
 
We distribute our forestry, lawn, and garden products 
through a two-step distribution system, selling to 
distributors that subsequently sell to dealers, and to 
original equipment manufacturers. In select markets, 
we sell direct to dealers, mass merchants, and end users. 
Our farm, ranch, and agriculture products are primarily 
distributed directly to dealers and mass merchants. 
 
NORTH AMERICAN DISTRIBUTION CENTER

In 2011, we built a new North American distribution 
center in Kansas City, Missouri and began migrating 
our distribution from our previous Kansas City, Missouri 
facility. Additionally, we consolidated our log splitter 
assembly operation from Golden, Colorado into the 
new facility. With more than 350,000 square feet of 
storage, the new facility provides us with the foundation 
and capabilities to continue growing our business. 

•

•



•

••
• ••

••

•
• •

• ••
•
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1 Some cities include more than one facility.
2 Some cities include more than one Top Distributor.

GLOBAL LOCATIONS & TOP 100 DISTRIBUTORS
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 Corporate Headquarters 

 Manufacturing, Sourcing, Sales  
 & Distribution Locations1 

 Top 100 Distributors2

•

•

•

•

•
•

•

••• •

•

•

•••



MANUFACTURING & SOURCING

We have the capacity to manufacture  
more than 220 million feet of saw chain,  
15 million guide bars, 15 million lawnmower 
blades, and 100 thousand log splitters  
annually, with plans to add capacity across  
our business globally.

Our global manufacturing and sourcing footprint includes 
nine manufacturing facilities in North America, one in  
South America, one in France, and one in China, providing 
us with manufacturing in close proximity to most of our 
customers. Sourcing offices in North America, China, and 
Europe provide a diverse product offering to meet our many  
end-users’ needs. We anticipate adding a manufacturing 
facility in Eastern Europe and tripling our capacity  
in China in the coming years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continuous Improvement

Nearly two years ago, we formed a 
Continuous Improvement organization 
to drive continual process improvement 
across our entire business. Since its 
inception, our Continuous Improvement 

organization has been focused on implementing lean tools 
to reduce waste and improve efficiency.  

We have made significant progress. We have conducted more 
than 140 Kaizen events and have trained approximately 1,100 
of our team members in Kaizen techniques. By the end of 
2012, we expect that 2,000 of our team members will have 
participated in at least one Kaizen event and hundreds will 
have been through multiple events. We believe our significant 
focus and momentum will further embed Continuous 
Improvement into the Blount culture and drive gains in 
reducing costs and eliminating waste. 

11 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. | COMPANY OVERVIEW  
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development group’s  
recent launches include the Oregon® 
PowerNowTM Cordless Chain Saw,  
PowerSharp®, and PowerGritTM. The group 
has many more products in various stages 
of development, and we look forward to 
continuing to introduce innovative products  
to fill customer needs.

The Research and Development group uses market and 
customer research to conceptualize and design ways to 
satisfy unmet end-user needs across our end markets. 
The Research and Development group consists of 
approximately 30 engineers, technicians, and managers 
focused on developing revolutionary products for our 
end markets. This activity is beyond the scope of the 
Marketing group, which focuses on designing and 
developing evolutionary products within existing product 
families. The Marketing group employs more than 
50 design engineers and marketing specialists 
across the company to design and develop new and 
improved products within existing product families. 

Oregon PowerNow™ Products

The Oregon PowerNow chain saw is the first tool in the 
PowerNow family, and it will soon be complemented by 
other cordless electric outdoor power equipment tools such 
as string trimmers and hedge trimmers – all operated 
by the same high-performance lithium-ion battery.

The high-performance lithium-ion battery used 
in PowerNow products allows them to start in an 
instant, without the need for pull cords, gas and oil 
mixing, or warm-up times. Additionally, the Oregon 
PowerNow chain saw’s built in PowerSharp chain 
sharpening system sharpens the chain on the saw, 
on the job, in seconds, meaning that the chain is 
always ready for whatever job the user has in mind. 

Additionally, the chain saw’s low noise and no 
exhaust make it more pleasant to use. These features 
and more make the Oregon PowerNow chain 
saw ideal for professionals, landscapers, property 
managers, municipalities, and homeowners. 
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FORESTRY PRODUCTS
AN INDUSTRY LEADER IN INNOVATION 
AND PERFORMANCE

We manufacture, market, and distribute saw 
chain, guide bars, sprockets, and other parts 
and accessories for the forestry markets 
globally. Forestry products sales are primarily 
replacement products – at approximately 75% 
worldwide – sold through distributors or direct 
sales to dealers or mass merchant customers. 

With the acquisition of KOX in 2011, a portion of our sales  
in Europe are direct to end users. Our replacement products 
are marketed under the brands Oregon®, Carlton®, and KOX, 
with Oregon comprising the majority of our product offering. 
The balance of products is sold to original equipment 
manufacturers of private-label products.

We sell our forestry products through more than 200 
distributors and mass merchants and to more than 30 
original equipment manufacturers. Our long-standing, 
quality relationships with these customers globally  
offer us an outstanding platform to leverage across our  
business segments. 
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PowerSharp®
 
In 2011, we continued to aggressively market and sell our 
proprietary PowerSharp product, which was launched 
in 2010. PowerSharp offers the ability to sharpen chain 
on the saw, on the job, in seconds, using a sharpening 
attachment. We intend to expand the PowerSharp product 
offering to meet a greater range of user specifications.  
 
 
 

Oregon PowerNow™ Cordless Chain Saw
 
Launched in 2011, the Oregon PowerNow Cordless Chain 
Saw offers end users outstanding performance with 
proprietary features such as an integrated PowerSharp 
saw chain sharpening system. 

In 2011, we had the capacity to produce more than 220 million feet of saw chain and 15 million guide bars through 
our five forestry manufacturing facilities. Additionally, in late 2011, we began the process of adding additional capacity 
in our Fuzhou, China facility, which will further solidify our position as the largest saw chain producer in the world.
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Our lawn and garden offering includes 
lawnmower blades, trimmer lines and 
heads, belts, spindles, small engine 
replacement parts, and a wide variety of 
other parts and accessories for original 
equipment manufacturers and the 
aftermarket replacement channel.

We manufacture, market, and distribute outdoor power 
equipment replacement parts to the lawn and garden 
markets in North America and Europe. Products 
are marketed under the Oregon® and PBL brands, 
as well as private labels for some of our original 
equipment manufacturer customers. Lawn and garden 
product sales are generally split approximately 35% 
manufactured lawnmower and edger blades and 
65% third-party sourced parts and accessories.

Our lawnmower and edger blade manufacturing facility in 
Kansas City, Missouri produces a wide range of products 
for both the OEM and replacement markets. In 2011, Blount 

LAWN & GARDEN PRODUCTS 

WE OFFER A COMPREHENSIVE SELECTION 
OF OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT PARTS
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purchased PBL, a leading manufacturer of lawnmower blades and agricultural cutting parts based in Civray, France and 
Querétaro, Mexico. The acquisition expanded our existing blade manufacturing capabilities for North America and our 
presence in the European lawn & garden and agricultural markets. 

During the year, we added many new products to our lawn and garden offering, including Platinum Gatorline®, 
a premium trimmer line with an armored exterior and flexible co-polymer core that provides greater resistance 
to breaking and welding than our standard trimmer line. Overall, more than 200 products were added in 2011.
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FARM, RANCH &  
AGRICULTURE PRODUCTS 
 
WE OFFER A WIDE ARRAY OF PRODUCTS TO 
MEET CUSTOMERS’ NEEDS

We continued to build our farm, ranch, and 
agriculture offering through the acquisition of 
the Woods Equipment Company (Woods/TISCO) 
in September 2011. Woods/TISCO manufactures 
and markets equipment and replacement parts 
primarily for the agricultural end market.

This acquisition enhanced our North American manufacturing  
and distribution footprint through the addition of three 
manufacturing and five distribution locations. It significantly 
expanded our farm, ranch, and agriculture product offering and 
distribution capabilities through the addition of the well-known 
Woods® and TISCO® brand names and approximately 11,000 
dealers nationwide. Combined with the acquisition of SpeeCo 
in 2010, the increased scale and breadth of our farm, ranch, 
and agriculture division will provide many opportunities to 
leverage our global distribution and supply chain network. 

The investments Blount made in 2011 will ensure our 
farm, ranch, and agriculture offering meets the long-term 
needs of our customers. Implementing SAP for the SpeeCo 
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operating unit, establishing a global sourcing office in 
China, and building a 350,000 square foot distribution 
and assembly facility in Kansas City, Missouri are 
examples of Blount’s commitment to providing outstanding 
service and products to its FLAG and FRAG customers.

SpeeCo
 
SpeeCo designs, assembles, and markets log splitters 
and tractor replacement parts primarily to its retail 
customers in North America. SpeeCo’s products include log 
splitters, diggers, augers, three-point linkage equipment, 
accessories, and OEM custom components.  

In August 2011, we successfully launched a new Oregon® 
branded log splitter, designed and engineered as 
a premium line, through the Blount North America 
distribution network. With the enthusiastic reception 
from dealers, we anticipate strong demand for the 
Oregon units during 2012. 

Woods
 
Woods manufactures, markets, and distributes 
agriculture and construction attachments and related 
replacement parts, and TISCO markets and distributes 
a large selection of replacement parts for tractors and 
implements. Woods/TISCO products are marketed 
under the brand names of Woods, TISCO®, Alitec®, CF®, 
Gannon®, and Wain-Roy® and distributed through an 
extensive dealer network throughout North America.
Woods’ whole goods products include rotary cutters, 
row crop shredders, finish mowers, tractor-mounted 

loaders and backhoes, ground-engaging attachments, 
snow blowers, buckets, thumbs, couplers, and 
hydraulic-powered skid steer attachments.

In 2011, Woods continued to increase sales through new 
product introductions and channel expansion. Woods’ 
sales growth was driven by increased sales gains in core 
products and further penetration in Western Canada. 
We launched five new products in 2011, including snow 
blowers, extreme-condition finish mowers, flex-wing  
turf mowers, roadway grading scrapers, and 30-foot  
row crop shredders. Additionally, we established a 
strategic partnership with tractor manufacturer  
McCormick USA to build and sell products under a new 
brand, “McCormick by Woods”. 

TISCO
 
TISCO replacement parts support the repair and 
maintenance of a wide range of tractors, combines,  
and other farm equipment. With a focus on breadth of 
product and competitive pricing, TISCO offers parts for 
virtually every system on a tractor, including cooling, 
electrical, engines, exhaust, fuel, hitch and linkage, 
hydraulic, and power take-off parts.  

TISCO heightened service to dealers with the introduction 
of electronic statements and invoices and the launch 
of an e-commerce tool that allows end-users to order 
online from their preferred dealer. These improvements 
brought the added benefit of increasing productivity 
while leveraging our investment in technology. 
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CONCRETE CUTTING  
& FINISHING PRODUCTS 

COMMITTED TO INNOVATION AND FOCUSED  
ON CUSTOMER NEEDS

We manufacture and market concrete cutting 
products under the ICS® brand, as well as utility 
pipe cutting systems under the PowerGritTM brand. 

We manufacture and market concrete cutting systems and 
utility pipe cutting systems for the construction and utility 
markets. We leverage our internal chain saw and saw chain 
knowledge with our design and manufacturing expertise 
to provide innovative products that meet specific customer 
demands and market needs.

The product offering of hydraulic and gas chain saws uses 
diamond-segmented saw chain to grind through concrete, 
stone, masonry, and utility pipe such as ductile iron and 
plastic pipe. ICS concrete cutting systems provide deeper 
cuts, square corners without overcutting, and quicker jobs 
than the alternative circular blade of traditional cut-off 
saws. Our PowerGrit utility pipe cutting systems provide a 
safer, time saving alternative to conventional methods for 
making cuts on in-ground pipe. Additionally, our offering 
of replacement saw chain and parts results in a recurring 
revenue stream.

In 2011, we targeted new opportunities in the construction and 
utility markets, driving growth during continued economic 
uncertainty in the market. PowerGrit continued to open new 
doors in the utility market, while dedicated European efforts 
lifted global sales to the construction market. 
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview. Blount International, Inc. (“Blount” or the
“Company”) is a global industrial company. The Company
designs, manufactures, and markets equipment, replace-
ment and component parts, and accessories for pro-
fessionals and consumers in select end-markets under our
proprietary brand names. We also manufacture and market
such items to original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”)
under private label brand names. We specialize in manu-
facturing cutting parts and equipment used in forestry,
lawn and garden; farming, ranching, and agricultural; and
construction applications. We also purchase products
manufactured by other suppliers that are aligned with the
markets we serve and market them, typically under one of
our brands, through our global sales and distribution net-
work. Our products are sold in over 115 countries and
approximately 63% of our 2011 sales were made outside
of the United States of America (“U.S.”). Our Company is
headquartered in Portland, Oregon and we have manu-
facturing operations in the U.S., Brazil, Canada, China,
France, and Mexico. In addition, we operate marketing,
sales, and distribution centers in Asia, Europe, North
America, and South America.

Our Company has undergone significant changes in
recent years as we have disposed of certain business units
and acquired others. On May 2, 2008, we acquired Carlton
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Carlton”), a manu-
facturer of cutting chain for chain saws located near Port-
land, Oregon. On August 10, 2010, we acquired SP
Companies, Inc. and SpeeCo, Inc. (collectively,
“SpeeCo”), a manufacturer and supplier of log splitters,
post-hole diggers, tractor three-point linkage parts and
equipment, and farm, ranch, and agriculture accessories
located in Golden, Colorado. On September 30, 2010, we
sold our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary Gear Products,
Inc. (“Gear Products”), a manufacturer of mechanical
power transmission components for original equipment
manufacturers located in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

On March 1, 2011, through our indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary Blount Netherlands B.V. (“Blount B.V.”), we
acquired KOX GmbH and related companies (collectively
“KOX”), a Germany-based direct-to-customer distributor
of forestry-related replacement parts and accessories,
primarily serving professional loggers and consumers in
Europe. On August 5, 2011, through our indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary Blount Holdings France SAS, we
acquired Finalame SA, which included PBL SAS and
related companies (collectively “PBL”). PBL is a manu-
facturer of lawnmower blades and agricultural cutting
blade component parts based in Civray, France, with a
second manufacturing facility in Queretaro, Mexico. On
September 7, 2011, through our indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary SP Companies, Inc., we acquired GenWoods
HoldCo, LLC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Woods
Equipment Company (collectively “Woods/TISCO”).
Woods/TISCO, with operations primarily in the Midwest-
ern U.S., is a manufacturer and marketer of tractor attach-
ments, implements, and replacement parts, primarily for
the agriculture, ground maintenance, and construction
end markets.

Following the acquisition of Woods/TISCO in 2011, we
reorganized our business into two primary operating
segments. The Forestry, Lawn, and Garden (“FLAG”)
segment, manufactures and markets cutting chain, guide
bars, and drive sprockets for chain saw use, and lawn-
mower and edger blades for outdoor power equipment.
The FLAG segment also purchases replacement parts and
accessories from other manufacturers and markets them,
primarily under our brands, to our FLAG customers
through our global sales and distribution network. The
FLAG segment currently includes the operations of the
Company that have historically served the forestry, lawn,
and garden markets, as well as Carlton, KOX, and a por-
tion of the PBL business.

The Company’s Farm, Ranch, and Agriculture
(“FRAG”) segment manufactures and markets attachments
and implements for tractors in a variety of mowing, cut-
ting, clearing, material handling, landscaping and grounds
maintenance applications, as well as log splitters, post-hole
diggers, self-propelled lawnmowers, attachments for
off-highway construction equipment applications, and
other general purpose tractor attachments. In addition, the
FRAG segment manufactures a variety of attachment cut-
ting blade parts. The FRAG segment also purchases
replacement parts and accessories from other manu-
facturers that we market to our FRAG customers through
our sales and distribution network. The FRAG segment
currently includes the operations of SpeeCo, Woods/
TISCO, and a portion of the PBL business.

The Company also operates a concrete cutting and
finishing equipment business that is reported within the
Corporate and Other category. This business manufactures
and markets diamond cutting chain and assembles and
markets concrete cutting chain saws for the construction
and utility markets.

Forestry, Lawn, and Garden Segment

Forestry Products. These products are sold under the
Oregon®, Carlton®, KOX™, Tiger™, and Windsor®
brands, as well as under private labels for some of our
OEM customers. Manufactured product lines include a
broad range of cutting chain, chain saw guide bars, and
cutting chain drive sprockets used on portable gasoline and
electric chain saws and on mechanical timber harvesting
equipment. We also purchase and market replacement

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 3
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parts and other accessories for the forestry market, includ-
ing small chain saw engine replacement parts, safety
equipment and clothing, lubricants, maintenance tools,
hand tools, and other accessories used in forestry applica-
tions. Beginning in 2011, we also began marketing a line
of cordless electric chain saws under the Oregon®
PowerNow™ brand.

Lawn and Garden Products. These products are sold under
the Oregon® and PBL™ brand names, as well as private
labels for some of our OEM customers. Manufactured
product lines include lawnmower and edger cutting blades
designed to fit a wide variety of machines and cutting
conditions. We also purchase and market various cutting
attachments, replacement parts, and accessories for the
lawn and garden market, such as cutting line for line
trimmers, air filters, spark plugs, lubricants, wheels, belts,
grass bags, maintenance tools, hand tools, and accessories
to service the lawn and garden equipment industry.

Our FLAG products are sold under both our own propri-
etary brands and private labels to OEMs for use on new
chain saws and lawn and garden equipment, and to pro-
fessionals and consumers as replacement parts through
distributors, dealers, direct sales companies, and mass
merchants. During 2011, approximately 21% of the FLAG
segment’s sales were to OEMs, with the remainder sold
into the replacement market.

Industry Overview. Our competitors for FLAG products
include Ariens, Briggs & Stratton, Fisher Barton,
Husqvarna, Jaekel, John Deere, MTD, Northern Tool,
OEM Products, Rotary, Stens, Stihl, and TriLink. In addi-
tion, new and existing competitors in recent years have
expanded capacity or contracted with suppliers in China
and other low-cost manufacturing locations, which has
increased competition and pricing pressure, particularly for
consumer-grade cutting chain and guide bars. We also
supply products or components to some of our competitors
in select limited markets.

Due to the high level of technical expertise and capital
investment required to manufacture cutting chain and
guide bars, we believe that we are able to produce durable,
high quality cutting chain and guide bars more efficiently
than most of our competitors. With the acquisition of PBL,
we also believe we are able to produce consumer grade
lawnmower and edger blades at prices comparable to our
competitors. We also work with our OEM customers to
improve the design and specifications of cutting chain,
guide bars, and lawnmower blades used as original
equipment on their products.

We believe we are the world leader in production vol-
ume of cutting chain for chain saws. Oregon and Carlton
branded cutting chain and related products are used by
professional loggers, farmers, arborists, and homeowners.
We believe we are a leading manufacturer of guide bars

and drive sprockets for chain saws. Our OEM customers
include the majority of the world’s chain saw manu-
facturers and we also produce replacement cutting chain
and guide bars to fit virtually every chain saw currently
sold today. We believe we are a leading supplier of lawn-
mower cutting blades in Europe. Additionally, our lawn-
mower blades are used by many of the world’s leading
power equipment producers, and our Oregon® branded
replacement blades and lawnmower-related parts and
accessories are used by commercial landscape companies
and homeowners.

Weather and natural disasters can influence our FLAG
sales cycle. For example, severe weather patterns and
events, such as hurricanes, tornadoes, and storms, gen-
erally result in greater chain saw use and, therefore, stron-
ger sales of cutting chain and guide bars. Seasonal rainfall
plays a role in demand for our lawnmower blades and
other lawn and garden equipment products. Above-average
rainfall drives greater demand for products in this cat-
egory, while drought conditions tend to reduce demand for
these products. Temperature patterns also drive the
demand for firewood, which in turn drives the demand for
our cutting chain and other forestry products.

Within the FLAG segment the largest volume raw mate-
rial we purchase is cold-rolled strip steel, which we obtain
from multiple intermediate steel processors, but which can
also be obtained from other sources. Changes in the price
of steel can have a significant effect on the manufactured
cost of our products and on the gross margin we earn from
the sale of these products, particularly in the short term.

Our profitability in the FLAG segment is also affected
by changes in currency exchange rates, changes in
economic and political conditions in the various markets in
which we operate, and changes in the regulatory environ-
ment in various jurisdictions. For additional information
regarding the FLAG segment, see Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, and Note 18 of Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements.

Farm, Ranch, and Agriculture Segment

Equipment and Tractor Attachment Products. These products
are sold under the Alitec®, CF®, Gannon®, Oregon®,
PowerPro®, SpeeCo®, WainRoy®, and Woods® brand
names, as well as under private labels for some of our
OEM and retail customers. Product lines include attach-
ments for tractors in a variety of mowing, cutting, clearing,
material handling, landscaping and grounds maintenance
applications, as well as log splitters, post-hole diggers,
self-propelled lawnmowers, snow blowers, attachments for
off-highway construction equipment applications, and
other general purpose tractor attachments.

4 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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OEM and Aftermarket Parts. These products are sold under
the PBL™, SpeeCo®, TISCO®, Tru-Power®, Vintage
Iron®, and WoodsCare™ brand names, as well as under
private labels for some of our OEM customers. The FRAG
segment manufactures a variety of attachment cutting
blade component parts sold to OEM customers for
inclusion in original equipment, and as replacement
parts. The FRAG segment also markets replacement parts
and accessories purchased from other manufacturers,
including tractor linkage, electrical, engine and hydraulic
replacement parts, and other accessories used in the agri-
culture and construction equipment markets.

Industry Overview. Competitors for our equipment and
tractor attachment products include Alamo Group, Cham-
pion, Doosan, Dover, Great Plains, Hope Haven, John
Deere, Koch Industries, MTD, and Swisher. Competitors
for our OEM and aftermarket parts include A&I, Herschel,
Kondex, Rasspe, SMA, and Sparex. In recent years,
suppliers in China and other low-cost manufacturing loca-
tions have increased product availability, particularly for
tractor accessory parts, which has increased competition
and pressure on pricing in North America.

We believe we are a leading supplier of log splitters,
tractor attachments, including rotary cutters and finish
mowers, 3-point linkage parts, implements, and tractor
repair parts in North America. Our products are used by
large commodity and livestock farmers, small farmers,
rural property owners, commercial landscape and yard
care maintenance operators, construction contractors,
and municipalities.

To help us compete in our markets, we have reduced
costs by utilizing global sourcing for key components and
products. In addition, we believe we are an industry leader
in product innovation and design in our product categories.
We also believe our long-standing relationships with key
national retailers in North America have helped us main-
tain or grow our market share.

Weather can influence our FRAG sales cycle. For exam-
ple, seasonal rainfall plays a role in demand for our
agricultural products. Above-average rainfall drives
greater demand for products in this category, while
drought conditions tend to reduce demand for these prod-
ucts. Increases in home heating fuel costs and changes in
temperature patterns can also drive the demand for fire-
wood, which in turn drives the demand for our log split-
ters. Finally, demand for our products is affected by
housing starts, crop prices, and disposable and farm
income levels for our end consumers.

Increases in raw material prices, particularly for steel,
can negatively affect profit margins in our FRAG business.
Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and transportation
costs can also affect our profitability as we source a sig-
nificant amount of our components from China and ship

them to the U.S. for assembly and distribution. Our
industry is highly competitive, making pricing pressure a
potential threat to sustaining profit margins. For additional
information regarding the FRAG segment, see Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, and Note 18 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Concrete Cutting and Finishing Products
We operate a business in the specialized concrete cutting

and finishing market. These products are sold primarily
under the ICS® brand. The principal product is a propri-
etary diamond-segmented chain, which is used on gasoline
and hydraulic powered concrete cutting saws and equip-
ment. We also market and distribute branded gasoline and
hydraulic powered concrete cutting chain saws to our cus-
tomers, which include contactors, rental equipment
companies, and construction equipment dealers primarily
in the U.S. and Europe. The power heads for these saws
are manufactured by a third party. Competition primarily
comes from manufacturers of traditional circular concrete
cutting saws, including Husqvarna and Stihl. We also
supply diamond-segmented chain to certain of these
competitors. We believe we are a market leader in dia-
mond chain cutting products.

Intellectual Property
Our proprietary brands include Alitec™, Carlton®,

CF™, EuroMAX®, FORCE4®, Fusion®, Gannon™,
Gator™, Gator Mulcher®, ICS®, INTENZ®, Jet-Fit®,
Magnum Edger ™, Oregon®, PBL™, PowerGrit®,
PowerSharp®, Power-Match®, PowerNow™,
PowerPro™, RentMAX™, SealPro®, SpeeCo®,
SpeedHook®, Tiger®, Tisco®, Tru-Power®, Vintage
Farm™, WainRoy®, Windsor®, Woods™, and
WoodsCare™. All of these are registered, pending, or
common trademarks of Blount and its subsidiaries in the
U.S. and/or other countries. Some forms of Windsor® are
used under license from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.

The Company holds a number of patents, trademarks,
and other intellectual property that are important to our
business. From time to time we are involved in disputes,
some of which lead to litigation, either in defense of our
intellectual property or cases where others have alleged
that we have infringed on their intellectual property rights.
See further discussion under Item 1A Risk Factors within
the heading “Litigation—We may have litigation liabilities
that could result in significant costs to us.”

Discontinued Operations—Gear Products
On September 30, 2010, we sold Gear Products to Tulsa

Winch, Inc., an operating unit of Dover Industrial Prod-
ucts, Inc., for net cash proceeds of $24.8 million. Gear
Products is a manufacturer of mechanical power trans-

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 5



g j

285309 TX 6BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL
FORM 10-K

17-Mar-2012 02:02 EST
CLN PSNYM

RR Donnelley ProFile NER kumar9ap 3*
PMT 1C

nerdoc1
10.10.12

mission components for OEMs, serving the utility, con-
struction, forestry, marine, and mining markets. Under
terms of the stock purchase agreement, the parties agreed
to treat the stock sale as if it were an asset sale for income
tax purposes, which resulted in an increase in the income
tax expense we recognized on the sale. Gear Products
results are reported as discontinued operations for all peri-
ods presented.

Capacity Utilization
Based on a five-day, three-shift work week, capacity

utilization for the year ended December 31, 2011 is esti-
mated as follows:

2011

Forestry, lawn, and garden 93%
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 40%
Concrete cutting and finishing 60%

Historically, the Company has operated its FLAG seg-
ment facilities at high capacity utilization levels. Capacity
for our forestry products has been expanded in recent years
with the purchase of Carlton in 2008 and the establishment
of our manufacturing plant in Fuzhou, China in 2005. The
Company expects to meet future sales demand by expand-
ing capacity at existing facilities through both productivity
enhancements and capital investment. In the second quar-
ter of 2009, we closed our manufacturing plant in Milan,
Tennessee and moved the production of products pre-
viously manufactured in that facility to our other manu-
facturing facilities. During 2011, we began expansion of
our manufacturing facility in Fuzhou, China. We are also
in early planning for a potential new manufacturing
facility, to be located in Eastern Europe over the next sev-
eral years, in order to meet anticipated future demand for
our forestry and other products. The FRAG segment facili-
ties were generally operated on a five-day, one-shift basis
during 2011.

Backlog
Our sales order backlog was as follows:

As of December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Forestry, lawn, and garden $182,414 $125,987 $77,449
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 28,329 6,671 –
Concrete cutting and
finishing 562 1,059 620

Total sales order backlog $211,305 $133,717 $78,069

The total backlog as of December 31, 2011 is expected
to be completed and shipped within twelve months. Back-
log amounts related to our discontinued operations are
excluded from all periods presented. Included in the back-
log as of December 31, 2011 is $31.1 million related to
KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO.

Employees
At December 31, 2011, we employed approximately

4,500 individuals. None of our U.S. employees belong to a
labor union. The number of foreign employees who belong
to unions is not significant. We believe our relations with
our employees are satisfactory, and we have not experi-
enced any significant labor-related work stoppages in the
last three years.

Environmental Matters
The Company’s operations are subject to comprehensive

U.S. and foreign laws and regulations relating to the pro-
tection of the environment, including those governing
discharges of pollutants into the air, ground, and water, the
management and disposal of hazardous substances, and the
cleanup of contaminated sites. Permits and environmental
controls are required for certain of these operations,
including those required to prevent or reduce air and water
pollution, and our permits are subject to modification,
renewal, and revocation by issuing authorities.

On an ongoing basis, we incur capital and operating
costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations.
In 2011, we expensed approximately $2.9 million directly
related to environmental compliance, including approx-
imately $0.6 million in capital expenditures. We expect to
spend approximately $2.5 million to $3.0 million per year
in capital and operating costs over the next three years for
environmental compliance and anticipate continued spend-
ing at a similar level in subsequent years. The actual cost
to comply with environmental laws and regulations may be
greater than these estimated amounts.

In the manufacture of our products, we use certain chem-
icals and processes, including chrome and paints applied to
some of our products, and oils used on metal-working
machinery. Some of our current and former manufacturing
facilities are located on properties with a long history of
industrial use, including the use of hazardous substances.
For certain of our former facilities, we retained responsi-
bility for past environmental matters under certain con-
ditions and pursuant to the terms of the agreements by
which we sold the properties to third party purchasers. In
addition, from time to time third parties have asserted
claims against us for environmental remediation at former
sites despite the absence of a contractual obligation. We
have identified soil and groundwater contamination from
these historical activities at certain of our current and
former facilities, which we are currently investigating,
monitoring, and in some cases, remediating. We have
recognized the estimated costs of remediation in the Con-
solidated Financial Statements for all known con-
taminations that require remediation by us. As of
December 31, 2011, the total recorded liability for
environmental remediation was $3.5 million. Management
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believes that costs incurred to investigate, monitor, and
remediate known contamination at these sites will not have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial con-
dition, results of operations or cash flow. We cannot be
sure, however, that we have identified all existing con-
tamination on our current and former properties or that
our operations will not cause contamination in the future.
As a result, we could incur material future costs to clean
up contamination.

From time to time we may be identified as a potentially
responsible party under the U.S. Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
or similar state statutes with respect to sites at which we
may have disposed of wastes. The U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (or an equivalent state agency) can
either (a) allow potentially-responsible parties to conduct
and pay for a remedial investigation and feasibility study
and remedial action or (b) conduct the remedial inves-
tigation and action on its own and then seek reimburse-
ment from the parties. Each party can be held liable for all
of the costs, but the parties can then bring contribution
actions against each other or potentially responsible third
parties. As a result, we may be required to expend amounts
on such remedial investigations and actions, which
amounts cannot be determined at the present time, but
which may ultimately prove to be material to the Con-
solidated Financial Statements.

In recent years, climate change has been discussed in
various political and other forums throughout the world.
We do not believe that climate change has had a sig-
nificant impact on our business operations or results to this
point, but we cannot be sure of the potential effects to our
business from any future changes in regulations or laws
concerning climate change. Any new regulations limiting
the amount of timber that could be harvested would most
likely have a negative impact on our sales of forestry
products. If climate change were to result in significant
shifts in crops grown in agricultural regions, it could
adversely affect our agricultural product business.

For additional information regarding certain environ-
mental matters, see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Financial Information about Industry Segments and Foreign
and Domestic Operations

For financial information about industry segments and
foreign and domestic operations, see Item 7, Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, and Note 18 of Notes to Con-
solidated Financial Statements.

Seasonality
The Company’s operations are somewhat seasonal in

nature. Year-over-year and quarter-over-quarter operating
results are impacted by economic and business trends
within the respective industries in which we compete, as
well as by seasonal weather patterns and the occurrence of
natural disasters and storms. Shipping and sales volume
for some of the Company’s products vary based upon the
time of year, but the overall impact of seasonality is gen-
erally not significant.

Research and Development Activities
See Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statements for

information about our research and development activities.

Available Information
Our website address is www.blount.com. You may

obtain free electronic copies of our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, all amendments to those reports, and
other SEC filings by accessing the Investor Relations sec-
tion of the Company’s website under the heading “SEC
Filings”. These reports are available on our Investor Rela-
tions website as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file them with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Once filed with the SEC, such documents may be read
and/or copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Information
regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In
addition, the SEC maintains an internet site at
www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information regarding issuers,
including Blount, who file electronically with the SEC.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 7
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Competition—Competition may result in decreased sales, operat-
ing income, and cash flow.

The markets in which we operate are competitive. We
believe that design features, product quality, customer
service, delivery lead times, and price are the principal
factors considered by our customers. Some of our com-
petitors may have, or may develop, greater financial
resources, lower costs, superior technology, or more
favorable operating conditions than we do. For example,
our competitors are expanding capacity or contracting with
suppliers located in China and other low-cost manufactur-
ing locations as a means to lower costs. Although we have
also established a manufacturing facility in China, interna-
tional competition from emerging economies has never-
theless been formidable and has, in some cases, negatively
affected our business. We may not be able to compete
successfully with our existing or any new competitors, and
the competitive pressures we face may result in decreased
sales, operating income, and cash flows. Competitors
could also obtain knowledge of our proprietary
manufacturing techniques and processes and reduce our
competitive advantage by copying such techniques
and processes.

Key Customers—Loss of one or more key customers would sub-
stantially decrease our sales.

In 2011, $82.7 million, or approximately 10%, of our
sales were to one customer (Husqvarna AB) and our top
three customers accounted for $158.5 million (19.1%) of
our total sales. Aside from our top three customers, no
other customer individually accounted for more than 3.0%
of our total sales. While we expect these business relation-
ships to continue, the loss of any of these key customers,
or a substantial portion of their business, would most
likely significantly decrease our sales, operating income,
and cash flows.

Key Suppliers and Raw Materials Costs—The loss of a few key
suppliers or increases in raw materials costs could substantially
decrease our sales or increase our costs.

We purchase important materials and parts from a lim-
ited number of suppliers that meet our quality criteria. We
generally do not operate under long-term written supply
contracts with our suppliers. Although alternative sources
of supply are available, the sudden elimination of certain
suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, an increase
in costs, a reduction in product quality, and a possible loss
of sales in the short-term. In 2011, we purchased $15.9
million of raw materials from our largest supplier and
$65.4 million of raw materials from our top five suppliers.

Some of these raw materials, in particular cold-rolled
strip steel, are subject to price volatility over periods of
time. In 2011 we purchased $86.6 million of steel. In addi-

tion to steel raw material, we also purchase components
and subassemblies that are made with steel, and prices for
these items are also subject to steel price volatility risk.
We have not hedged against the price volatility of any raw
materials. It has been our experience that raw material
price increases are sometimes difficult to recover from our
customers in the short-term through increased pricing. We
estimate that a 10% change in the price of steel, without a
corresponding increase in selling prices, would have
reduced 2011 income from continuing operations before
taxes by $8.7 million.

Foreign Sales and Operations—We have substantial foreign
sales, operations, and property, which could be adversely affected
as a result of changes in local economic or political conditions, fluc-
tuations in currency exchange rates, unexpected changes in regu-
latory environments, or potentially adverse tax consequences.

In 2011, approximately 63% of our sales were made
outside of the U.S. International sales and operations are
subject to inherent risks, including changes in local eco-
nomic or political conditions, instability of government
institutions, the imposition of currency exchange
restrictions, unexpected changes in legal and regulatory
environments, nationalization of private property, and
potentially adverse tax consequences. Under some circum-
stances, these factors could result in significant declines in
international sales.

Some of our sales and expenses are denominated in local
currencies that are affected by fluctuations in currency
exchange rates in relation to the U.S. Dollar. Historically,
our principal local currency exposures have been related to
manufacturing costs and expenses in Canada and Brazil,
and local currency sales and expenses in Europe. From
time to time, we manage some of our exposure to currency
exchange rate fluctuations through derivative products.
However, such derivative products merely reduce the short-
term volatility of currency fluctuations, and do not elimi-
nate their effects over the long-term. Any change in the
exchange rates of currencies in jurisdictions into which we
sell products or incur expenses could result in a significant
decrease in reported sales and operating income. For
example, we estimate that a 10% stronger Canadian Dollar
in relation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our oper-
ating income by $6.2 million, and a 10% stronger Brazilian
Real in relation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our
operating income by $4.1 million, in 2011. We estimate
that a 10% weaker Euro in relation to the U.S. Dollar
would have reduced our sales by $9.9 million and operating
income by $0.4 million in 2011. We estimate that the year-
over-year movement of foreign exchange rates from 2010
to 2011, whereby the U.S. Dollar weakened in relation to
the Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, and the Euro,
increased our sales by $6.5 million but decreased our oper-
ating income by $4.3 million.

8 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Also, approximately 63% of our foreign sales in 2011
were denominated in U.S. Dollars. We may see a decline
in sales during periods of a strengthening U.S. Dollar,
which can make our prices less competitive in interna-
tional markets. Furthermore, if the U.S. Dollar strengthens
against foreign currencies, it becomes more costly for for-
eign customers to pay their U.S. Dollar balances owed.
They may have difficulty in repaying these amounts, and
in turn, our bad debt expense may increase.

In addition, we own substantial manufacturing facilities
outside the U.S. As of December 31, 2011, 669,555, or
37%, of the total square feet of our owned facilities, are
located outside of the U.S. and 31% of our leased square
footage is located outside the U.S. This foreign-based
property, plant, and equipment is subject to inherent risks
for the reasons cited above. Loss of these facilities or
restrictions on our ability to use them would have an
adverse effect on our manufacturing and distribution capa-
bilities and would result in reduced sales, operating
income, and cash flows.

Weather—Sales of many of our products are affected by weather
patterns and the occurrence of natural disasters.

Sales of many of our products are influenced by weather
patterns that are clearly outside our control. For example,
drought conditions tend to reduce the demand for agricul-
tural and yard care products, such as tractor attachments
and lawnmower blades, and conversely, plentiful rain
conditions stimulate demand for these products. Natural
disasters such as hurricanes, typhoons, and ice and wind
storms that knock down trees can stimulate demand for our
forestry products. Conversely, a relative lack of severe
weather and natural disasters can result in reduced demand
for these same products.

Financial Leverage—Due to our financial leverage, we
could have difficulty operating our business and satisfying our
debt obligations.

As of December 31, 2011, we have $815.1 million of
total liabilities, including $530.4 million of debt. Our debt
leverage is significant, and may have important con-
sequences for us, including the following:
❚ A significant portion of our cash flow from operations is

dedicated to the payment of interest expense and
required principal repayments, which reduces the funds
that would otherwise be available to fund operations and
future business opportunities.

❚ A substantial decrease in net operating income and cash
flows or a substantial increase in expenses may make it
difficult for us to meet our debt service requirements or
force us to modify our operations.

❚ Our substantial leverage may make us more vulnerable
to economic downturns and competitive pressures.

❚ Our ability to obtain additional or replacement financing
for working capital, capital expenditures, or other pur-
poses, may be impaired, or such financing may not be
available on terms favorable to us under current market
conditions for credit.
We have available borrowing capacity under the revolv-

ing portion of our senior credit facilities of $163.9 million
as of December 31, 2011. Our term loan facility does not
allow the borrowing of additional principal amounts. If we
or any of our subsidiaries incur additional indebtedness,
the risks outlined above could worsen.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness and to
fund planned capital expenditures and research and prod-
uct development efforts will depend on our ability to gen-
erate cash in the future. Our ability to generate cash, to a
certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory, and other factors that
are beyond our control.

Our historical financial results have been, and we antici-
pate that our future financial results will be, subject to
fluctuations in customer orders, sales, operating results,
and cash flows. Our business may not be able to generate
sufficient cash flow from our operations or future borrow-
ings may not be available to us in an amount sufficient to
enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund our other
liquidity needs. An inability to pay our debts would require
us to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as
selling assets, refinancing or restructuring our indebted-
ness, or selling equity capital. However, alternative strat-
egies may not be feasible at the time or may not prove
adequate, which could cause us to default on our obliga-
tions and would impair our liquidity. Also, some alter-
native strategies would require the prior consent of our
secured lenders, which we may not be able to obtain. See
also Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Restrictive Covenants—The terms of our indebtedness contain a
number of restrictive covenants, the breach of any of which could
result in acceleration of payment of our senior credit facilities.

A breach of any of our restrictive debt covenants could
result in acceleration of our obligations to repay our debt.
An acceleration of our repayment obligations under our
senior credit facilities could result in a payment or dis-
tribution of substantially all of our assets to our secured
lenders, which would materially impair our ability to oper-
ate our business as a going concern. In addition, our senior
credit facility agreement, among other things, restricts and/
or limits our and certain of our subsidiaries’ ability to:
❚ incur debt;
❚ guarantee indebtedness of others;
❚ pay dividends on our stock;

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 9
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❚ purchase our stock;
❚ pursue strategic acquisitions;
❚ make certain types of investments;
❚ use assets as security in other transactions;
❚ sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies;
❚ enter into sale and leaseback transactions;
❚ enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;
❚ enter into certain new businesses; and
❚ make certain payments in respect of subordinated

indebtedness.
In addition, the senior credit facilities require us to main-

tain certain financial ratios and satisfy certain financial
condition tests, which may require that we take actions to
reduce debt or to act in a manner contrary to our business
objectives. Our ability to meet those financial ratios and
tests could be affected by events beyond our control, and
there can be no assurance that we will continue to meet
those ratios and tests. A breach of any of these covenants
could, if uncured, constitute an event of default under the
senior credit facilities. Upon the occurrence of an event of
default under the senior credit facilities, the lenders could
elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the senior
credit facilities, together with any accrued interest and
commitment fees, to be immediately due and payable. If
we and certain of our subsidiaries were unable to repay
those amounts, the lenders under the senior credit facilities
could enforce the guarantees from the guarantors and
proceed against the collateral securing the senior credit
facilities. The assets of Blount, Inc., our wholly-owned
subsidiary and issuer of the debt under our senior credit
facilities, and the applicable guarantors could be
insufficient to repay in full that indebtedness and our other
indebtedness.

Assets Pledged as Security on Credit Facilities—The majority of
our assets and the capital stock of our wholly-owned subsidiary
Blount, Inc. are pledged to secure obligations under our senior
credit facilities.

The Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries other
than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s obligations under
the senior credit facilities. The obligations under the senior
credit facilities are collateralized by a first priority security
interest in substantially all of the assets of Blount, Inc. and its
domestic subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of all of Blount,
Inc.’s capital stock held by Blount International, Inc. and all
of the stock of domestic subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc.
Blount, Inc. has also pledged 65% of the stock of its direct
non-domestic subsidiaries as additional collateral.

Litigation—We may have litigation liabilities that could result in
significant costs to us.

Our historical and current business operations have
resulted in a number of litigation matters, including liti-

gation involving personal injury or death, as a result of
alleged design or manufacturing defects of our products,
and litigation involving alleged patent infringement. Cer-
tain of these liabilities relating to certain of our dis-
continued operations were retained by us under terms of
the relevant divestiture agreements. Some of these product
liability suits seek significant or unspecified damages for
serious personal injuries for which there are retentions or
deductible amounts under our insurance policies. In the
future, we may face additional lawsuits, and it is difficult
to predict the amount and type of litigation that we may
face. Litigation, insurance, and other related costs could
result in future liabilities that are significant and that could
significantly reduce our operating income, cash flows, and
cash balances. See also Item 3, Legal Proceedings, and
Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental Matters—We face potential exposure to environ-
mental liabilities and costs.

We are subject to various U.S. and foreign environ-
mental laws and regulations relating to the protection of
the environment, including those governing discharges of
pollutants into the air and water, the management and
disposal of hazardous substances, and the cleanup of con-
taminated sites. Violations of, or liabilities incurred under,
these laws and regulations could result in an assessment of
significant costs to us, including civil or criminal penalties,
claims by third parties for personal injury or property
damage, requirements to investigate and remediate con-
tamination, and the imposition of natural resource dam-
ages. Furthermore, under certain environmental laws,
current and former owners and operators of contaminated
property or parties who sent waste to a contaminated site
can be held liable for cleanup, regardless of fault or the
lawfulness of the disposal activity at the time it was per-
formed. This potential exposure to environmental
liabilities and costs can apply to both our current and
former operating facilities, including those related to our
discontinued operations.

Future events, such as the discovery of additional con-
tamination or other information concerning past releases of
hazardous substances at our or other sites affected by our
actions, changes in existing environmental laws or their
interpretation, including changes related to climate change,
and more rigorous enforcement by regulatory authorities
may require additional expenditures by us to modify oper-
ations, install pollution control equipment, investigate and
monitor contamination at sites, clean contaminated sites,
or curtail our operations. These expenditures could sig-
nificantly reduce our net income and cash flows.
See also Item 1, Business-Environmental Matters, Item 3,
Legal Proceedings, and Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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General Economic Factors—We are subject to general economic
factors that are largely out of our control, any of which could,
among other things, result in a decrease in sales, net income, and
cash flows, and an increase in our interest or other expenses.

Our business is subject to a number of general economic
factors, many of which are largely out of our control,
which may, among other effects, result in a decrease in
sales, net income, and cash flows, and an increase in our
interest or other expenses. These factors include reces-
sionary economic cycles and downturns in customers’
business cycles, as well as downturns in the principal
regional economies where our operations are located.
Economic conditions may adversely affect our customers’
business levels and the amount of products that they need.
Furthermore, customers encountering adverse economic
conditions may have difficulty in paying for our products
and actual bad debts may exceed our allowance for bad
debts. World-wide economic conditions contributed to a
slowdown in orders for our products in late 2008 and the
first half of 2009, and adversely affected our business
results. World-wide economic conditions may also
adversely affect our suppliers and they may not be able to
provide us with the goods and services we need on a
timely basis, which could adversely affect our ability to
manufacture our products. Our senior credit facility bor-
rowings are at variable interest rates. Increases in market
reference interest rates could increase our interest expense
payable under the senior credit facilities to levels in excess
of what we currently expect. We estimate that a 100 basis
point higher average level of interest rates on our variable
rate debt would have increased our interest expense in
2011 by $4.0 million. In addition, fluctuations in the mar-
ket values of equity and debt securities held in the
Company’s pension plan assets can adversely affect the
funding status of our defined benefit pension plans. The
expense and funding requirements for these plans may
increase in the future as a result of reduced values of the
plan assets. Furthermore, terrorist activities, anti-terrorist
efforts, war, or other armed conflicts involving the U.S. or
its interests abroad may result in a downturn in the U.S.
and global economies and exacerbate the risks to our busi-
ness described in this paragraph.

Key Employees—The loss of key employees could adversely
affect our manufacturing efficiency.

Many of our manufacturing processes require a high
level of expertise. For example, we build our own complex
dies for use in cutting and shaping steel into components
for our products. The design and manufacture of such dies
are highly dependent on the expertise of key employees.
We have also developed numerous proprietary
manufacturing techniques that rely on the expertise of key
employees. Our manufacturing efficiency and cost could

be adversely affected if we are unable to retain these key
employees or continue to train them or their replacements.

Common Stock Price—The price of our common stock may fluc-
tuate significantly, and stockholders could lose all or part of their
investment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stock may
prevent stockholders from being able to sell their shares at
or above the price paid for the shares. The market price of
our common stock could fluctuate significantly for various
reasons that include:
❚ our quarterly or annual earnings or those of other compa-

nies in our industries;
❚ the public’s reaction to events and results contained in

our press releases, our other public announcements, and
our filings with the SEC;

❚ changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by
research analysts who track our common stock or the
stock of other comparable companies;

❚ changes in general conditions in the U.S. and global
economies, financial markets, or the industries we mar-
ket our products to, including those resulting from war,
incidents of terrorism, changes in technology or
competition, or responses to such events;

❚ sales of common stock by our largest stockholders, direc-
tors, and executive officers; and

❚ the other factors described in these “Risk Factors.”
In addition, in recent years, the stock market has experi-

enced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This vola-
tility has had a significant impact on the market price of
securities issued by many companies, including companies
in our industries. The changes in prices frequently appear
to occur without regard to the operating performance of
these companies. For example, over the two preceding
calendar years, our highest closing stock price has
exceeded our lowest closing stock price by 42% in 2011
and by 64% in 2010. The price of our common stock could
fluctuate based upon factors that have little or nothing to
do with our Company, and these fluctuations could
materially reduce our stock price.

Common Stock Sales—Future sales of our common stock in the
public market could lower our stock price.

Ownership and control of our common stock is con-
centrated in a relatively small number of institutional
investors. As of December 31, 2011, approximately 55%
of our outstanding common stock was owned or controlled
by our five largest stockholders. We may sell additional
shares of common stock in subsequent public offerings, or
other stockholders with significant holdings of our com-
mon stock may also sell large amounts of shares they own
in a secondary or open market stock offering. We may also
issue additional shares of common stock to finance future

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 11



g

285309 TX 12BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL
FORM 10-K

17-Mar-2012 02:07 EST
CLN PSNYM

RR Donnelley ProFile NER kumar9ap 4*
PMT 1C

nerdoc1
10.10.12

transactions. We cannot predict the size of future issuances
of our common stock or the effect, if any, that future issu-
ances and sales of shares of our common stock will have
on the market price of our common stock. Sales of sub-
stantial amounts of our common stock (including shares
issued in connection with an acquisition or shares sold by
existing stockholders), or the perception that such sales
could occur, may adversely affect the prevailing market
price of our common stock.

Computer Transaction Processing—An information technology
system failure or breach of security may adversely affect
our business.

We rely on information technology systems to transact
our business. An information technology system failure
due to computer viruses, internal or external security
breaches, power interruptions, hardware failures, fire,
natural disasters, human error, or other causes could dis-
rupt our operations and prevent us from being able to
process transactions with our customers, operate our
manufacturing facilities, and properly report those trans-
actions in a timely manner. A significant, protracted
information technology system failure may result in a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results
of operations, or cash flows.

In recent years we have increased the volume of sales
transactions processed over the internet. For example, we
currently conduct a portion of our sales over the internet at
KOX, Woods/TISCO, and for certain other product lines.
As a result, sensitive information about our customers is
stored in electronic media. If unauthorized access to this
information were gained we could be subject to penalties
or claims by our customers which could have an adverse
effect on our business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters occupy executive offices at
4909 SE International Way, Portland, Oregon 97222-4679.
Cutting chain, guide bar, and drive sprocket manufacturing

plants within our FLAG business segment are located in
Portland, Oregon; Milwaukie, Oregon; Curitiba, Brazil;
Guelph, Canada; and Fuzhou, China. Lawnmower blade
manufacturing facilities within our FLAG business seg-
ment are located in Kansas City, Missouri; Civray, France;
and Queretaro, Mexico. Manufacturing of log splitters and
post-hole diggers within our FRAG business segment
occurred in leased facilities in Golden, Colorado through
the end of 2011, but was moved to Kansas City, Missouri
in early 2012. Tractor attachment, construction attachment,
riding lawnmowers, and other product manufacturing
plants within our FRAG business segment are located in
Oregon, Illinois; Kronenwetter, Wisconsin; and Sioux
Falls, South Dakota. Sales offices and distribution centers
are located in Coppell, Texas; Curitiba, Brazil; several
locations in Europe; Fuzhou, China; Golden, Colorado;
Guelph, Canada; Nishi-ku, Yokohama, Japan; Kansas
City, Missouri; Moscow, Russia; Nashville, Tennessee;
Oregon, Illinois; Portland, Oregon; Rockford, Illinois;
Sparks, Nevada; and Strongsville, Ohio. SpeeCo is head-
quartered in Golden, Colorado with design, engineering,
sales, and marketing functions located in that facility.
SpeeCo also operated a distribution center in Golden,
Colorado through the end of 2011, but those operations
were moved to Kansas City, Missouri in early 2012.

All of these facilities are in relatively good condition,
are currently in normal operation, and are generally suit-
able and adequate for the business activity conducted
therein. The approximate square footage of facilities
located at our principal properties as of December 31,
2011 is as follows:

Area in Square Feet
Owned Leased

Forestry, lawn, and garden segment 1,234,658 438,808
Farm, ranch, and agriculture segment 527,709 605,379
Corporate and other 50,769 32,000

Total 1,813,136 1,076,187

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings see Note 15
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

12 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker “BLT”). The following table presents
the quarterly high and low closing prices for the Company’s common stock for the last two years. Cash dividends have not
been declared for the Company’s common stock since 1999. The Company’s senior credit facility agreement limits our
ability to pay dividends. See Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oper-
ations, for further discussion. The Company had approximately 7,100 stockholders of record as of December 31, 2011.

See information about the Company’s stock compensation plans in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, and also in Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The Company has not sold any registered or unregistered securities, or repurchased any shares of its common stock,
during the three year period ended December 31, 2011.

The Company’s highest and lowest closing stock price for each of the last eight quarters is presented in the table below.

Common Stock
High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2011:
First quarter $ 16.46 $ 14.45
Second quarter 17.47 15.36
Third quarter 18.37 12.98
Fourth quarter 16.29 13.02
Year Ended December 31, 2010:
First quarter $ 11.85 $ 10.28
Second quarter 11.71 10.27
Third quarter 12.76 9.93
Fourth quarter 16.31 12.78

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 13
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Statement of Income Data: (1) (2) (3)
Sales $ 831,630 $ 611,480 $ 487,366 $ 565,557 $ 486,739
Operating income 97,953 85,555 54,526 84,386 78,845
Interest expense, net of interest income 18,550 25,517 24,501 25,705 31,706
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 74,950 52,611 30,266 60,485 46,328
Income from continuing operations 49,682 41,402 21,945 36,932 31,002
Income from discontinued operations – 5,798 1,048 1,667 11,855
Net income 49,682 47,200 22,993 38,599 42,857
Earnings per share:
Basic income per share:
Continuing operations 1.02 0.86 0.46 0.78 0.66
Discontinued operations – 0.13 0.02 0.03 0.25

Net income 1.02 0.99 0.48 0.81 0.91
Diluted income per share:
Continuing operations 1.01 0.85 0.46 0.77 0.64
Discontinued operations – 0.12 0.02 0.03 0.25

Net income 1.01 0.97 0.48 0.80 0.89
Shares used:
Basic 48,701 47,917 47,758 47,510 47,280
Diluted 49,434 48,508 48,274 48,130 48,078

As of December 31,
(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 62,118 $ 80,708 $ 55,070 $ 58,275 $ 57,589
Working capital 237,010 187,547 149,547 127,986 128,588
Property, plant, and equipment, net 155,872 108,348 114,470 119,749 89,729
Total assets 884,572 580,887 483,566 499,684 411,949
Long-term debt 510,014 339,750 280,852 293,539 295,758
Total debt 530,362 350,000 285,865 325,520 297,000
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) 69,465 42,398 (6,740) (43,520) (54,146)

The table above gives effect to the sale of Gear Products on September 30, 2010, and the sale of the Company’s For-
estry Division on November 5, 2007, and treatment of these businesses as discontinued operations for all periods pre-
sented. In addition, the table reflects the acquisitions of Woods/TISCO on September 7, 2011, PBL on August 5, 2011,
KOX on March 1, 2011, SpeeCo on August 10, 2010, and Carlton on May 2, 2008 and inclusion of their operations from
their acquisition dates forward. The results above also reflect the related acquisition accounting effects of these acquis-
itions, as further described below in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating
Results.

(1) Income from continuing operations in 2011 includes a pre-tax charge of $3.9 million for the early
extinguishment of debt.

(2) Income from continuing operations in 2010 include a pre-tax charge of $7.0 million for the early extinguish-
ment of debt.

(3) Operating income and income from continuing operations in 2009 include a pre-tax charge of $8.6 million
for settlement of a litigation matter, fees associated with refinancing activities and costs associated with the
transition of the Company’s CEO position; a pre-tax charge of $7.2 million for plant closure and severance
costs; and a pre-tax gain of $2.7 million on the sale of land and building in Europe.

14 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read
in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this report, as well as
the information in Item 6, Selected Consolidated
Financial Data.

Overview
We are a global industrial company that designs, manu-

factures, and markets equipment, replacement and compo-
nent parts, and accessories to professionals and consumers
in select end-markets and to OEMs for use on original
equipment. We also purchase products manufactured by
other suppliers that are aligned with the markets we serve
and market them, typically under one of our brands,
through our global sales and distribution network. Our
products are sold in over 115 countries and approximately
63% of our 2011 sales were made outside of the U.S.

The Company identifies operating segments primarily
based on organizational structure, reporting structure, and
the evaluation of the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(Chief Executive Officer). Our organizational structure
reflects our view of the end user market segments we
serve. Following the acquisition of Woods/TISCO in 2011,
the Company reorganized its business into two primary
operating segments. Segment disclosures in all periods
presented have been restated on a comparable basis. The
FLAG segment manufactures and markets cutting chain,
guide bars, and drive sprockets for chain saw use, and
lawnmower and edger blades for outdoor power equip-
ment, and serves the forestry, lawn, and garden markets.
The FLAG segment also purchases replacement parts and
accessories from other manufacturers that we market to the
forestry, lawn, and garden markets through our global
sales and distribution network, typically under one of
our brands.

The Company’s FRAG segment manufactures and
markets attachments for tractors in a variety of mowing,
cutting, clearing, material handling, landscaping and
grounds maintenance applications, as well as log splitters,
post-hole diggers, self-propelled lawnmowers, attachments
for off-highway construction equipment applications, and
other general purpose tractor attachments. In addition, the
FRAG segment manufactures a variety of attachment cut-
ting blade component parts. The FRAG segment also
purchases replacement parts and accessories from other
manufacturers that we market to the farm, ranch, and agri-
culture markets through our sales and distribution network.

The Company also operates a concrete cutting and finish-
ing equipment business that is reported within the Corpo-
rate and Other category. This business manufactures and
markets diamond cutting chain and assembles and markets

concrete cutting chain saws for the construction and
utility markets.

Our performance can be impacted by trends in the
industries we serve, weather patterns, natural disasters
such as wind and ice storms, foreign currency fluctuations,
and general economic conditions. We face price pressure
from competitors on a world-wide basis, particularly with
respect to our cutting chain, guide bar, and lawnmower
blade products. The maintenance of competitive selling
prices is dependent on our ability to manufacture our
products efficiently. The maintenance of our market share
is also dependent on our ability to develop new and
innovative products and product features, and to market
such products successfully. We operate manufacturing
plants in the U.S., Brazil, Canada, China, France, and
Mexico, all of which pursue continuous productivity
improvements. Timely capital investment into our manu-
facturing plants for added capacity and cost reductions, as
well as effectively sourcing critical raw materials, compo-
nents, and whole goods at favorable prices, is required for
us to remain competitive.

We maintain a centralized administrative staff at our
headquarters in Portland, Oregon. This centralized admin-
istrative staff provides the executive leadership for the
Company, as well as accounting, finance, information
technology, and supply chain services, administering vari-
ous health and welfare plans, providing risk management
and insurance services, supervising the Company’s capital
structure, and overseeing the regulatory, compliance, and
legal functions. Operating expenses of this central admin-
istrative function are included in selling, general, and
administrative expenses (“SG&A”) in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. The cost of providing certain shared
services is allocated to our business segments using vari-
ous allocation drivers such as headcount, software
licenses, purchase volume, shipping volume, sales rev-
enue, square footage, and other factors.

See Item 1, Business, for further information about our
business and operations.

2011 Acquisition of Woods/TISCO
On September 7, 2011, we acquired Woods/TISCO,

with operations primarily in the Midwestern U.S., a manu-
facturer and marketer of equipment and replacement parts
primarily for the agriculture end market. The acquisition of
Woods/TISCO:
❚ Increases distribution for our FRAG segment, partic-

ularly in the agricultural dealer channel.
❚ Expands our FRAG product line offerings of tractor

attachments and aftermarket replacement parts.
❚ Provides opportunities to leverage our manufacturing

and product development expertise and global
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distribution and supply chain network, particularly in the
area of product sourcing.

❚ Enhances our U.S. manufacturing and distribution capa-
bilities through the addition of three manufacturing and
five distribution facilities.
The purchase price was $190.5 million in cash, consist-

ing of $185.0 million in negotiated enterprise value and a
$5.5 million working capital adjustment. Woods/TISCO
had $0.2 million of cash on the acquisition date, resulting
in a net cash outflow of $190.3 million. We assumed none
of Woods/TISCO’s debt in the transaction. In addition, we
incurred legal and other third party fees totaling $2.0 mil-
lion in conjunction with the acquisition that were expensed
to SG&A in the Consolidated Statements of Income during
2011. The acquisition was funded from cash on hand and
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Woods/TISCO’s pre-acquisition operating results for the
twelve months preceding the acquisition date are summar-
ized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months Ended

August 31, 2011

Sales $ 164,810
Operating income 17,870
Depreciation and amortization 2,549

Woods/TISCO’s operating income for the twelve
months ended August 31, 2011 includes expenses of $0.7
million related to Woods/TISCO’s former chief executive
officer, $0.5 million in management fees charged by
Woods/TISCO’s former owner, $0.4 million in expenses
attributed to Woods/TISCO’s efforts to sell its business,
$0.3 million in costs associated with the closure of a
facility, and $0.3 million in fees associated with Woods/
TISCO’s September 2010 refinancing transaction.

2011 Acquisition of PBL
On August 5, 2011, we acquired PBL, a manufacturer of

lawnmower blades and agricultural cutting parts based in
Civray, France, with a second manufacturing facility in
Queretaro, Mexico. The acquisition of PBL increases our
manufacturing capacity for lawnmower blades, increases
our market share for lawnmower blades in Europe, and
provides an entrance into the agricultural cutting parts
market in Europe. We also expect to benefit from PBL’s
low-cost manufacturing methods and technology utilized
at its facilities in France and Mexico.

The purchase price consisted of $14.2 million in cash
and the assumption of $13.5 million of PBL’s debt. PBL
had $1.3 million of cash on the acquisition date, resulting
in a net cash outflow of $13.0 million. In addition, we
incurred legal and other third party fees totaling $0.9 mil-
lion in conjunction with the acquisition that were expensed
to SG&A in the Consolidated Statement of Income during

2011. The cash portion of the acquisition was funded from
available cash on hand at Blount B.V.

PBL’s pre-acquisition operating results for the twelve
months preceding the acquisition date are summarized
below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months Ended

July 31, 2011

Sales $ 33,162
Operating income 1,804
Depreciation and amortization 2,857

2011 Acquisition of KOX
On March 1, 2011, we acquired KOX, a Germany-based

direct-to-customer distributor of forestry-related replace-
ment parts and accessories, primarily serving professional
loggers and consumers in Europe. The acquisition of KOX
increased our distribution capabilities and expanded our
geographic presence in Europe. KOX has been a customer
of Blount for over 30 years and purchased approximately
$9.2 million of forestry replacement parts from Blount in
2010.

The total purchase price was $23.9 million. The pur-
chase price consisted of $19.2 million in cash and 309,834
shares of our common stock valued at $4.7 million based
on the closing price of our stock on the acquisition date.
KOX had $5.1 million of cash on the acquisition date,
resulting in a net cash outflow of $14.1 million. We
assumed none of KOX’s debt in the transaction. In addi-
tion, we incurred legal and other third party fees totaling
$1.2 million in conjunction with the acquisition that were
expensed to SG&A in the Consolidated Statements of
Income during 2010 and 2011. The cash portion of the
acquisition was funded from available cash on hand at
Blount B.V. The common stock shares issued in the pur-
chase are subject to certain restrictions under terms of the
related stock purchase agreement.

KOX pre-acquisition operating results for calendar year
2010 are summarized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Year Ended

December 31, 2010

Sales $ 34,889
Operating income 3,266
Depreciation 128

2011 Establishment of Blount B.V.
On January 19, 2011, we acquired a dormant shelf

company registered in the Netherlands and changed the
name to Blount Netherlands B.V. The acquisition price
was $21 thousand, net of cash acquired, plus the assump-
tion of certain liabilities. This acquisition, along with the
formation of an additional holding entity named BI Hold-
ings C.V., a limited partnership registered with the Dutch
Trade Register with a Bermuda office address and parent
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of Blount B.V., increases our flexibility to make interna-
tional acquisitions. Direct ownership of certain of our for-
eign subsidiaries was transferred from our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Blount, Inc., to Blount B.V. through a series of
transactions executed in February 2011. We recognized
$13 thousand of goodwill on the acquisition of the shelf
company in the Netherlands.

2010 Acquisition of SpeeCo
On August 10, 2010, we acquired SpeeCo, located in

Golden, Colorado, a supplier of log splitters, post-hole
diggers, tractor three-point linkage parts and equipment,
and farm and ranch accessories. The acquisition of SpeeCo
expanded our product offerings and broadened our
customer base. The acquisition of SpeeCo also created
opportunities for synergies in the areas of marketing, sales,
assembly operations, distribution, and back office con-
solidation of support functions. We also believe there are
opportunities to sell some of SpeeCo’s products into our
FLAG distribution network domestically and internation-
ally. The opportunities for synergies were further enhanced
when we acquired PBL and Woods/TISCO during 2011.
We also are benefiting from SpeeCo by leveraging
its experience in low-cost sourcing of materials
and components.

The purchase price was $91.7 million in cash, consisting
of $90.0 million in negotiated enterprise value and a $1.7
million working capital adjustment. SpeeCo had $0.8 mil-
lion of cash on the acquisition date, resulting in a net cash
outflow of $90.9 million. We assumed none of SpeeCo’s
debt in the transaction. In addition, we incurred legal and
other third party fees totaling $1.0 million in conjunction
with the acquisition that were expensed to SG&A in the
Consolidated Statement of Income in 2010. The acquis-
ition was financed with a combination of cash on hand and
borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

SpeeCo’s pre-acquisition operating results for the
twelve months preceding the acquisition date are
summarized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months

Ended July 31, 2010

Sales $ 77,077
Operating income 8,174
Depreciation and amortization 4,469

SpeeCo’s operating income for the twelve months ended
July 31, 2010 includes $0.4 million in management fees
charged by SpeeCo’s former owner.

2010 Disposition of Gear Products
On September 30, 2010, we sold Gear Products to Tulsa

Winch, Inc., an operating unit of Dover Industrial Prod-
ucts, Inc., for net cash proceeds of $24.8 million. Gear
Products, located in Tulsa, Oklahoma, is a manufacturer of
mechanical power transmission components for OEMs,
serving the utility, construction, forestry, marine, and
mining markets. Under terms of the related stock purchase
agreement, the parties agreed to treat the stock sale as if it
were an asset sale for income tax purposes, which resulted
in an increase in income tax expense recognized on the
sale. Gear Products results are reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

2009 Plant Closure and Severance Costs
During the second quarter of 2009, we closed our manu-

facturing facility in Milan, Tennessee. Products previously
manufactured in that facility are now produced in our other
manufacturing facilities. We also took actions in early
2009 to reduce the number of employees we have in cer-
tain of our other locations. We recorded charges of $6.9
million to operating expenses and $0.3 million to cost of
goods sold during 2009 for the costs of the Milan closure
and move, including asset disposal and impairment charg-
es, as well as employee severance benefits related to Milan
and other locations. The land and building in Milan were
included in assets held for sale on the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheet as of December 31, 2010 and were sold in
December 2011.
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Operating Results

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010
(Amounts in millions) 2011 2010 Change Contributing Factor

(Amounts may not sum due to rounding)
Sales $ 831.6 $ 611.5 $ 220.2

$ 196.5 Sales volume, including acquisitions
17.2 Selling price and mix
6.5 Foreign currency translation

Gross profit 255.8 204.0 51.8
Gross margin 30.8% 33.4% 52.8 Sales volume

17.2 Selling price and mix
(10.8) Acquisition accounting effects
(5.3) Product cost and mix
(2.0) Foreign currency translation

SG&A 157.9 118.5 39.4
As a percent of sales 19.0% 19.4%

19.3 SG&A of recent acquisitions
4.9 Compensation expense
4.8 Professional services
3.6 Advertising
1.5 Travel
1.1 Employee benefits
2.3 Foreign currency translation
1.9 Other, net

Operating income 98.0 85.6 12.4
Operating margin 11.8% 14.0% 51.8 Increase in gross profit

(39.4) Increase in SG&A
Income from continuing operations 49.7 41.4 8.3

12.4 Increase in operating income
7.0 Decrease in net interest expense
3.0 Change in other income (expense)

(14.1) Increase in income tax provision

Income from discontinued operations – 5.8 (5.8)

(1.0) Operating results
(11.9) Gain on sale of subsidiary

7.2 Income taxes
Net income $ 49.7 $ 47.2 $ 2.5

Sales increased by $220.2 million (36.0%) from 2010 to
2011, primarily due to increased unit volume of $196.5 mil-
lion. We report all incremental sales attributable to recent
acquisitions as unit volume increase, up through the one
year anniversary of the acquisition date. The effect of recent
acquisitions added $132.5 million in incremental sales in the
year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding the effect of
these acquisitions, unit sales volume increased by $64.0
million, or 10.5%. Changes in average selling prices and
product mix increased sales revenue by $17.2 million on a
year-over-year basis, excluding acquisitions. The translation
of foreign currency-denominated sales transactions
increased consolidated sales by $6.5 million in 2011 com-
pared to 2010, excluding acquisitions, given the relatively

weaker U.S. Dollar in comparison to most foreign curren-
cies. International sales increased by $75.1 million (18.0%),
while domestic sales increased by $12.5 million (6.4%),
both exclusive of sales from recent acquisitions. The
increase in international sales reflected strong global market
conditions and demand for our products compared with the
prior year, although the year-over-year percentage growth
slowed in the second half of 2011. For 2011, excluding the
effect of incremental sales from recent acquisitions, sales
increased 20.7% in the Asia Pacific region, 16.1% in
Europe and Russia, 15.9% in South America, and 8.1% in
North America.

Gross profit increased by $51.8 million (25.4%) from
2010 to 2011. Higher unit sales volume of $52.8 million,
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including incremental volume from recent acquisitions,
along with the $17.2 million effect of higher average sell-
ing prices and product mix, accounted for the increase.
Partially offsetting these increases were an increase in
acquisition accounting effects of $10.8 million, and $5.3
million in higher product cost and mix, including a year-
over-year increase in steel costs of $3.8 million. Fluctua-
tions in currency exchange rates decreased our gross profit
in 2011 compared to 2010 by $2.0 million on a con-
solidated basis. The translation of stronger foreign curren-
cies in Canada and Brazil into a weaker U.S. Dollar
resulted in higher reported manufacturing costs. This for-
eign currency effect at our international manufacturing
locations more than offset the positive effect on translation
of international sales revenue. Gross margin in 2011 was
30.8% of sales compared to 33.4% of sales in 2010. The
decline in gross margin from 2010 is primarily the result of
the lower average gross margins of acquired businesses
and the related acquisition accounting effects.

SG&A was $157.9 million in 2011, compared to $118.5
million in 2010, representing an increase of $39.4 million
(33.2%). As a percentage of sales, SG&A decreased from
19.4% in 2010 to 19.0% in 2011, primarily due to the
increase in sales, which outpaced the increase in SG&A
spending. Incremental SG&A expense incurred at our recent
acquisitions added $19.3 million in 2011. Compensation
expense for 2011 increased by $4.9 million; reflecting
annual merit increases, increased headcount, and higher
stock compensation expense, partially offset by reduced
incentive compensation expense. Costs for professional
services increased by $4.8 million, largely due to our
acquisition program, as we acquired KOX, PBL, and
Woods/TISCO in 2011 compared with SpeeCo in 2010.
Advertising expense increased by $3.6 million, primarily
due to advertising programs for new product introductions.
Travel costs were $1.5 million higher in 2011 compared
with 2010 as the Company continued to pursue its strategic
initiatives. The cost of employee benefits increased $1.1
million year-over-year. International operating expenses
increased by $2.3 million from the prior year due to the
movement in foreign currency exchange rates.

We maintain defined benefit pension plans covering many
of our employees and retirees in the U.S., Belgium, Canada,
and France. In addition, we maintain post-retirement medi-
cal and other defined benefit plans covering the majority of
our employees and retirees in the U.S. The costs of these
benefit plans are included in cost of goods sold and SG&A.
The accounting effects and funding requirements for these
plans are subject to actuarial estimates, actual plan experi-
ence, and the assumptions we make regarding future trends
and expectations. See further discussion of these key
assumptions and estimates under “Critical Accounting Poli-
cies and Estimates”. Total expense recognized for these

post-retirement benefit plans was $8.1 million in both 2011
and 2010. At December 31, 2011, we had $121.0 million of
accumulated other comprehensive losses related to our pen-
sion and other post-employment benefit plans that will be
amortized to expense over future years, including $7.7 mil-
lion to be expensed in 2012. We expect our total expense for
these plans to be between $10.0 million and $12.0 million
in 2012.

Operating income increased by $12.4 million from 2010
to 2011. The increase was due to higher sales volume and
gross profit, partially offset by increased SG&A expenses.
Our operating margin decreased from 14.0% of sales in
2010 to 11.8% of sales in 2011. Acquisition accounting
effects reduced our operating profit by $15.9 million and
our operating margin by 1.9% in 2011. Acquisition
accounting effects reduced our operating profit by $5.2 mil-
lion and our operating margin by 0.8% in 2010.

Interest expense was $18.7 million in 2011 compared to
$25.6 million in 2010. The decrease was due to lower aver-
age interest rates on our debt, partially offset by higher
average outstanding debt balances in the comparable peri-
ods. The variable interest rates on our term loans decreased
significantly when we amended and restated our senior
credit facilities in June 2011, and our weighted average
interest rate was also reduced when we repaid our senior
subordinated notes in September 2010.

Other expense, net was $4.5 million in 2011 and primarily
consisted of $3.9 million in charges related to the fourth
amendment and restatement of our senior credit facilities
consummated in August 2011. Other expense, net was $7.4
million in 2010 and primarily consisted of $7.0 million in
charges related to the third amendment and restatement of
our senior credit facilities consummated in August 2010.

The following table summarizes our income tax provi-
sion for continuing operations in 2011 and 2010:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes $ 74,950 $ 52,611

Provision for income taxes 25,268 11,209

Income from continuing operations 49,682 41,402

Effective tax rate 33.7% 21.3%

The 2011 income tax provision reflects the release of a
net amount of $4.3 million in previously provided income
tax expense on uncertain tax positions resulting from the
expiration of the statute of limitations for certain tax
returns. Excluding the effect of this release, the effective
tax rate for 2011 would have been 39.5%. The 2011 effec-
tive tax rate also differs from the federal statutory rate due
to the favorable impact of lower taxes on our foreign oper-
ations, estimated tax credits for research and
experimentation, the favorable effect of the domestic
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production deduction, and other permanent differences.
Taxes on our foreign operations are lower than in the U.S.
because of lower statutory tax rates and increased
deductions for tax purposes in foreign jurisdictions that are
not recognized as expenses for book purposes. These
reductions were partially offset by the unfavorable impact
of nondeductible transaction costs incurred to facilitate the
2011 acquisitions of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO, addi-
tional tax expense on repatriation of foreign earnings, and
state income taxes.

The effective tax rate for 2010 was reduced from the
federal statutory rate by the release of a net amount of $6.8
million in previously provided income tax expense on
uncertain tax positions resulting from the conclusion of an
audit with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and
the expiration of the statute of limitations for certain tax
returns. The 2010 effective tax rate was further reduced
from the federal statutory rate by the impact of lower taxes
on our foreign operations, federal and state tax credits, and
permanent differences, including the domestic production
deduction. Partially offsetting these tax rate reductions
were state income taxes, additional tax expense on repa-
triated earnings from certain of our foreign locations, and
the tax impact of writing off the deferred tax asset related
to the Medicare Part D subsidy in accordance with 2010
legislation which made the previously exempt subsidy
subject to federal income tax beginning in 2013.

Income from continuing operations in 2011 was $49.7
million, or $1.01 per diluted share, compared to $41.4
million, or $0.85 per diluted share, in 2010.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Operating income $ – $ 1,031
Gain on disposal – 11,941

Income from discontinued
operations before income taxes – 12,972

Income tax expense – 7,174

Income from discontinued
operations $ – $ 5,798

The results of discontinued operations in 2010 reflect the
pre-disposition operating results and the gain on sale of
Gear Products. Under terms of the stock purchase agree-
ment, the parties agreed to treat the stock sale as if it were
an asset sale for income tax purposes, which resulted in an
increase in the income tax expense we recognized on
the sale.

Net income in 2011 was $49.7 million, or $1.01 per
diluted share, compared to $47.2 million, or $0.97 per
diluted share, in 2010.

Segment Results.
The following table reflects results by segment for 2011

and 2010.

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010
Percent
Change

Sales:
Forestry, lawn, and garden
sales to external customers $659,883 $554,053 19.1%

Forestry, lawn, and garden
intersegment sales 751 1,040 (27.8)%

Farm, ranch, and agriculture
sales to external customers 147,475 34,200 331.2%

Farm, ranch, and agriculture
intersegment sales 50 – –

Corporate and other 24,272 23,227 4.5%
Elimination of intersegment
sales (801) (1,040) (23.0)%

Total sales $831,630 $611,480 36.0%

Operating income
(expense):
Forestry, lawn, and garden $115,597 $104,113 11.0%
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 4,474 1,671 167.7%
Corporate and other (22,118) (20,229) 9.3%

Total operating income $ 97,953 $ 85,555 14.5%

Forestry, Lawn, and Garden Segment. Sales in the FLAG
segment increased $105.8 million, or 19.1%, from 2010 to
2011. The recent acquisitions of KOX and the FLAG por-
tion of the PBL business contributed $27.4 million of
incremental sales in the year ended December 31, 2011.
Excluding the effect of these acquisitions, unit sales vol-
ume increased by $56.7 million or 10.2%. Changes in
average selling prices and product mix increased FLAG
sales revenue by $15.6 million on a year-over-year basis,
excluding acquisitions. The translation of foreign
currency-denominated sales transactions increased FLAG
sales by $6.2 million in 2011 compared to 2010, given the
relatively weaker U.S. Dollar in comparison to most for-
eign currencies. Excluding the effects of recent acquis-
itions, sales of forestry products were up 16.0% and sales
of lawn and garden products were up 4.4%. Excluding the
effects of recent acquisitions, sales to OEMs were up 6.7%
while sales to the replacement market increased 14.2%.
For the year 2011, sales to OEMs accounted for 21.0% of
FLAG sales.

Sales order backlog for the FLAG segment at
December 31, 2011 was $182.4 million compared to
$126.0 million at December 31, 2010. Included in the
backlog as of December 31, 2011 is $9.7 million related to
PBL. KOX generally fills orders as received and therefore
does not have sales order backlog.
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The contribution to operating income from the FLAG
segment increased $11.5 million, or 11.0%, from 2010 to
2011. Higher unit sales volume, including sales of recently
acquired businesses, as well as price and mix improve-
ments, positively affected the FLAG contribution to
operating income. Partially offsetting these favorable fac-
tors were an increase in steel costs estimated at $3.8 mil-
lion, an increase in acquisition accounting effects of $2.9
million, increased SG&A expenses of $20.2 million,
including $7.4 million attributable to the recent acquis-
itions, and the net unfavorable movement in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates, which reduced contribution to
operating income for the FLAG segment by an estimated
$4.4 million.

Farm, Ranch, and Agriculture Segment. The FRAG segment
results in 2010 reflect the activity of SpeeCo from the
acquisition date of August 10, 2010 to the end of the year.
In 2011, the FRAG segment results include the full year
activity of SpeeCo, plus the incremental activity associated
with the FRAG portion of the PBL business from the
acquisition date of August 5, 2011 to the end of the year,
and the activity of Woods/TISCO from the acquisition date
of September 7, 2011 to the end of the year. Sales in the
FRAG segment increased $113.3 million, or 331.2% from
2010 to 2011, driven by these three acquisitions. The
incremental sales from SpeeCo for a full year versus a
partial year in 2010, and all of the 2011 sales of Woods/
TISCO and the PBL FRAG business, were $105.2 million.
For the comparable periods of ownership of SpeeCo from

August through December, FRAG sales increased by $8.1
million, or 23.6%, on a year-over-year basis. This increase
reflected increased unit volume in the SpeeCo business of
$6.9 million, as well as $1.2 million from improved aver-
age selling prices and product mix.

Sales order backlog for the FRAG segment at
December 31, 2011 was $28.3 million compared to $6.7
million at December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily
due to the acquisitions of PBL and Woods/TISCO.

The contribution to operating income from the FRAG
segment increased $2.8 million, or 167.7%, from 2010 to
2011. Higher unit sales volume, including sales of recently
acquired businesses, as well as increases in average selling
prices and product mix, positively affected the FRAG
contribution to operating income. Partially offsetting these
favorable factors were increased acquisition accounting
effects of $7.9 million and increased SG&A expenses of
$14.7 million, including $12.2 million attributable to
Woods/TISCO, PBL, and the full year effect of SpeeCo
compared to the partial year ownership in 2010.

Corporate and Other. Sales of concrete cutting products
increased 4.5% from 2010 to 2011, reflecting stronger
sales in Europe. Contribution to operating income was
$1.9 million lower, reflecting increases in corporate
SG&A expenses of $2.1 million and an increase in results
of the concrete cutting business of $0.2 million. The
increase in corporate SG&A expenses was driven largely
by increased costs of professional services, primarily
related to the Company’s acquisition program.
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Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009
(Amounts in millions) 2010 2009 Change Contributing Factor

(Amounts may not sum due to rounding)

Sales $ 611.5 $ 487.4 $ 124.1
$ 126.5 Sales volume, including

acquisitions
(2.3) Selling price and mix
(0.1) Foreign currency translation

Gross profit 204.0 165.5 38.5
Gross margin 33.4% 34.0% 39.4 Sales volume

(2.3) Selling price and mix
10.8 Product cost and mix
(9.4) Foreign currency translation

SG&A 118.5 106.8 11.7
As a percent of sales 19.4% 21.9% 2.9 SG&A of recent acquisitions

8.6 Compensation expense
3.9 Strategic initiatives
3.6 Advertising

(8.6) Litigation settlement, refinancing
costs, and CEO transition costs
incurred in 2009

0.5 Foreign currency translation
0.8 Other, net

Gain on sale of land and building – (2.7) 2.7

Plant closure and severance costs – 6.9 (6.9)

Operating income 85.6 54.5 31.0
Operating margin 14.0% 11.2% 38.5 Increase in gross profit

(11.7) Increase in SG&A
4.2 Change in other operating items

Income from continuing operations 41.4 21.9 19.5
31.0 Increase in operating income
(1.0) Increase in net interest expense
(7.7) Change in other income

(expense)
(2.9) Increase in income tax provision

Income from discontinued operations 5.8 1.0 4.8
(0.6) Operating results
11.9 Gain on sale of subsidiary
(6.6) Income taxes

Net income $ 47.2 $ 23.0 $ 24.2

Sales increased $124.1 million (25.5%) from 2009 to
2010, primarily due to significantly higher unit volume,
including the addition of $34.2 million in sales from
SpeeCo, which was acquired in August 2010. The volume
increase was partially offset by slightly lower average sell-
ing prices and product mix. Excluding the effects of
SpeeCo, total sales were up $89.9 million (18.4%).
International sales increased $80.8 million (24.1%) and
domestic sales increased $9.1 million (6.0%), excluding
the effects of SpeeCo. For 2010, excluding the effects of
SpeeCo, sales increased by 34.5% in the Asia Pacific
region, 26.0% in South America, 19.4% in Europe and
Russia, and 5.9%, in North America.

Gross profit increased $38.5 million (23.3%) from 2009
to 2010. Higher sales unit volume increased gross profit by
$39.4 million on a year-over-year basis, including the
effects of SpeeCo. Improved product cost and mix
increased gross profit by $10.8 million on a year-over-year
basis, including the $3.8 million estimated effect of lower
average steel costs, as well as increased manufacturing
efficiencies and cost absorption resulting from sharply
higher production volumes compared to the prior year.
Slightly lower average selling prices and product mix
reduced gross profit by $2.3 million. Fluctuations in cur-
rency exchange rates decreased our gross profit in 2010
compared to 2009 by $9.4 million on a consolidated basis.
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The translation of stronger foreign currencies in Brazil and
Canada into a relatively weaker U.S. Dollar resulted in
higher reported manufacturing costs. Gross margin in 2010
was 33.4% of sales compared to 34.0% in 2009. The
decline in gross margin from 2009 is primarily the result of
relatively lower average gross margins of SpeeCo and the
related acquisition accounting effects.

SG&A was $118.5 million in 2010 compared to $106.8
million in 2009, representing a year-over-year increase of
$11.7 million (11.0%). As a percent of sales, SG&A
decreased from 21.9% in 2009 to 19.4% in 2010.
Incremental SG&A expense incurred at SpeeCo added
$2.9 million in 2010. Excluding SpeeCo, compensation
expense increased by $8.6 million from 2009 to 2010,
reflecting increased headcount, increased variable
compensation due to improved operating results, higher
stock-based compensation expense, and merit raises
implemented for most of our salaried employees in March
of 2010. Incremental expenses of $3.9 million were
incurred in SG&A in 2010 related to our strategic ini-
tiatives, including projects to improve manufacturing and
supply chain efficiency, as well as our acquisition pro-
gram. Advertising expense was $3.6 million higher in
2010 than in 2009, reflecting increased marketing efforts
on new product releases and other advertising after our
reduced level of advertising expenditures in 2009. Partially
offsetting these increases was the non-recurrence of
charges in 2009 totaling $8.6 million for settlement of a
litigation matter, fees associated with the Company’s
December refinancing activities, and costs associated with
the transition of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
position. The translation of generally stronger foreign
currencies into a weaker U.S. Dollar resulted in an
increase in reported international SG&A expenses of $0.5
million from the prior year.

On June 25, 2009, we sold the land and building for-
merly occupied by our European headquarters and dis-
tribution center. These operations have moved to new,
nearby leased facilities. We recognized a pre-tax gain of
$2.7 million on the sale.

During the second quarter of 2009, we closed our cutting
chain manufacturing plant in Milan, Tennessee. Products
previously manufactured in that facility are now produced
in our other facilities. During 2009, we recognized a total
of $3.8 million in charges related to the closure of this
manufacturing plant, consisting of $2.0 million in asset
impairment charges, $1.0 million in employee severance
and benefit costs, and $0.8 million in other expenses. Of
these charges, $0.3 million is included in cost of goods
sold and $3.5 million is included in plant closure and sev-
erance costs in the 2009 Consolidated Statements of
Income. The land and building were included in assets
held for sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of

December 31, 2010 and were sold in December 2011. We
also took actions during 2009 to reduce the number of
employees at certain of our other locations, recognizing
and paying a total of $3.4 million in severance charges
during 2009 related to this reduction in force.

Operating income increased by $31.0 million
(56.9%) from 2009 to 2010, resulting in an operating
margin for 2010 of 14.0% of sales compared to 11.2% for
2009. The increased operating income was due to higher
gross profit and the non-recurrence of 2009 plant closure
and severance costs. Partially offsetting these increases
were increased SG&A expense and the non-recurrence of
the 2009 gain recognized on the sale of land and building
in Europe.

Interest expense was $25.6 million in 2010 compared to
$24.7 million in 2009. The increase was primarily due to
incremental interest expense incurred prior to the
redemption of our 8 7/8% senior subordinated notes. We
incurred interest on $175.0 million borrowed under our
new credit facilities and deposited with the trustee for the 8
7/8% notes for thirty days, while the notes continued to
bear interest until the mandatory redemption waiting
period expired and they could be repaid. Our variable
interest rates on the revolving and term loans were higher
in the beginning of 2010, following the increases in our
interest rate premiums in conjunction with the amend-
ments we completed in August and December of 2009.

Other income (expense), net was a net expense of $7.4
million in 2010 compared to income of $0.2 million in
2009. The 2010 expense is primarily attributable to
charges totaling $7.0 million related to our August 2010
refinancing transactions. These charges included the write
off of unamortized deferred financing costs of $3.5 mil-
lion, as well as transaction and legal fees of $3.5 million.
The net other income in 2009 is largely attributable to
gains on the sale of marketable securities.

The following table summarizes our income tax provi-
sion for continuing operations in 2010 and 2009:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2010 2009

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes $ 52,611 $ 30,266

Provision for income taxes 11,209 8,321

Income from continuing operations $ 41,402 $ 21,945

Effective tax rate 21.3% 27.5%

The effective tax rate for 2010 was reduced from the
federal statutory rate by the release of a net amount of $6.8
million in previously provided income tax expense on
uncertain tax positions resulting from the conclusion of an
audit with the U.S. IRS and the expiration of the statute of
limitations for certain tax returns. The 2010 effective tax
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rate was further reduced from the federal statutory rate by
the impact of lower taxes on our foreign operations,
federal and state tax credits, and permanent differences,
including the domestic production deduction. Partially
offsetting these tax rate reductions were state income tax-
es, additional tax expense on repatriated earnings from
certain of our foreign locations, and the tax impact of writ-
ing off the deferred tax asset related to the Medicare Part
D subsidy in accordance with 2010 legislation which made
the previously exempt subsidy subject to federal income
tax beginning in 2013.

The Company sponsors various post-employment retiree
medical benefit plans for certain employees in the U.S.
The Company receives a Medicare Part D subsidy for a
portion of the cost of providing prescription drug benefits
under its retiree medical benefit plan. In March of 2010,
new legislation was signed into law in the U.S. that makes
this subsidy fully subject to federal income tax beginning
in 2013. Previously, this subsidy was essentially exempt
from federal income tax. Accordingly, the Company
recognized a charge of $1.7 million to income tax expense
in 2010, reflecting the write-off of the deferred tax asset
related to this subsidy.

The effective tax rate for 2009 was reduced from the
federal statutory rate by the impact of lower taxes on our
foreign operations and the positive effect from finalization
of our Advance Pricing Agreement (“APA”) with Canada
and the U.S. Finalization of the APA resulted in the
recognition of interest on refunds from prior years. Addi-
tionally, our effective tax rate in 2009 was reduced by
federal and state tax credits. Partially offsetting these tax
rate reductions were additional tax expenses recognized on
interest and dividends repatriated from certain of our for-
eign locations.

Income from continuing operations in 2010 was $41.4
million, or $0.85 per diluted share, compared to $21.9
million, or $0.46 per diluted share, in 2009.

Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2010 2009

Operating income $ 1,031 $1,667
Gain on disposal 11,941 –

Income from discontinued
operations before income
taxes 12,972 1,667

Income tax expense 7,174 619

Income from discontinued
operations $ 5,798 $1,048

Income from discontinued operations in the preceding
table reflects the operating results of Gear Products and the
gain on sale from the disposition on September 30, 2010.
Under terms of the stock purchase agreement, the parties
agreed to treat the stock sale as if it were an asset sale for
income tax purposes, which resulted in an increase in the
income tax expense we recognized on the sale.

Segment Results.
The following table reflects results by segment for 2010

and 2009.

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2010 2009
Percent
Change

Sales:
Forestry, lawn, and garden
sales to external customers $554,053 $467,845 18.4%

Forestry, lawn, and garden
intersegment sales 1,040 762 36.5%

Farm, ranch, and agriculture 34,200 – –
Corporate and other 23,227 19,521 19.0%
Elimination of intersegment
sales (1,040) (762) 36.5%

Total sales $611,480 $487,366 25.5%

Operating income
(expense):
Forestry, lawn, and garden $104,113 $ 74,792 39.2%
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 1,671 – –
Corporate and other (20,229) (20,266) (0.2)%

Total operating income $ 85,555 $ 54,526 56.9%

Forestry, Lawn, and Garden Segment. Sales in the FLAG
segment increased $86.2 million, or 18.4%, from 2009 to
2010. Unit sales volume increased by $86.9 million, or
18.6%, primarily due to improved market conditions and
increased demand for our products following the generally
poor market conditions and reduced sales levels we
experienced in 2009 during the world-wide economic
downturn. Changes in average selling prices and product
mix decreased FLAG sales revenue by $0.8 million on a
year-over-year basis, primarily because the proportion of
sales to OEMs increased in 2010 compared to 2009. OEM
sales are typically made at lower prices than replacement
market sales, and OEM sales accounted for 23.7% of 2010
FLAG sales compared with 22.7% in 2009. Sales of for-
estry products were up 21.6% and sales of lawn and gar-
den products were up 3.7%.
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Sales order backlog for the FLAG segment at
December 31, 2010 was $126.0 million compared to $77.4
million at December 31, 2009.

The contribution to operating income from the FLAG
segment increased $29.3 million, or 39.2%, from 2009 to
2010. Higher unit sales volume and improved product cost
and mix resulted in the increased profitability. Partially
offsetting these favorable factors were the reduction in
average selling prices and product mix attributable to the
shift in sales channel to more proportionate OEM sales, an
increase in FLAG SG&A of $1.8 million, including
increased advertising expenditures, and the $9.7 million
net unfavorable effects from movements in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates. Cost of goods sold in 2010 included
non-cash acquisition accounting charges of $1.8 million
related to Carlton.

Farm, Ranch, and Agriculture Segment. The FRAG segment
results in 2010 reflect the activity of SpeeCo from the
acquisition date of August 10, 2010 to the end of the year.
Cost of goods sold in 2010 included non-cash acquisition
accounting charges of $3.4 million related to SpeeCo. We
had no operations in the FRAG segment prior to 2010.
Sales order backlog for the FRAG segment at
December 31, 2010 was $6.7 million.

Corporate and Other. Sales of concrete cutting products
increased 19.0% from 2009 to 2010, reflecting improved
conditions in the construction equipment markets in both
Europe and North America. Contribution to operating
income from the Corporate and Other category was essen-
tially flat from 2009 to 2010, reflecting an increase in
corporate SG&A expenses of $0.3 million offset by an
increase in contribution to operating income from our
concrete cutting and finishing business.

Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources
Our debt has fluctuated significantly in recent years due

to additional borrowings to fund acquisitions, repayments
from operating cash flows, and repayments from the pro-
ceeds of the sale of Gear Products. We have also under-
taken several refinancing transactions which have affected
our borrowing capacity, borrowing rates, financial cove-
nants, and other terms as further described below. General
economic conditions and conditions in financial and credit
markets have also significantly affected the terms of our
debt, including the interest rates we pay.

Long-term debt is summarized as follows:

As of December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Revolving credit facility borrowings $ 228,200 $ –
Term loans 296,250 350,000
Debt of PBL 5,912 –

Total debt 530,362 350,000
Less current maturities (20,348) (10,250)

Long-term debt, net of current
maturities $ 510,014 $ 339,750

Weighted average interest rate at end
of period 2.85% 5.14%

Senior Credit Facilities. The Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., maintains a senior credit
facility with General Electric Capital Corporation as Agent
for the Lenders and also as a lender, which has been
amended and restated on several occasions, including an
amendment and restatement on August 9, 2010, an
amendment on January 28, 2011, and an amendment and
restatement on June 13, 2011. As of December 31, 2011,
the senior credit facilities consisted of a revolving credit
facility and a term loan.

August 2010 Third Amendment and Restatement of Senior Credit
Facilities. On August 9, 2010, the Company entered into
the Third Amendment and Restatement of its senior credit
facilities that included the following key terms:
❚ Maximum borrowings under the revolving credit facility

were increased from $60.0 million to $75.0 million and
the maturity date was extended to August 2015.

❚ The term loan B facility was increased to $275.0 million
and the maturity date was extended to August 2016.

❚ The interest rates on the revolving credit facility and the
term loan B were modified.

❚ A term loan A facility was established at $75.0 million
with a maturity date of August 2015.

❚ Certain financial and other covenants were amended and
revised.

❚ The Company paid $6.3 million in fees and transaction
costs in connection with this amendment.
The Company used the $350.0 million combined pro-

ceeds of the two term loans to repay the principal out-
standing under its previous term loan B facility and its 8
7/8% senior subordinated notes originally due August 1,
2012. These 8 7/8% senior subordinated notes were
redeemed in full on September 16, 2010, following the
expiration of the required redemption notification period.
In conjunction with the redemption of the 8 7/8% senior
subordinated notes and the repayment of principal on the
previous term loan B, the Company expensed $3.5 million
in unamortized deferred financing costs.
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January 2011 Amendment of Senior Credit Facilities. On
January 28, 2011, the senior credit facility was amended to
facilitate a foreign subsidiary reorganization and to allow
additional flexibility for movement of foreign cash and for
making foreign acquisitions.

June 2011 Fourth Amendment and Restatement of Senior Credit
Facilities. On June 13, 2011, the Company entered into the
Fourth Amendment and Restatement of its senior credit
facilities that included the following key terms, effective
upon the initial funding date of August 9, 2011:
❚ Maximum borrowings under the revolving credit facility

were increased from $75.0 million to $400.0 million and
the maturity date was extended to August 31, 2016.

❚ A new $300.0 million term loan facility was established
with a maturity date of August 31, 2016 and the existing
term loans A and B were paid in full on August 9, 2011.

❚ The interest rates on the revolving credit facility and the
term loan were reduced as described below.

❚ Certain financial and other covenants were amended and
revised. The covenant limiting maximum capital
expenditures to $42.5 million within a calendar year was
eliminated. The maximum leverage ratio was modified
as described below. Other covenant modifications were
made to increase maximum amounts allowed for acquis-
ition transactions and indebtedness, including inter-
company indebtedness.

❚ The Company paid $6.5 million in fees and transaction
costs in connection with the Fourth Amendment and
Restatement. On the initial funding date the Company
expensed $3.9 million, consisting of unamortized
deferred financing costs as well as certain fees and
transaction costs associated with this amendment.
Current Terms of Senior Credit Facilities. The revolving credit

facility provides for total available borrowings of up to
$400.0 million, reduced by outstanding letters of credit,
and further restricted by a specific leverage ratio. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company had the ability to bor-
row an additional $163.9 million under the terms of the
revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit facility
bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50% or at an index rate, as
defined in the credit agreement, plus 1.50%, and matures
on August 31, 2016. Interest is payable on the individual
maturity dates for each LIBOR-based borrowing and
monthly on index rate-based borrowings. Any outstanding
principal is due in its entirety on the maturity date.

The term loan facility also bears interest at LIBOR plus
2.50% or at the index rate plus 1.50% and matures on
August 31, 2016. The term loan facility requires quarterly
principal payments of $3.8 million commencing on
October 1, 2011, with a final payment of $225.0 million

due on the maturity date. Once repaid, principal under the
term loan facility may not be re-borrowed.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenants relating to:
❚ Minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.15, defined as

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amor-
tization, and certain adjustments defined in the credit
agreement (“Adjusted EBITDA”) divided by cash
payments for interest, taxes, capital expenditures,
scheduled debt principal payments, and certain other
items, calculated on a trailing twelve-month basis.

❚ Maximum leverage ratio, defined as total debt divided
by Adjusted EBITDA, calculated on a trailing twelve-
month basis. The maximum leverage ratio is set at 4.25
through December 31, 2011, 4.00 through June 30,
2012, 3.75 through December 31, 2012, 3.50 through
September 30, 2013, 3.25 through March 31, 2014, and
3.00 thereafter.
The status of financial covenants was as follows:

Financial Covenants Requirement December 31, 2011

Minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio 1.15 1.53

Maximum leverage ratio 4.25 3.26

In addition, there are covenants or restrictions relating to
acquisitions, investments, loans and advances, indebted-
ness, dividends on our stock, the sale of stock or assets,
and other categories. We were in compliance with all
financial covenants as of December 31, 2011.
Non-compliance with these covenants, if it were to
become an event of default under the terms of the credit
agreement, could result in severe limitations to our overall
liquidity, and the term loan lenders could require immedi-
ate repayment of outstanding amounts, potentially requir-
ing sale of a sufficient amount of our assets to repay the
outstanding loans.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional man-
datory repayment requirements related to the sale of
Company assets, the issuance of stock under certain cir-
cumstances, or upon the Company’s annual generation of
excess cash flow, as determined under the credit agree-
ment. Our debt is not subject to any triggers that would
require early payment due to any adverse change in our
credit rating.

Our senior credit facility debt is incurred by our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc. Blount International, Inc.
and all of its domestic subsidiaries other than Blount, Inc.
guarantee Blount, Inc.’s obligations under the senior credit
facilities. The obligations under the senior credit facilities
are collateralized by a first priority security interest in
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substantially all of the assets of Blount, Inc. and its domes-
tic subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s
capital stock held by Blount International, Inc. and all of
the stock of domestic subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc.
Blount, Inc. has also pledged 65% of the stock of its direct
non-domestic subsidiaries as additional collateral.

Our senior credit facility debt instruments and general
credit are rated by both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s.
There were no changes to these ratings during 2011. As of
December 31, 2011, the credit ratings for the Company
were as follows:

Standard & Poor’s Moody’s

Senior credit facility BB-/Stable Ba3/Stable
General credit rating BB-/Stable Ba3/Stable

Debt of PBL. In conjunction with the acquisition of PBL
we assumed $13.5 million of PBL’s debt, consisting of
current and long-term bank obligations, revolving credit
facilities, and $0.6 million in capital lease obligations.
Certain components of this debt are secured by certain of
PBL’s assets. Certain of PBL’s bank obligations include
prepayment penalty terms. During 2011, we repaid $7.8
million of PBL’s debt and we intend to retire PBL’s
remaining debt, other than its capital leases, during 2012.
Therefore, PBL’s bank debt is classified as current as of
December 31, 2011 in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

We intend to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, debt service requirements, repayment of
PBL’s debt, and obligations under our post-retirement
benefit plans for the next twelve months through cash and
cash equivalents, expected cash flows generated from
operations, and amounts available under our revolving
credit agreement. We expect our financial resources will
be sufficient to cover any additional increases in working
capital, capital expenditures, and acquisitions; however,
there can be no assurance that these resources will be
sufficient to meet our needs, particularly if we make sig-
nificant acquisitions. We may also consider other options
available to us in connection with future liquidity needs,
including, but not limited to, the postponement of discre-
tionary contributions to post-retirement benefit plans,
the postponement of capital expenditures, restructuring
of our credit facilities, and issuance of new debt or
equity securities.

Our interest expense may vary in the future because the
revolving credit facility and term loan interest rates are
variable. The Fourth Amendment and Restatement of our
senior credit facilities include a requirement to cover 35%
of the outstanding principal on our term loan with fixed or
capped interest rates, and we entered into interest rate cap
and swap agreements in the fourth quarter of 2011 to meet
this requirement. See further discussion of these agree-
ments in Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

about Market Risk. The weighted average interest rate on
all debt was 2.85% as of December 31, 2011 and 5.14% as
of December 31, 2010.

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2011 were
$62.1 million compared to $80.7 million at December 31,
2010. As of December 31, 2011, $61.7 million of our cash
and cash equivalents was held at our foreign locations.

Cash provided by operating activities is summarized in
the following table:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Net income $ 49,682 $ 47,200 $ 22,993
Non-cash items 50,258 27,578 31,088

Subtotal 99,940 74,778 54,081
Changes in assets and
liabilities, net (21,873) (18,900) (369)

Discontinued operations,
net (334) (6,712) 3,469

Net cash provided by
operating activities $ 77,733 $ 49,166 $ 57,181

Non-cash items consist of income from discontinued
operations; early extinguishment of debt; depreciation;
amortization of intangible assets; stock compensation;
other non-cash charges; the excess tax benefit or expense
from stock-based compensation; deferred income taxes;
changes in uncertain tax positions, and gain or loss on
disposal of assets. Net changes in assets and liabilities
consist of those changes in assets and liabilities included in
the cash flows from operating activities section of the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

2011 net cash provided by operating activities of $77.7
million reflected the following significant items:
❚ Net income of $49.7 million for a year-over-year

increase from 2010 of $2.5 million, reflecting improved
operating results and lower interest expense partially
offset by higher income taxes.

❚ A charge of $3.9 million for early extinguishment of
debt, resulting from our August 2011 refinancing trans-
actions.

❚ Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment totaling
$23.5 million, an increase of $2.5 million from 2010,
reflecting the additional depreciation of our recently
acquired businesses as well as an increase in capital
expenditures. We expect depreciation expense to
increase in the near term due to further planned increases
in capital expenditures.

❚ Amortization of intangible assets of $11.3 million, an
increase of $6.9 million from 2010 due to the acquis-
itions of KOX, PBL and Woods/TISCO during 2011,
and a full year of amortization for SpeeCo, acquired in
August 2010.
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❚ Stock compensation of $4.4 million compared to $3.3
million in 2010.

❚ Other non-cash charges of $6.0 million, including acquis-
ition accounting charges related to adjustments to fair
value of inventory and property, plant, and equipment
totaling $4.3 million, and amortization of deferred
financing costs of $1.0 million.

❚ An increase in accounts receivable of $12.1 million,
reflecting increased sales in the fourth quarter of 2011
compared with the fourth quarter of 2010, including the
effect of sales from our 2011 acquisitions.

❚ An increase of $6.6 million in accounts payable and
accrued expenses, primarily the result of higher accrued
taxes and an unrealized loss on derivative instruments.

❚ A decrease in other liabilities of $16.4 million, primarily
from cash contributions made to our post-retirement
benefit plan obligations.
2010 net cash provided by operating activities of $49.2

million reflected the following significant items:
❚ Net income of $47.2 million, less the income generated

by discontinued operations of $5.8 million, for a year-
over-year increase from 2009 of $19.5 million, reflecting
improved operating results from continuing operations.

❚ A charge of $7.0 million for early extinguishment of
debt, resulting from our August 2010 refinancing trans-
actions.

❚ Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment totaling
$21.0 million, an increase of $1.5 million from 2009,
reflecting the addition of SpeeCo for part of the year and
increased capital expenditures.

❚ Amortization of intangible assets of $4.4 million, an
increase of $2.9 million from 2009 due to the acquisition
of SpeeCo, partially offset by reduced amortization
related to Carlton.

❚ Stock compensation expense of $3.3 million compared
to $1.6 million in 2009.

❚ Other non-cash charges of $3.0 million, including $2.2
million in amortization of deferred financing costs.

❚ A benefit from the change in uncertain tax positions of
$7.8 million due to the expiration of statutes on open
tax years.

❚ An increase in inventories of $6.8 million, reflecting
increased production levels and anticipated sales growth
in the following year.

❚ A net decrease of $3.2 million in accounts payable and
accrued expenses, primarily the result of the timing of
year-end disbursements.

❚ A decrease in other liabilities of $11.7 million, primarily
from cash contributions made to our post-retirement
benefit plan obligations.

❚ A net cash outflow for discontinued operations of $6.7
million, representing income taxes paid on the gain from
the sale of Gear Products, partially offset by positive
cash flow from operating Gear Products up to the date
of sale.
2009 net cash provided by operating activities of $57.2

million reflected the following significant items:
❚ Net income of $23.0 million, less income from dis-

continued operations of $1.0 million.
❚ Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment totaling

$19.5 million.
❚ Amortization of intangible assets of $1.5 million related

to Carlton.
❚ Stock compensation of $1.6 million.
❚ Other non-cash charges of $8.2 million including

$4.1 million in amortization of deferred financing costs
and an asset impairment charge of $2.0 million
recognized when we closed our manufacturing plant in
Milan, Tennessee.

❚ A gain on disposal of assets of $2.5 million, primarily
related to the sale of land and a building in Europe.

❚ A decrease in inventories of $12.4 million, reflecting
reduced production levels and an increase in order intake
and product shipments experienced in the latter part
of 2009.

❚ A net decrease of $6.8 million in accounts payable and
accrued expenses, primarily due to a reduced level of
accrued expenses at the end of 2009 and the timing of
year-end disbursements.

❚ A decrease of $5.2 million in other liabilities, primarily
related to cash contributions made to our post-retirement
benefit plan obligations.

❚ A net cash inflow from discontinued operations of $3.5
million, representing positive cash flow from operating
Gear Products.
Cash contributions for pension and post-retirement bene-

fit plans were $21.2 million in 2011, $19.9 million in
2010, and $18.0 million in 2009. Funding requirements for
post-retirement benefit plans can fluctuate significantly
from year to year. See further discussion following under
“Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” The Com-
pany intends to make contributions to our pension plans in
2012 of approximately $16 million to $18 million, includ-
ing a voluntary contribution to the U.S. pension plan of
$10 million. The amount of contributions required in sub-
sequent years will depend, in part, on future investment
returns on plan assets. The obligations under our other
post-retirement benefit plans in the U.S. are made on a
pay-as-you-go basis and we expect to pay between $2.8
million and $3.2 million in 2012 for these plans. We also
make cash contributions to our U.S. 401(k) plan. We
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contributed $5.4 million in 2011, $5.0 million in 2010, and
$4.7 million in 2009 to this plan. We expect to contribute
between $6.8 million and $7.3 million to the 401(k) plan
in 2012.

Cash used in investing activities is summarized
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Purchases of property,
plant, and equipment,
net of proceeds from
sale of assets $ (39,406) $ (19,843) $ (13,428)

Acquisitions, net of cash
acquired (217,362) (90,854) –

Discontinued operations – 25,176 (575)

Net cash used in investing
activities $ (256,768) $ (85,521) $ (14,003)

In 2011 we used $256.8 million of net cash in investing
activities. The purchase of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO
used $217.4 million in cash, net of cash acquired. In 2010
we used $85.5 million of net cash in investing activities.
The purchase of SpeeCo used $90.9 million, net of cash
acquired. We also sold Gear Products for $25.2 million in
initial proceeds during 2010. In 2009 we used $14.0 mil-
lion of net cash in investing activities. Discontinued oper-
ations used $0.6 million in cash for capital expenditures at
Gear Products.

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment are primar-
ily for productivity improvements, expanded manufactur-
ing capacity, and replacement of consumable tooling and
equipment. Generally, about one-third of our capital
spending has represented replacement of consumable tool-
ing, dies, and existing equipment, with the remainder
devoted to capacity and productivity improvements. Dur-
ing 2011, we invested $40.4 million in property, plant, and
equipment, compared to $20.0 million in 2010 and $16.7
million in 2009. The significant increase in 2011 reflects
the inclusion of activity at our recently acquired busi-
nesses, as well as the launching of a major project to
expand capacity in our manufacturing facility in Fuzhou,
China. During 2011, we also leased a larger facility in
Kansas City, Missouri and began moving from our pre-
vious distribution center to this new site. We expect our
purchases of property, plant, and equipment to increase to
between $45 million and $50 million during 2012 as we
complete and equip this new factory building at our Fuz-
hou, China site, modernize manufacturing facilities and
equipment in various locations, finish equipping our new
distribution center in Kansas City, Missouri, and begin a
project to construct a new manufacturing facility in East-
ern Europe.

We also sold assets for $1.0 million during 2011, includ-
ing our idle land and building in Milan, Tennessee. In
2009, we sold land and a building in Europe for $3.2 mil-
lion in proceeds.

Cash provided by financing activities is summarized as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Net borrowings under
revolving credit facility $ 228,200 $ (3,400) $(27,350)

Proceeds from issuance of
term debt 300,000 350,000 –

Repayment of term loan
principal (353,750) (107,465) (12,305)

Repayment of PBL debt
principal (7,813) – –

Repayment of 8 7/8% senior
subordinated notes – (175,000) –

Debt issuance costs (6,509) (6,267) (5,311)
Stock-based compensation
activity 1,651 3,405 (298)

Net cash provided by
financing activities $ 161,779 $ 61,273 $(45,264)

2011 activity included the Fourth Amendment and
Restatement of our senior credit facilities and the follow-
ing significant financing items:
❚ Net borrowing under the new revolving credit facility, of

$228.2 million.
❚ Borrowing $300.0 million under the new term

loan facility.
❚ Repayment of the previous term loan principal balances

outstanding on the initial funding date in the amount of
$342.3 million.

❚ Repayment of $7.7 million in additional term debt princi-
pal payments under the senior credit facilities.

❚ Repayment of principal outstanding under the new term
loan in the amount of $3.8 million.

❚ $6.5 million in debt issuance costs related to
the refinancing.

❚ Assumption of $13.5 million of PBL’s debt upon the
acquisition of that entity and subsequent repayment of
$7.8 million of such debt.

❚ $1.7 million of net cash provided by stock-based com-
pensation activity, including proceeds from the exercise
of stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) and the related
tax payments.
2010 activity included the Third Amendment and

Restatement of our senior credit facilities and the follow-
ing significant financing items:
❚ Borrowing $350.0 million under two new term loans.
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❚ Repayment of $107.5 million of principal outstanding on
our previous term loan B.

❚ Repayment of $175.0 million for the redemption of all
of our 8 7/8% senior subordinated notes.

❚ $6.3 million in debt issuance costs and costs to redeem
our 8 7/8% senior subordinated notes.

❚ The net repayment of all outstanding principal under our
revolving credit facility.

❚ $2.4 million of proceeds from stock-based compensation
and $1.0 million in related income taxes.

2009 activity included the following:
❚ Repayment of $27.4 million of revolver principal and

$12.3 million of term loan principal, utilizing cash
generated from operations.

❚ $5.3 million spent on 2009 refinancing activities to
amend and extend our senior credit facilities.

❚ $0.3 million of net cash outflow for taxes on stock-
based compensation, net of the related proceeds from
exercises by employees.

As of December 31, 2011, our contractual and estimated obligations are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands) Total 2012 2013-2014 2015-2016 Thereafter

Debt obligations (1) $ 530,362 $ 20,348 $ 30,376 $ 479,638 $ –
Estimated interest payments (2) 88,109 15,213 32,041 40,855 –
Purchase commitments (3) 1,322 1,322 – – –
Operating lease obligations (4) 45,101 6,375 11,614 7,895 19,217
Defined benefit pension obligations (5) 7,017 7,017 – – –
Other post-retirement obligations (6) 11,133 2,033 2,736 1,624 4,740
Other long-term liabilities (7) 345 270 75 – –

Total contractual obligations $ 683,389 $ 52,578 $ 76,842 $ 530,012 $ 23,957

(1) Scheduled minimum principal payments on debt and minimum required payments under capital leases. Additional voluntary prepayments may also be made
from time to time. Additional mandatory principal payments may be required under certain circumstances.

(2) Estimated future interest payments based on existing debt balances, timing of scheduled minimum principal payments, and estimated variable interest rates.
(3) Does not include amounts recorded as current liabilities on the balance sheet.
(4) See also Note 14 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(5) Current minimum funding requirements for defined benefit pension plans. These amounts do not include estimated future funding requirements for defined

benefit pension plans of approximately $12.0 million in 2012 and each year thereafter. Actual funding requirements may vary significantly from these
estimates based on actual return on assets, changes in assumptions, plan modifications, and actuarial gains and losses. See additional discussion of these key
assumptions and estimates under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” Additional voluntary funding payments may also be made, and the Company
intends to contribute between $16 and $18 million to these plans in 2012.

(6) Estimated payments for various non-qualified retirement benefits. The Company also has benefit payment obligations due under its post-retirement medical
plan that are not required to be funded in advance, but are pay-as-you-go, and are not included herein. See also Note 13 to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(7) Consulting fees for certain former officers of the Company.

As of December 31, 2011, our recorded liability for
uncertain tax positions was $8.2 million. Due to the high
degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential
future cash flows associated with uncertain tax positions,
we are unable to make a reasonable estimate of the
amounts and periods in which these remaining liabilities
might be paid. It is reasonably possible that the estimate
of uncertain tax positions could change materially in the
near term.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we did not have any

relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which would have been
established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited
purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any financing,

liquidity, market, or credit risk that could arise had we
engaged in such relationships.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial

condition and results of operations is based on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements that have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S.

The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, equity components, revenues,
and expenses. We base our estimates on historical experi-
ence and various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable and consistent with industry practice. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. We believe the following crit-
ical accounting policies affect our more significant
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judgments and estimates in the preparation of our Con-
solidated Financial Statements.

Sales Deductions. We record reductions to selling prices
as products are shipped. These reductions are based on
competitive and market conditions, promotional programs,
and specific customer contracts in some instances. Some
reductions are determined based on sales volumes or other
measurements not yet finalized at the time of shipment.
These reductions are estimated and recorded at the time of
shipment either through a reduction to the invoice total or
the establishment of a reserve or an accrual for settlement
at a later date. The amount reserved or accrued may
increase or decrease prior to payment due to customer
performance and market conditions.

Doubtful Accounts. We maintain an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses against our recorded
accounts receivable. Such allowance is based on an
ongoing review and analysis of customer payments against
terms, discussions with customers, and a review of
customers’ financial statements and conditions through
monitoring services. Based on these reviews and analyses,
the allowance is adjusted in the appropriate period when-
ever the estimated collectability of an account changes.
Additional allowances may be required based on future
events or as we obtain new information about our custom-
ers’ credit and financial situations.

Inventory Reserves. Specific industry market conditions
can significantly increase or decrease the level of
inventory on hand in any of our business units. We adjust
for changes in demand by reducing or increasing pro-
duction levels. We estimate the required inventory reserves
for excess or obsolete inventory by assessing inventory
turns and market selling prices on a product by product
basis. We maintain such reserves until a product is sold or
market conditions require a change in the reserves.

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets. We per-
form an annual analysis for impairment of goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives at the reporting
unit level. We also perform an impairment analysis of
goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets
whenever circumstances indicate that impairment may
have occurred. The impairment tests are performed in a
multi-step process, beginning with a review of qualitative
factors and business and market conditions to consider
whether or not impairment may be indicated. If the possi-
bility of impairment is indicated, further analysis is per-
formed by estimating the fair values of the reporting units
using a discounted projected cash flow model. We believe
the discounted projected cash flow model is an appropriate
valuation technique because these are established busi-
nesses with reasonably predictable future cash flows and
because it has been our experience that this technique is
generally used when valuing businesses in our industry.

However, the projected future cash flows are subject to
uncertainty and estimation and actual future cash flows
may differ significantly from these projections. For exam-
ple, many of the factors described in “Risk Factors” could
have a material adverse effect on these businesses and
their future cash flows. We compare the estimated fair
values based on discounted projected cash flows to the
carrying values of the reporting units, including goodwill
and other intangible assets. The sum of the fair values of
the reporting units is reconciled to our current market capi-
talization plus an estimated control premium. If the carry-
ing amount of any reporting unit’s goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets exceeds the implied fair
value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to that excess.

For the analysis performed for the year ended
December 31, 2011, we determined that there were no
indications of impairment to any of these assets. However,
events or changes in circumstances or business and market
conditions may occur in the future that could create under-
performance relative to projected future cash flows, which
could result in the recognition of future impairments.

Product Liability Costs. We incur expenses in connection
with product liability claims as a result of alleged product
malfunctions or defects. Under terms of the related divest-
iture agreements, we remain contractually obligated, as
between the buyer and us, to defend or settle product
liability claims for products manufactured during our
ownership period for certain discontinued operations. We
maintain insurance for a portion of these exposures and
record a liability for our estimated obligations. We esti-
mate our product liability obligations on a case by case
basis, in addition to a review of product performance
trends and consideration of the potential liability for claims
incurred but not yet reported or future claims on products
we have previously manufactured. These estimated obliga-
tions are frequently increased or decreased as more
information on specific cases becomes available or per-
formance trends change.

Environmental Remediation Costs. We incur expenses in
connection with compliance with environmental laws and
regulations for investigation, monitoring and, in certain
circumstances, remediation of environmental con-
tamination at our current and certain of our former operat-
ing locations. Under terms of the related divestiture
agreements, we remain contractually obligated, as between
the buyer and us, for certain environmental claims for any
contamination determined to have occurred during our
ownership period for certain discontinued operations. In
certain limited circumstances, we maintain insurance
coverage for a portion of this exposure. We record a
liability for our estimated obligations. We estimate our
environmental remediation obligations on a situation by
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situation basis. These estimated obligations may be
increased or decreased as more information on specific
situations becomes available.

Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Costs. We incur
expenses in connection with our self-insured program for
workers’ compensation costs covering certain of our
employees. Under terms of the related divestiture agree-
ments, we remain contractually obligated, as between the
buyer and us, for workers’ compensation claims for
injuries that occurred during our ownership period for
certain discontinued operations. We maintain insurance for
a portion of this exposure and record a liability for our
estimated obligations. We estimate our workers’
compensation obligations on a case by case basis, in addi-
tion to consideration of the potential liability for claims
incurred but not yet reported. These estimated obligations
are frequently increased or decreased as more information
on specific cases becomes available or performance
trends change.

Stock-Based Compensation. We determine the fair value of
stock-based compensation awards using the Black-Scholes
model. We use the simplified method described in
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 for estimated
lives of stock options and SARs. Assumptions for the
risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, and dividend
yield are based on historical information and yield manage-
ment estimates.

Post-Retirement Obligations. We determine our post-
retirement obligations on an actuarial basis that requires
management to make certain assumptions. These assump-
tions include the long-term rate of return on plan assets for
those plans that are funded, the discount rate to be used in
calculating the applicable benefit obligation, and the
anticipated inflation trend in future health care costs.
These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and
consideration is given to market conditions, applicable
indices, historical results, changes in regulations, as well
as to the requirements of Accounting Standards Codifica-
tion (“ASC”) 715.

The net post-retirement obligation is included in
employee benefit obligations on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The total post-retirement obligations are reduced
by the fair value of investment assets held in the related
pension plan trusts. These pension assets consist of owner-
ship interests in various mutual and commingled invest-
ment funds, which in turn hold investments in marketable
debt and equity instruments and other investment assets.
The fair value of these pension assets is determined in
accordance with ASC 820. We determine the fair value of
these assets by reference to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities, where available (level
1). Where level 1 market prices are not available, we uti-
lize significant observable inputs based on quoted prices

for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in markets that are not
active, and model-based valuations for which all sig-
nificant assumptions are observable (level 2). Finally, if
level 2 measurements are not available, we utilize sig-
nificant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or
no market activity that are significant to the fair value of
the assets or liabilities (level 3) to determine the fair values
of such pension assets.

The weighted average assumed rate of return on pension
plan assets was 7.7% for 2011. This assumed rate of return
on plan assets is based on long-term historical rates of
return achieved on similar investments, weighted in the
same proportion as our current target weighting, which is
50% equity securities, 48% debt securities and 2% other
for the U.S. plan, and 62% equities and 38% debt secu-
rities for the Canadian plan. To validate this assumption,
we obtained a study of historical rates of return for similar
investment categories that calculated actual returns for
randomly selected 20-year periods of time over a much
longer historical period. From this study, we determined
the range of most likely results. We believe this assumed
rate of return is reasonable given the asset composition,
long-term historic trends, and current economic and finan-
cial market conditions.

A weighted average discount rate assumption of 4.6%
was used to determine our plan liabilities at December 31,
2011, consisting of 4.25% for the U.S. plan and 5.50% for
the Canadian plan. The difference in discount rates
between the two plans is attributable to differences in the
relevant bond indices and market conditions between the
U.S. and Canada as of December 31, 2011. We believe
these discount rates are reasonable given comparable rates
for high quality corporate bonds with terms comparable to
the projected cash flows for our respective plans. To vali-
date this assumption, we obtained published indices for
such bonds and our assumed discount rate is consistent
with these indices. To further help establish an appropriate
discount rate, we obtained the weighted average rate of
return on hypothetical customized bond portfolios that
more closely match the expected cash outflows of our
benefit obligations. Our assumed discount rates are con-
sistent with these customized bond portfolio rates of return
and with the relevant indices for similar debt securities.

We have assumed that health care costs will increase by
10% in 2012, 9% in 2013, 8% in 2014, 7% in 2015, 6% in
2016, and 5% thereafter. This assumption is based on his-
torical rates of inflation for health care costs and expect-
ations for future increases in health care costs.

Our annual post-retirement expenses can be significantly
impacted by changes in these assumptions. For example, a
1% change in the return on assets assumption would
change annual pension expense by $1.9 million in 2012. A
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1% decrease in the discount rate would increase pension
expense by $3.4 million in 2012, and a 1% increase in the
discount rate would decrease pension expense by $2.8
million in 2012. A 1% increase in the health care cost
trend assumption for 2012 and beyond would increase
annual post-retirement medical costs by approximately
$0.2 million per year and a 1% decrease in the health care
cost trend assumption for 2012 and beyond would
decrease annual post-retirement medical costs by approx-
imately $0.2 million a year.

Uncertain Tax Positions. We account for uncertain tax posi-
tions in accordance with ASC 740-10, which specifies the
accounting treatment for uncertainty in income taxes. The
application of income tax law is inherently complex. Laws
and regulations in this area are voluminous and are often
ambiguous. As such, we are required to make many
assumptions and judgments regarding our income tax
exposures. Interpretations of income tax laws and regu-
lations and guidance surrounding them change over time.
Changes in our assumptions and judgments can materially
affect amounts recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax laws
and rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Included in recorded tax liabilities are
estimated amounts related to uncertain tax positions.
Actual tax liabilities may differ materially from these
estimates. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allow-
ances are established when necessary to reduce deferred
tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized. As of
December 31, 2011, we have a deferred tax asset valuation
allowance of $0.6 million related to state net operating loss
carryforwards.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on fair

value measurements and disclosures which will result in
common fair value measurement and disclosure require-
ments between U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Prin-
ciples and International Financial Reporting Standards.
The new guidance will be effective for us on January 1,
2012 and will result in enhanced footnote disclosures,
including those related to equity interests issued as consid-
eration for business combinations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on
offsetting (netting) assets and liabilities. For derivatives

and financial assets and liabilities, the new guidance
requires disclosure of gross asset and liability amounts,
amounts offset on the balance sheet, and amounts subject
to the offsetting requirements but not offset on the balance
sheet. The new guidance is effective for us on January 1,
2013 and will result in enhanced footnote disclosures
about balance sheet offsetting and related arrangements.

Forward Looking Statements
“Forward looking statements,” as defined by the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, used in this
report, including without limitation our “outlook,”
“guidance,” “expectations,” “intent,” “beliefs,” “plans,”
“indications,” “estimates,” “anticipations,” and their var-
iants, are based upon available information and upon
assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable;
however, these forward looking statements involve certain
risks and uncertainties, including those set forth in
Item 1A, Risk Factors, and should not be considered
indicative of actual results that the Company may achieve
in the future. Specifically, issues concerning foreign cur-
rency exchange rates, the cost to the Company of
commodities in general, and of steel in particular, the
anticipated level of applicable interest rates, tax rates,
discount rates, rates of return, management’s intentions
regarding debt repayments, capital expenditures, and con-
tributions to post-retirement benefit plans, and the antici-
pated effects of discontinued operations involve estimates
and assumptions. To the extent that these, or any other
such assumptions, are not realized going forward, or other
unforeseen factors arise, actual results for the periods
subsequent to the date of this report may differ materially.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest

rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and prices for
commodities such as steel and energy. We manage our
exposure to these market risks through our regular operat-
ing and financing activities, and, when deemed appro-
priate, through the use of derivative financial instruments.
When utilized, derivatives are used as risk management
tools and not for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk. We manage our ratio of fixed to varia-
ble rate debt with the objective of achieving a mix that
management believes is appropriate. We have, on occa-
sion, entered into interest rate swap agreements to
exchange fixed and variable interest rates based on agreed
upon notional amounts and interest rate cap agreements
that limit the maximum interest rate we can be charged on
variable interest rate debt. During 2010, we redeemed in
full our only fixed rate debt, the 8 7/8% senior sub-
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ordinated notes. As of December 31, 2011, all of our out-
standing debt is subject to variable interest rates. At
December 31, 2010, no derivative financial instruments
were outstanding to hedge interest rate risk on debt.
However, the Fourth Amendment and Restatement of our
senior credit facility requires that we enter into derivative
interest rate contracts to either fix or cap the interest rate
on a minimum of 35% of the variable rate term loan
principal outstanding. In October 2011, we entered into an
interest rate cap agreement covering an initial notional
amount of $103.7 million of term loan principal out-
standing that caps the maximum interest rate at 7.50%.
This cap is designated as a cash flow hedge and is
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value.
In October and November 2011, we also entered into a
series of interest rate swap contracts whereby the interest
rate we pay will be fixed at between 3.30% and 4.20% on
$130.0 million of term loan principal for the period of June
2013 through varying maturity dates between December
2014 and August 2016.

The interest rate under our senior credit facility consists
of a margin applied to either LIBOR or a defined index
rate. As of December 31, 2011, a 100 basis point increase
in LIBOR for the duration of one year would have
increased interest expense by approximately $4.0 million
in 2011. Additionally, the interest rates available in certain
jurisdictions in which we hold excess cash may vary,
thereby affecting the return we earn on cash equivalent
short-term investments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Under contractual selling
arrangements, many of our foreign sales are denominated
in U.S. Dollars. However, approximately 18% of our sales
and 34% of our operating costs and expenses were trans-
acted in foreign currencies during 2011. As a result,
fluctuations in exchange rates impact the amount of our
reported sales and operating income. Historically, our
principal exposures have been related to local currency
operating costs and expenses in Canada, Brazil, and
China, and local currency sales and expenses in Europe
and Japan.

We make regular payments to our wholly-owned sub-
sidiary in Canada, Blount Canada Ltd. (“Blount Canada”)
for contract manufacturing services performed on our
behalf. We selectively hedged a portion of the anticipated
payment transactions and underlying local currency
denominated operating costs with Blount Canada that are
subject to foreign exchange exposure, using zero-cost col-
lar option contracts to manage our exposure to Canadian
Dollar exchange rates. These zero-cost collar instruments
are designated as cash flow hedges and are recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. The effective
portion of the contracts’ gains or losses due to changes in
fair value is initially recorded as a component of accumu-

lated other comprehensive income and is subsequently
reclassified into earnings when we settle the hedged pay-
ment to Blount Canada. We use the hypothetical derivative
method under ASC 815 to determine the hedge effective-
ness of our zero-cost collar option contracts. These con-
tracts are highly effective in hedging the variability in
future cash flows attributable to changes in Canadian Dol-
lar exchange rates. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
total notional amount of such contracts outstanding was
$37.5 million and $34.5 million, respectively. During
2011, 2010, and 2009, we recognized gains of $0.8 mil-
lion, $2.4 million and $0.9 million, respectively, in earn-
ings from these contacts as they matured. We have not
recognized any amount in earnings in the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, or 2009 due to ineffectiveness
of these Canadian Dollar hedging instruments.

We may, in the future, decide to manage additional
exposures to currency exchange rate fluctuations through
derivative products. The table below illustrates the esti-
mated effect on our 2011 operating results of a hypo-
thetical 10% change in major currencies (defined for us as
the Euro, Canadian Dollar, Brazilian Real, Chinese RMB,
Swiss Franc, and Japanese Yen):

Effect of 10% Weaker U.S. Dollar–
Increase (Decrease)

(Amounts in thousands) Sales
Cost

of Sales
Operating

Income

Euro $ 9,860 $ 6,730 $ 388
Canadian Dollar 1,484 7,186 (6,166)
Brazilian Real – 3,514 (4,066)
Chinese RMB 379 1,282 (1,045)
Swiss Franc – 1,364 (1,364)
Japanese Yen 1,413 131 1,083

Commodity Price Risk. We secure raw materials through
purchasing functions at each of our manufacturing loca-
tions and, more recently, through a centrally administered
supply chain organization. These functions are staffed by
professionals who determine the sourcing of materials by
assessing quality, availability, price, and service of poten-
tial vendors. When possible, multiple vendors are utilized
to ensure competitive prices and to minimize risk of lack
of availability of materials. Some of these raw materials
are subject to price volatility over time. We have not
hedged against the price volatility of any raw materials by
using any derivative instruments during 2011, 2010,
or 2009.

Raw material price volatility has not had a significant
impact on our results in recent years, with the exception of
steel pricing, where our costs rose in 2009, decreased in
the first half of 2010, then rose again in the second half of
2010, and rose further during 2011. We purchased approx-
imately $86.6 million of steel in 2011, which was our
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largest sourced commodity. A hypothetical 10% change in
the price of steel would have had an estimated $8.7 million
effect on pre-tax income in 2011. We utilize multiple sup-
pliers to purchase steel. We estimate the impact to cost of
sales in the Consolidated Statements of Income from
changes in our cost of purchased steel was an increase of
$1.0 million from 2008 to 2009, a decrease of $3.8 million
from 2009 to 2010, and an increase of $3.8 million from
2010 to 2011. Some selling prices to our customers have
been increased, in part to offset the increase in steel
commodity costs. In addition to steel raw material, we also
purchase component parts and subassemblies that are
made with steel, and prices for these items are also subject
to steel price volatility risk. We source many of our lawn
and garden products, and our farm, ranch, and agriculture
products, from Asia, in certain cases through brokers, and
we anticipate expanding this practice in the future. We
attempt to mitigate sourcing issues by securing multiple
suppliers for products whenever practical.

Fluctuations in the cost of fuel used in transportation can
affect the cost of freight we pay both for the acquisition of
raw materials and for delivery of our products to our cus-
tomers. In recent years, we have incurred energy sur-
charges from our freight vendors. We have on occasion
passed a portion of these costs to our customers but a por-
tion of these costs have also reduced our gross profit. Our
total freight cost in 2011 was $34.7 million and a hypo-
thetical 10% change in freight costs would have had an
estimated $3.5 million effect on pre-tax income in 2011.
We also use electricity and natural gas in the manufacture
of our products and are subject to fluctuations in such
utility costs. To date we have not undertaken any hedging
activities against these energy-related exposures.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management of Blount International, Inc. is responsible
for the information and representations contained in this
report. The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Reasonable judgments and estimates have been made
where necessary. Other financial information in this report
is consistent with these financial statements.

Our accounting systems include controls designed to
reasonably assure that assets are safeguarded from
unauthorized use or disposition and that provide for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These systems
are supplemented by the selection and training of qualified
financial personnel and an organizational structure provid-
ing for appropriate segregation of duties.

Three directors of the Company, who are not members
of management, serve as the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors and are the principal means through
which the Board discharges its financial reporting
responsibility. The Audit Committee is responsible for the
appointment of the independent registered public account-
ing firm, and reviews with the independent registered pub-
lic accounting firm, management, and the internal auditors,
the scope and the results of the annual audit, the effective-
ness of our internal controls over financial reporting, dis-
closure controls and procedures, and other matters relating
to financial reporting and the financial affairs of Blount
International, Inc. as they deem appropriate. The
independent registered public accounting firm and the
internal auditors have full access to the Committee, with
and without the presence of management, to discuss any
appropriate matters.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial
Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintain-
ing adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rules
13a -15(f). Under the supervision and with the partic-
ipation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, our management conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial report-
ing based upon the criteria set forth in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Spon-
soring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on that evaluation, our management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2011.

Management excluded the internal controls over finan-
cial reporting of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO, which
were acquired by the Company during 2011, from its
assessment of the Company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2011. The acquired
businesses represented approximately 36% of the Compa-
ny’s total assets as of December 31, 2011 and approx-
imately 12% of its consolidated net revenues for the year
then ended.

Internal controls over financial reporting cannot provide
absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting
objectives because of their inherent limitations. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in
judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures.
Internal control over financial reporting also can be
circumvented by collusion or improper management over-
ride. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that
material misstatements may not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis by internal control over financial report-
ing. However, these inherent limitations are known fea-
tures of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is
possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce,
though not eliminate, this risk.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm that has audited the Consolidated
Financial Statements, has also audited the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011 as stated in their report which appears
herein.

/s/ Joshua L. Collins /s/ Calvin E. Jenness

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blount
International, Inc.:

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Blount International Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedule listed in the index appearing under
Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with
the related Consolidated Financial Statements. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements and financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. Our responsi-
bility is to express opinions on these financial statements,
on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assess-
ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included per-
forming such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

36 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.



g pq

285309 TX 37BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL
FORM 10-K

17-Mar-2012 17:29 EST
CLN PSNYM

RR Donnelley ProFile NER prasr0ap 5*
PMT 1C

nerdoc1
10.10.12

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A compa-
ny’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepara-
tion of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Con-
trols over Financial Reporting, management has excluded
its KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO operations from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011 because they were acquired by the
Company in purchase business combinations during 2011.
We have also excluded KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO
from our audit of internal control over financial reporting.
These entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries whose total
assets and total net revenues represent approximately 36%
and 12%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 13, 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2011 2010 2009

Sales $ 831,630 $ 611,480 $ 487,366
Cost of sales 575,821 407,454 321,885

Gross profit 255,809 204,026 165,481
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 157,856 118,471 106,769
Gain on sale of land and building – – (2,701)
Plant closure and severance costs – – 6,887

Operating income 97,953 85,555 54,526
Interest income 171 119 206
Interest expense (18,721) (25,636) (24,707)
Other income (expense), net (4,453) (7,427) 241

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 74,950 52,611 30,266
Provision for income taxes 25,268 11,209 8,321

Income from continuing operations 49,682 41,402 21,945

Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes – 12,972 1,667
Provision for income taxes – 7,174 619

Income from discontinued operations – 5,798 1,048

Net income $ 49,682 $ 47,200 $ 22,993

Basic income per share:
Continuing operations $ 1.02 $ 0.86 $ 0.46
Discontinued operations – 0.13 0.02

Net income $ 1.02 $ 0.99 $ 0.48

Diluted income per share:
Continuing operations $ 1.01 $ 0.85 $ 0.46
Discontinued operations – 0.12 0.02

Net income $ 1.01 $ 0.97 $ 0.48

Weighted average shares used in per share calculations:
Basic 48,701 47,917 47,758
Diluted 49,434 48,508 48,274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Net income $ 49,682 $ 47,200 $ 22,993

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Unrealized gains (losses):

Unrealized holding gains (losses) (1,819) 837 4,882
Gains reclassified to net income (644) (2,353) (902)

Unrealized gains (losses) (2,463) (1,516) 3,980
Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,984) 309 646
Pension liability adjustment:

Net gain (loss) (49,349) (9,351) 9,173
Amortization of net loss 5,137 4,562 5,852
Amortization of prior service cost (6) (6) (6)

Pension liability adjustment (44,218) (4,795) 15,019

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (49,665) (6,002) 19,645
Income tax (provision) benefit recognized on other comprehensive items 16,249 1,253 (7,141)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (33,416) (4,749) 12,504

Comprehensive income $ 16,266 $ 42,451 $ 35,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. 39



g y

285309 TX 40BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL
FORM 10-K

23-Mar-2012 20:24 EST
CLN PSNYM

RR Donnelley ProFile NER braim0px
START PAGE

9*
PMT 1C

nerdoc1
10.10.12

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 2011 2010

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 62,118 $ 80,708
Accounts receivable, net 133,965 79,223
Inventories 151,494 100,445
Deferred income taxes 15,293 9,462
Other current assets 21,618 19,064

Total current assets 384,488 288,902

Property, plant, and equipment, net 155,872 108,348
Deferred income taxes 589 1,439
Intangible assets 158,085 57,573
Goodwill 164,299 103,700
Assets held for sale – 900
Other assets 21,239 20,025

Total Assets $ 884,572 $ 580,887

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 20,348 $ 10,250
Accounts payable 52,884 35,032
Accrued expenses 72,991 55,626
Deferred income taxes 1,255 447

Total current liabilities 147,478 101,355

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 510,014 339,750
Deferred income taxes 42,820 11,404
Employee benefit obligations 96,974 64,556
Other liabilities 17,821 21,424

Total liabilities 815,107 538,489

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock: par value $0.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 48,814,912 and
48,236,247 outstanding, respectively 488 482

Capital in excess of par value of stock 598,689 587,894
Accumulated deficit (459,673) (509,355)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (70,039) (36,623)

Total stockholders’ equity 69,465 42,398

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 884,572 $ 580,887

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 49,682 $ 47,200 $ 22,993
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Income from discontinued operations – (5,798) (1,048)
Early extinguishment of debt 3,871 7,010 –
Depreciation 23,482 20,971 19,450
Amortization of intangible assets 11,315 4,382 1,493
Stock compensation 4,441 3,290 1,582
Other non-cash charges 6,036 3,030 8,248
Excess tax (benefit) expense from stock-based compensation (877) (1,340) 73
Deferred income taxes 2,331 2,658 2,145
Change in uncertain tax positions (1,240) (7,827) 1,668
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets 899 1,202 (2,523)
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding acquisitions:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (12,057) 1,048 649
(Increase) decrease in inventories 2,188 (6,788) 12,442
(Increase) decrease in other assets (2,228) 1,741 (1,517)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 58 (6,883) 2,734
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 6,571 3,708 (9,493)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (16,405) (11,726) (5,184)

Discontinued operations (334) (6,712) 3,469

Net cash provided by operating activities 77,733 49,166 57,181

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (40,373) (20,002) (16,718)
Proceeds from sale of assets 967 159 3,290
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (217,362) (90,854) –
Discontinued operations – 25,176 (575)

Net cash used in investing activities (256,768) (85,521) (14,003)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (payments) under revolving credit facility 228,200 (3,400) (27,350)
Proceeds from issuance of term debt 300,000 350,000 –
Repayment of term loan principal (353,750) (107,465) (12,305)
Repayment of PBL debt principal (7,813) – –
Repayment of 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes – (175,000) –
Debt issuance costs (6,509) (6,267) (5,311)
Excess tax benefit (expense) from stock-based compensation 877 1,340 (73)
Proceeds from stock-based compensation activity 1,041 2,398 283
Taxes paid under stock-based compensation activity (267) (333) (508)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 161,779 61,273 (45,264)

Effect of exchange rate changes (1,334) 720 (1,119)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (18,590) 25,638 (3,205)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 80,708 55,070 58,275

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 62,118 $ 80,708 $ 55,070

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(Amounts in thousands) Shares
Common

Stock

Capital in
Excess
of Par

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

Balance December 31, 2008 47,614 $ 476 $ 579,930 $ (579,548) $ (44,378) $ (43,520)
Net income 22,993 22,993
Foreign currency translation adjustment 646 646
Unrealized gains 2,519 2,519
Pension liability adjustment 9,339 9,339
Stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock 145 2 (301) (299)

Stock compensation expense 1,582 1,582

Balance December 31, 2009 47,759 478 581,211 (556,555) (31,874) (6,740)

Net income 47,200 47,200
Foreign currency translation adjustment 309 309
Unrealized losses (963) (963)
Pension liability adjustment (4,095) (4,095)
Stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock 477 4 3,393 3,397

Stock compensation expense 3,290 3,290

Balance December 31, 2010 48,236 482 587,894 (509,355) (36,623) 42,398

Net income 49,682 49,682
Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,984) (2,984)
Unrealized losses (1,554) (1,554)
Pension liability adjustment (28,878) (28,878)
Acquisition of KOX 310 3 4,706 4,709
Stock options, stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock 269 3 1,648 1,651

Stock compensation expense 4,441 4,441

Balance December 31, 2011 48,815 $ 488 $ 598,689 $ (459,673) $ (70,039) $ 69,465

The Company holds 382,380 shares of its common stock in treasury. These shares have been accounted for as con-
structively retired in the Consolidated Financial Statements, and are not included in the number of shares outstanding.

On March 1, 2011, we issued 309,834 shares of common stock valued at $4.7 million as part of the acquisition price
of KOX.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Blount International, Inc. And Subsidiaries

NOTE 1: BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business. The Company is a global manufacturer and
marketer of equipment, accessories, and replacement parts
sold to consumers and professionals in select end-markets,
including the forestry, lawn and garden, farm, ranch, agri-
culture, and construction sectors. The Company manu-
factures and markets branded products, serving
professional loggers, arborists, construction workers,
homeowners, equipment dealers, landscapers, farmers,
rural land owners, and OEMs. The Company’s manufac-
tured products include products such as cutting chain,
guide bars, and sprockets for chain saw use, lawnmower
and edger blades, grass and crop cutting equipment, elec-
tric and gas-powered log splitters, riding lawnmowers,
tractor attachments, and concrete cutting and finishing
equipment. The Company maintains manufacturing facili-
ties in the U.S., Brazil, Canada, China, France, and Mex-
ico. We also market and distribute other products and
accessories closely aligned with the products that we
manufacture, including cutting line and spools for line
trimmers, safety equipment and clothing, small engine
replacement parts, small tractor linkage parts and attach-
ments, and other accessories used in the forestry, lawn and
garden, farm, ranch, agriculture, and construction markets.
Many of the products we manufacture are sold to OEMs
for use on new chain saws and landscaping equipment, or
for private branding purposes, using the OEMs’ brands.
See additional information about our business in Item 1,
Business, included elsewhere in this report.

Basis of Presentation. The Consolidated Financial Statements
include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and
are prepared in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the U.S. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency. For foreign subsidiaries whose oper-
ations are principally conducted in U.S. Dollars, monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. Dollars at the
current exchange rate, while other assets (principally
property, plant, and equipment and inventories) and related
costs and expenses are generally translated at historic
exchange rates. Sales and other costs and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rate for the period and
the resulting foreign exchange adjustments are recognized
in income. Assets and liabilities of the remaining foreign

operations are translated to U.S. Dollars at the current
exchange rate and their statements of income are translated
at the average exchange rate for the period. Gains and
losses resulting from translation of the financial statements
of these operations are reflected as “other comprehensive
income (loss)” in stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses from settling transactions
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar are
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income
when realized.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples recognized in the U.S. requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities and the components of equity, and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of
the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses recognized during the reporting
periods. Estimates are used when accounting for the
allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence,
goodwill and other long-lived assets, product warranties,
casualty insurance costs, product liability reserves and
related expenses, other legal proceedings, employee bene-
fit plans, income taxes and deferred tax assets and
liabilities, discontinued operations and contingencies. It is
reasonably possible that actual results could differ materi-
ally from these estimates and assumptions and significant
changes to estimates could occur in the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers cash
equivalents to be all highly liquid temporary cash invest-
ments with maturities of 90 days or less at the date of
investment that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and present minimal risk of changes in value
because of changes in interest rates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company estimates
the amount of accounts receivable that are not collectible
and records an allowance for doubtful accounts which is
presented net with accounts receivable on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. It is reasonably possible that actual collec-
tion experience may differ significantly from manage-
ment’s estimate.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or
market. The Company determines the cost of most raw
materials, work in process, and finished goods inventories by
the first in, first out (“FIFO”) method. The Company writes
down its inventories for estimated obsolete or unmarketable
inventory equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions.
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Property, Plant, and Equipment. Property, plant, and equip-
ment is stated at cost and is depreciated on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the individual
assets. The principal ranges of estimated useful lives for
depreciation purposes are as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life

Buildings and building improvements 10 to 45 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures, and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Transportation equipment 3 to 15 years

Gains or losses on disposal are reflected in income.
Property, plant, and equipment under capital lease is cap-
italized, with the related obligations stated at the principal
portion of future lease payments. Interest cost incurred
during the period of construction of plant and equipment is
capitalized. Capitalized interest was $0.2 million in 2011,
$0.1 million in 2010, and $0.3 million in 2009.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful
Lives. The Company accounts for goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives under ASC
350. Under the provisions of ASC 350, the Company
evaluates annually, or whenever circumstances indicate,
whether or not there are any qualitative indications of
potential impairment of these assets. If there is indication
of potential impairment, the Company performs a quantita-
tive analysis. The quantitative analysis of impairment is
performed by estimating the fair values of the reporting
units using a discounted cash flow model and comparing
those fair values to the carrying values of the reporting
units, including goodwill. The sum of the fair values of the
reporting units is reconciled to the Company’s current
market capitalization, plus an estimated control premium.
If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
value, the Company then allocates the fair value of the unit
to all the assets and liabilities of that unit, including any
unrecognized intangible assets, as if the reporting unit’s
fair value were the price to acquire the reporting unit. The
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the
amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied
fair value of the goodwill. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of
that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. Events or changes in circum-
stances may occur that could cause underperformance rela-
tive to projected future cash flows that would create future
impairments. No impairments have been recognized in
2011, 2010 or 2009 for goodwill or other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates
the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used,
including finite-lived intangible assets, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

may not be recoverable. The carrying value of a long-lived
asset is considered impaired when the total projected
undiscounted cash flows from such asset are separately
identifiable and are less than its carrying value. In that
event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived
asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the pro-
jected cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with
the risk involved. Losses on long-lived assets to be dis-
posed of are determined in a similar manner, except that
fair values are reduced for disposal costs. No impairment
charges were recognized in 2011. The Company recog-
nized impairment charges of $0.3 million in 2010, related
to property, plant, and equipment that was taken out of
service. During 2009, the Company recognized an
impairment charge of $2.0 million for the closure of our
former manufacturing facility in Milan, Tennessee.

Deferred Financing Costs. The Company capitalizes costs
incurred in connection with borrowings or establishment
of credit facilities. These costs are amortized as an adjust-
ment to interest expense over the life of the borrowing or
life of the credit facility using the straight line method,
which approximates the effective interest rate method. In
the case of early debt principal repayments, the Company
adjusts the value of the corresponding deferred financing
costs with a charge to other expense, and similarly adjusts
the future amortization expense.

Income Taxes. In accordance with ASC 740, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax con-
sequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Included in recorded tax
liabilities are estimated amounts related to uncertain tax
positions. Actual tax liabilities may differ materially from
these estimates. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax laws and rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those tempo-
rary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax laws or rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are
established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amounts expected to be realized. The American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004 includes a deduction of up to 9 per-
cent of “qualified production activities income,” as defined
in the law and subject to certain limitations. The benefit of
this deduction is accounted for as a special deduction when
realized in accordance with ASC 740-10, Section 55. The
Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions as income tax expense.

Product Liability. The Company monitors claims that
relate to the alleged malfunction or defects of its products
that may result in an injury to the equipment operator or
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others. The Company records an accrued liability and
charge to cost of sales for its estimated obligation as
claims are incurred and evaluated. The accrual may
increase or decrease as additional information regarding
claims develops.

Environmental Remediation Liabilities. The Company is
conducting several testing, monitoring, and in some cases,
remediation efforts regarding environmental matters at
certain of its current and former operating sites. In addi-
tion, from time to time, regulatory bodies and third parties
have asserted claims to the Company alleging responsi-
bility for environmental remediation. The Company
records an accrued liability and charge to expense for its
estimated cost of environmental remediation as situations
are evaluated. The accrual may increase or decrease as
new information is received, or changes in estimate
are developed.

Insurance Accruals. It is the Company’s policy to retain a
portion of expected losses related to general and product
liability, workers’ compensation, and vehicle liability
losses through retentions or deductibles under its risk
management and insurance programs. Provisions for losses
expected under these programs are recorded based on
estimates of the ultimate undiscounted aggregate liabilities
for claims incurred.

Warranty. The Company offers certain product warranties
with the sale of its products. An estimate of warranty costs
is recognized at the time the related revenue is recognized
and the warranty obligation is recorded as a charge to cost
of sales and as a liability on the balance sheet. Warranty
cost is estimated using historical customer claims, supplier
performance, and new product performance.

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company accounts for
derivative financial instruments in accordance with ASC
815. The Company’s earnings and cash flows are subject to
fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates, and commodity prices. The Company’s
risk management policy allows for the use of derivative
financial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange
rate, interest rate, and commodity price exposures. The
policy specifies that derivatives are not to be used for spec-
ulative or trading purposes. All derivatives are recognized
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value. As of
December 31, 2011, derivatives consisted of foreign cur-
rency hedge instruments, interest rate swap agreements, and
an interest rate cap agreement. As of December 31, 2010,
derivatives consisted of foreign currency hedge instruments.
Changes in the fair value of non-hedging derivative instru-
ments are reported in current earnings. Changes in the fair
value of hedging derivative instruments are recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss) until the instrument is
settled, at which time the gain or loss is recognized in cur-
rent earnings. See further information in Note 20.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when persua-
sive evidence that a sales arrangement exists, title and risk
of loss have passed to the customer, the price to the cus-
tomer is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured, which has historically been upon the
date of shipment of product for the majority of the
Company’s sales transactions. There are a small number
of shipments with FOB destination or similar shipping
terms, for which revenue is not recognized until delivery
has occurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs. The Company incurs
expenses for the shipment of goods to customers. These
expenses are recognized in the period in which they occur
and are classified as gross revenues if billed to the
customer and cost of goods sold if incurred by the Com-
pany in accordance with ASC 605-45.

Sales Incentives. The Company provides various sales
incentives to customers in the form of coupons, rebates,
discounts, free product, and advertising allowances. The
estimated cost of such expenses is recorded at the time of
revenue recognition and recorded as a reduction to rev-
enue, except that free product is recorded as cost of sales,
in accordance with ASC 605-50.

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred,
except for cooperative advertising allowances, which are
accrued over the period the revenues are recognized.
Advertising costs were $12.8 million, $7.3 million, and
$3.4 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Research and Development. Expenditures for research
and development are expensed as incurred and include
costs of direct labor, indirect labor, materials, overhead,
and outside services. These costs were $19.6 million,
$14.8 million, and $16.9 million for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the prior years’
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no
impact on previously reported net income, net cash flows,
or net stockholders’ equity.
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NOTE 2: ACQUISITIONS

The Company accounts for acquisitions in accordance
with ASC section 805. Accordingly, an acquisition’s assets
and liabilities are recorded at their estimated fair values on
the date of acquisition. The Company estimates the fair
value of assets using various methods and considering,
among other factors, projected discounted cash flows,
replacement cost less an allowance for depreciation, recent
comparable transactions, and historical book values. The
Company estimates the fair value of inventory by
considering the estimated costs to complete the
manufacturing, assembly, and selling processes, and the
normal gross profit margin typically associated with its
sale. The Company estimates the fair value of identifiable
intangible assets based on discounted projected cash flows
or estimated royalty avoidance costs. The Company esti-
mates the fair value of liabilities assumed considering the
historical book values and projected future cash outflows.
The fair value of goodwill represents the residual enter-
prise value which does not qualify for separate recog-
nition, including the value of the assembled workforce.

The Company has conducted a preliminary assessment
of liabilities arising from tax matters related to its acquis-
itions, and has recognized provisional amounts in its initial
accounting for acquisitions for the identified tax liabilities.
However, the Company continues its review of these mat-
ters during the measurement period for up to one year fol-
lowing the date of acquisition, and if new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date identifies adjustments to the tax liabilities
initially recognized, as well as any additional tax liabilities
that existed as of the acquisition date, the acquisition
accounting will be revised to reflect the resulting adjust-
ments to the provisional tax amounts initially recognized.

2011 Acquisition of Woods/TISCO
On September 7, 2011, we acquired Woods/TISCO,

with operations primarily in the Midwestern U.S., a manu-
facturer and marketer of equipment and replacement parts
primarily for the agriculture end market. The acquisition of
Woods/TISCO:
❚ Increases distribution for our FRAG segment, partic-

ularly in the agricultural dealer channel.
❚ Expands our FRAG product line offerings of tractor

attachments and aftermarket replacement parts.
❚ Provides opportunities to leverage our manufacturing

and product development expertise and global dis-
tribution and supply chain network, particularly in the
area of product sourcing.

❚ Enhances our U.S. manufacturing and distribution capa-
bilities through the addition of three manufacturing and
five distribution facilities.

The purchase price was $190.5 million in cash, consist-
ing of $185.0 million in negotiated enterprise value and a
$5.5 million working capital adjustment. Woods/TISCO
had $0.2 million of cash on the acquisition date, resulting
in a net cash outflow of $190.3 million. We assumed none
of Woods/TISCO’s debt in the transaction. In addition, we
incurred legal and other third party fees totaling $2.0 mil-
lion in conjunction with the acquisition that were expensed
to SG&A in the Consolidated Statements of Income during
2011. The acquisition was funded from cash on hand and
borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

Woods/TISCO’s pre-acquisition operating results for the
twelve months preceding the acquisition date are summar-
ized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months Ended

August 31, 2011

Sales $ 164,810
Operating income 17,870
Depreciation and amortization 2,549

Woods/TISCO’s operating income for the twelve
months ended August 31, 2011 includes expenses of $0.7
million related to Woods/TISCO’s former chief executive
officer, $0.5 million in management fees charged by
Woods/TISCO’s former owner, $0.4 million in expenses
attributed to Woods/TISCO’s efforts to sell its business,
$0.3 million in costs associated with the closure of a
facility, and $0.3 million in fees associated with Woods/
TISCO’s September 2010 refinancing transaction.

2011 Acquisition of PBL
On August 5, 2011, we acquired PBL, a manufacturer of

lawnmower blades and agricultural cutting parts based in
Civray, France with a second manufacturing facility in
Queretaro, Mexico. The acquisition of PBL increases our
manufacturing capacity for lawnmower blades, increases
our market share for lawnmower blades in Europe, and
provides an entrance into the agricultural parts market in
Europe. We also expect to benefit from PBL’s low-cost
manufacturing methods and technology utilized at its
facilities in France and Mexico.

The purchase price consisted of $14.2 million in cash
and the assumption of $13.5 million of PBL’s debt. PBL
had $1.3 million of cash on the acquisition date, resulting
in a net cash outflow of $13.0 million. In addition, we
incurred legal and other third party fees totaling $0.9 mil-
lion in conjunction with the acquisition that were expensed
to SG&A in the Consolidated Statement of Income during
2011. The cash portion of the acquisition was funded from
available cash on hand at Blount B.V.
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PBL’s pre-acquisition operating results for the twelve
months preceding the acquisition date are summarized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months

Ended July 31, 2011

Sales $ 33,162
Operating income 1,804
Depreciation and amortization 2,857

2011 Acquisition of KOX
On March 1, 2011, we acquired KOX, a Germany-based

direct-to-customer distributor of forestry-related replace-
ment parts and accessories, primarily serving professional
loggers and consumers in Europe. The acquisition of KOX
increased our distribution capabilities and expanded our
geographic presence in Europe. KOX has been a customer
of Blount for over 30 years and purchased approximately
$9.2 million of forestry replacement parts from Blount in
2010.

The total purchase price was $23.9 million. The pur-
chase price consisted of $19.2 million in cash and 309,834
shares of our common stock valued at $4.7 million based
on the closing price of our stock on the acquisition date.
KOX had $5.1 million of cash on the acquisition date,
resulting in a net cash outflow of $14.1 million. We
assumed none of KOX’s debt in the transaction. In addi-
tion, we incurred legal and other third party fees totaling
$1.2 million in conjunction with the acquisition that were
expensed to SG&A in the Consolidated Statements of
Income during 2010 and 2011. The cash portion of the
acquisition was funded from available cash on hand at
Blount B.V. The common stock shares issued in the pur-
chase are subject to certain restrictions under terms of the
related stock purchase agreement.

KOX pre-acquisition operating results for calendar year
2010 are summarized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Year Ended

December 31, 2010

Sales $ 34,889
Operating income 3,266
Depreciation 128

2011 Establishment of Blount B.V.
On January 19, 2011, we acquired a dormant shelf

company registered in the Netherlands and changed the
name to Blount Netherlands B.V. The acquisition price
was $21 thousand, net of cash acquired, plus the assump-
tion of certain liabilities. This acquisition, along with the
formation of an additional holding entity named BI Hold-

ings C.V., a limited partnership registered with the Dutch
Trade Register with a Bermuda office address and parent
of Blount B.V., increases our flexibility to make interna-
tional acquisitions. Direct ownership of certain of our for-
eign subsidiaries was transferred from our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Blount, Inc., to Blount B.V. through a series of
transactions executed in February 2011. We recognized
$13 thousand of goodwill on the acquisition of the shelf
company in the Netherlands.

2010 Acquisition of SpeeCo
On August 10, 2010, we acquired SpeeCo, located in

Golden, Colorado, a supplier of log splitters, post-hole dig-
gers, tractor three-point linkage parts and equipment, and
farm and ranch accessories. The acquisition of SpeeCo
expanded our product offerings and broadened our customer
base. The acquisition of SpeeCo also created opportunities for
synergies in the areas of marketing, sales, assembly oper-
ations, distribution, and back office consolidation of support
functions. We also believe there are opportunities to sell some
of SpeeCo’s products into our FLAG distribution network
domestically and internationally. The opportunities for
synergies were further enhanced when we acquired PBL and
Woods/TISCO during 2011. We also are benefiting from
SpeeCo by leveraging its experience in low-cost sourcing of
materials and components.

The purchase price was $91.7 million in cash, consisting
of $90.0 million in negotiated enterprise value and a $1.7
million working capital adjustment. SpeeCo had $0.8 mil-
lion of cash on the acquisition date, resulting in a net cash
outflow of $90.9 million. We assumed none of SpeeCo’s
debt in the transaction. In addition, we incurred legal and
other third party fees totaling $1.0 million in conjunction
with the acquisition that were expensed to SG&A in the
Consolidated Statement of Income in 2010. The acquis-
ition was financed with a combination of cash on hand and
borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

SpeeCo’s pre-acquisition operating results for the twelve
months preceding the acquisition date are summarized below.

(Amounts in thousands)
Twelve Months

Ended July 31, 2010

Sales $ 77,077
Operating income 8,174
Depreciation and amortization 4,469

SpeeCo’s operating income for the twelve months ended
July 31, 2010 includes $0.4 million in management fees
charged by SpeeCo’s former owner.
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Purchase Price Allocations
We allocated the purchase price for each acquisition to the following assets and liabilities based on their estimated

fair values.

(Amounts in thousands) Woods/TISCO PBL KOX SpeeCo

Cash $ 230 $ 1,275 $ 5,126 $ 816
Accounts receivable 34,784 5,109 3,365 7,525
Inventories 38,512 11,552 8,879 18,868
Current intangible assets subject to amortization – 157 – 401
Current deferred tax assets 3,754 – – 657
Other current assets 3,057 1,162 268 625
Property, plant, and equipment 19,259 13,041 383 1,812
Non-current deferred tax assets 1,943 378 – –
Non-current intangible assets subject to amortization 52,400 5,612 4,594 43,214
Non-current intangible assets not subject to amortization 44,330 470 5,241 5,968
Goodwill 55,174 2,086 3,709 42,794
Other non-current assets 3,474 – – –

Total assets acquired 256,917 40,842 31,565 122,680

Current liabilities 19,319 11,065 4,793 13,762
Long-term debt – 13,304 – –
Non-current deferred income tax liability 41,876 609 2,836 17,142
Other non-current liabilities 5,220 1,620 – 106

Total liabilities assumed 66,415 26,598 7,629 31,010

Acquisition price $ 190,502 $ 14,244 $ 23,936 $ 91,670
Goodwill deductible for income tax purposes $ 9,255 $ – $ – $ 6,998

The operating results of acquisitions are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Income from the acquisition
dates forward. These results, excluding the post-
acquisition allocation of the cost of certain shared services
and corporate support functions, are summarized in the
following tables.

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)
Woods/
TISCO PBL KOX SpeeCo

Incremental net sales $ 55,464 $ 9,679 $ 21,639 $ 88,093
Incremental income
(loss) before
income taxes 1,326 (2,727) (2,864) 5,622

Acquisition
accounting effects 4,913 1,734 2,152 5,555

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2010

(Amounts in thousands)
Woods/

TISCO PBL KOX SpeeCo

Incremental net sales $ – $ – $ – $ 34,200
Incremental income before
income taxes – – – 2,097

Acquisition
accounting effects – – – 3,368

Acquisition accounting effects included in the tables
above represent non-cash charges included in cost of sales
for amortization of intangible assets and adjustments to
fair value on acquired property, plant, and equipment, as
well as expensing of the step-up to fair value of acquired
inventory. Acquisition accounting effects do not include
transaction costs associated with the acquisitions.

The following table summarizes the acquisition accounting effects charged or expected to be charged to cost of sales for
the years indicated:

Year Ending December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Woods/TISCO $ 4,913 $ 6,922 $ 8,354 $ 7,241 $ 6,502
PBL 1,734 1,998 410 104 74
KOX 2,152 1,074 724 468 322
SpeeCo 5,555 4,671 4,141 3,908 3,615
Prior acquisitions 1,525 1,298 1,152 988 816

Total acquisition accounting effects $ 15,879 $ 15,963 $ 14,781 $ 12,709 $ 11,329
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The following unaudited pro forma results present the estimated effect as if the acquisition of SpeeCo had occurred on
January 1, 2009, and as if the acquisitions of KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO had occurred on January 1, 2010. The
unaudited pro forma results include the historical results of each acquired business, pro forma elimination of sales from
Blount to each acquired business, if any, pro forma acquisition accounting effects, pro forma interest expense effects of
additional borrowings to fund each transaction, pro forma interest effects from reduced cash and cash equivalents follow-
ing use of cash to fund each transaction, and the related pro forma income tax effects.

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2011

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2010

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2009

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) As Reported Pro Forma As Reported Pro Forma As Reported Pro Forma

Sales $ 831,630 $ 975,455 $ 611,480 $ 863,014 $ 487,366 $ 558,657
Net income 49,682 58,192 47,200 47,487 22,993 22,772

Basic income per share $ 1.02 $ 1.19 $ 0.99 $ 1.00 $ 0.48 $ 0.48
Diluted income per share $ 1.01 $ 1.18 $ 0.97 $ 0.98 $ 0.48 $ 0.48

NOTE 3: 2009 RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

Gain on Sale of Land and Building in Belgium. On June 25,
2009, we sold the land and building formerly occupied by
our European headquarters and distribution center. These
operations have been moved to new, nearby leased facili-
ties. We recognized a pre-tax gain of $2.7 million on
the sale.

Plant Closure and Severance Costs. During the second quar-
ter of 2009, we closed our manufacturing facility in Milan,
Tennessee. Products previously manufactured in that
facility are now produced in our other manufacturing
facilities. During 2009, we recognized a total of $3.8 mil-
lion in charges related to the closure of this manufacturing
plant, consisting of $2.0 million in asset impairment
charges, $1.0 million in employee severance and benefit
costs, and $0.8 million in other expenses. Of these charges,
$0.3 million is included in cost of goods sold within the
FLAG segment and $3.5 million is included in plant clo-
sure and severance costs in the 2009 Consolidated State-
ments of Income. The land and building were included in
assets held for sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
of December 31, 2010 and were sold in the fourth quarter
of 2011. We also took actions during 2009 to reduce the
number of employees at certain of our other locations and
recognized and paid a total of $3.4 million in severance
charges related to this reduction in force.

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are shown net of the following balances:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3,142 $ 1,490

NOTE 5: INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Raw materials and supplies $ 25,000 $ 16,529
Work in progress 16,006 14,986
Finished goods 110,488 68,930

Total inventories $ 151,494 $ 100,445

KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO accounted for $50.0 mil-
lion of the balance in inventories at December 31, 2011.

NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Land $ 9,641 $ 7,202
Buildings and improvements 65,139 56,061
Machinery and equipment 239,882 212,919
Furniture, fixtures, and office
equipment 33,342 29,817

Transportation equipment 1,105 931
Construction or equipment
acquisitions in progress 30,568 8,743

Accumulated depreciation (223,805) (207,325)

Total property, plant, and
equipment, net $ 155,872 $ 108,348

KOX, PBL, and Woods/TISCO accounted for $30.7
million of the balance in property, plant, and equipment,
net at December 31, 2011.
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NOTE 7: DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in
conjunction with the Company’s debt financing activities
and are amortized over the term of the related debt instru-
ments. Deferred financing costs and the related amor-
tization expense are adjusted when any pre-payments of
principal are made to the related outstanding loan. See also
Note 10. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the
following activity occurred:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Beginning balance $ 4,088 $ 7,077
Financing costs deferred 4,006 2,793
Write off due to early extinguishment of
debt (1,368) (3,511)

Write off due to pre-payment of principal – (25)
Amortization (1,010) (2,246)

Ending balance $ 5,716 $ 4,088

Scheduled amortization, assuming no further cost
deferrals or prepayments of principal, is as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)
Estimated Annual

Amortization

2012 $ 1,225
2013 1,225
2014 1,225
2015 1,225
2016 816

Total scheduled amortization $ 5,716

NOTE 8: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table summarizes intangible assets:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

(Amounts in thousands)
Life In
Years

Gross
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Goodwill Indefinite $ 164,299 $ – $ 103,700 $ –
Trademarks and trade names Indefinite 61,176 – 11,469 –

Total with indefinite lives 225,475 – 115,169 –

Covenants not to compete 2 – 4 1,112 843 1,112 595
Patents 11 – 13 5,320 1,121 5,320 687
Manufacturing technology 1 – 2 2,516 1,124 – –
Customer relationships, including backlog 10 – 19 107,234 16,170 47,731 6,777

Total with finite lives 116,182 19,258 54,163 8,059

Total intangible assets $ 341,657 $ 19,258 $ 169,332 $ 8,059

The following table summarizes changes in goodwill:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Beginning balance $ 103,700 $ 66,071
Current period acquisitions 60,982 42,794
Current period dispositions – (5,165)
Effect of changes in foreign
currency translation rates (383) –

Ending balance $ 164,299 $ 103,700

Amortization expense for intangible assets included in
the Consolidated Statements of Income was as follows:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Amortization expense $ 11,315 $ 4,382 $ 1,493

Amortization expense for these intangible assets is
expected to total $15.2 million in 2012, $14.2 million in
2013, $12.0 million in 2014, $10.5 million in 2015, and
$9.1 in 2016.

Through December 31, 2011, no impairment of these
assets has been recognized. A total of $38.3 million of
goodwill is deductible for tax purposes, and is being amor-
tized on the U.S. tax return. The accumulated tax amor-
tization on this deductible goodwill was $21.9 million and
$18.6 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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NOTE 9: ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Salaries, wages, and related withholdings $ 29,275 $ 27,133
Employee benefits 8,425 5,460
Advertising 6,814 5,260
Accrued customer incentive programs 6,020 4,802
Accrued taxes 5,758 2,758
Product liability reserves 4,841 4,016
Accrued professional services fees 2,088 1,308
Unrealized loss on derivative
instruments 1,813 –

Product warranty reserve 1,539 616
Accrued interest 1,340 536
Other 5,078 3,737

Total accrued expenses $ 72,991 $ 55,626

NOTE 10: DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Revolving credit facility borrowings $ 228,200 $ –
Term loans 296,250 350,000
Debt of PBL 5,912 –

Total debt 530,362 350,000
Less current maturities (20,348) (10,250)

Long-term debt, net of current
maturities $ 510,014 $ 339,750

Weighted average interest rate at end
of period 2.85% 5.14%

Minimum principal payments required are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands) Payments

2012 $ 20,348
2013 15,188
2014 15,188
2015 15,188
2016 464,450

Total debt $ 530,362

Senior Credit Facilities. The Company, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., maintains a senior credit
facility with General Electric Capital Corporation as Agent
for the Lenders and also as a lender, which has been
amended and restated on several occasions, including an
amendment and restatement on August 9, 2010, an
amendment on January 28, 2011, and an amendment and
restatement on June 13, 2011. As of December 31, 2011,
the senior credit facilities consisted of a revolving credit
facility and a term loan.

August 2010 Third Amendment and Restatement of Senior Credit
Facilities. On August 9, 2010, the Company entered into
the Third Amendment and Restatement of its senior credit
facilities that included the following key terms:
❚ Maximum borrowings under the revolving credit facility

were increased from $60.0 million to $75.0 million and
the maturity date was extended to August 2015.

❚ The term loan B facility was increased to $275.0 million
and the maturity date was extended to August 2016.

❚ The interest rates on the revolving credit facility and the
term loan B were modified.

❚ A term loan A facility was established at $75.0 million
with a maturity date of August 2015.

❚ Certain financial and other covenants were amended
and revised.

❚ The Company paid $6.3 million in fees and transaction
costs in connection with this amendment.
The Company used the $350.0 million combined pro-

ceeds of the two term loans to repay the principal out-
standing under its previous term loan B facility and its
87⁄8% senior subordinated notes originally due August 1,
2012. These 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes were
redeemed in full on September 16, 2010, following the
expiration of the required redemption notification period.
In conjunction with the redemption of the 87⁄8% senior
subordinated notes and the repayment of principal on the
previous term loan B, the Company expensed $3.5 million
in unamortized deferred financing costs.

January 2011 Amendment of Senior Credit Facilities. On Jan-
uary 28, 2011, the senior credit facility was amended to
facilitate a foreign subsidiary reorganization and to allow
additional flexibility for making foreign acquisitions.

June 2011 Fourth Amendment and Restatement of Senior Credit
Facilities. On June 13, 2011, the Company entered into the
Fourth Amendment and Restatement of its senior credit
facilities that included the following key terms, effective
upon the initial funding date of August 9, 2011:
❚ Maximum borrowings under the revolving credit facility

were increased from $75.0 million to $400.0 million and
the maturity date was extended to August 31, 2016.

❚ A new $300.0 million term loan facility was established
with a maturity date of August 31, 2016 and the existing
term loans A and B were paid in full on August 9, 2011.

❚ The interest rates on the revolving credit facility and the
term loan were reduced as described below.

❚ Certain financial and other covenants were amended and
revised. The covenant limiting maximum capital
expenditures to $42.5 million within a calendar year was
eliminated. The maximum leverage ratio was modified
as described below. Other covenant modifications were
made to increase maximum amounts allowed for acquis-
ition transactions and indebtedness, including inter-
company indebtedness.
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❚ The Company paid $6.5 million in fees and transaction
costs in connection with the Fourth Amendment and
Restatement. On the initial funding date the Company
expensed $3.9 million, consisting of unamortized
deferred financing costs as well as certain fees and
transaction costs associated with this amendment.
Current Terms of Senior Credit Facilities. The revolving credit

facility provides for total available borrowings of up to
$400.0 million, reduced by outstanding letters of credit,
and further restricted by a specific leverage ratio. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company had the ability to bor-
row an additional $163.9 million under the terms of the
revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit facility
bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.50% or at an index rate, as
defined in the credit agreement, plus 1.50%, and matures
on August 31, 2016. Interest is payable on the individual
maturity dates for each LIBOR-based borrowing and
monthly on index rate-based borrowings. Any outstanding
principal is due in its entirety on the maturity date.

The term loan facility also bears interest at LIBOR plus
2.50% or at the index rate plus 1.50% and matures on
August 31, 2016. The term loan facility requires quarterly
principal payments of $3.8 million commencing on
October 1, 2011, with a final payment of $225.0 million
due on the maturity date. Once repaid, principal under the
term loan facility may not be re-borrowed.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenants relating to:
❚ Minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.15, defined as

Adjusted EBITDA divided by cash payments for inter-
est, taxes, capital expenditures, scheduled debt principal
payments, and certain other items, calculated on a trail-
ing twelve-month basis.

❚ Maximum leverage ratio, defined as total debt divided
by Adjusted EBITDA, calculated on a trailing twelve-
month basis. The maximum leverage ratio is set at 4.25
through December 31, 2011, 4.00 through June 30,
2012, 3.75 through December 31, 2012, 3.50 through
September 30, 2013, 3.25 through March 31, 2014, and
3.00 thereafter.
In addition, there are covenants or restrictions relating to

acquisitions, investments, loans and advances, indebted-
ness, dividends on our stock, the sale of stock or assets,
and other categories. We were in compliance with all
financial covenants as of December 31, 2011.
Non-compliance with these covenants, if it were to
become an event of default under the terms of the credit
agreement, could result in severe limitations to our overall
liquidity, and the term loan lenders could require immedi-
ate repayment of outstanding amounts, potentially requir-
ing sale of a sufficient amount of our assets to repay the
outstanding loans.

The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional man-
datory repayment requirements related to the sale of
Company assets, the issuance of stock under certain cir-
cumstances, or upon the Company’s annual generation of
excess cash flow, as determined under the credit agree-
ment. Our debt is not subject to any triggers that would
require early payment due to any adverse change in our
credit rating.

Our senior credit facility debt is incurred by our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc. Blount International, Inc.
and all of its domestic subsidiaries other than Blount, Inc.
guarantee Blount, Inc.’s obligations under the senior credit
facilities. The obligations under the senior credit facilities
are collateralized by a first priority security interest in
substantially all of the assets of Blount, Inc. and its domes-
tic subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s
capital stock held by Blount International, Inc. and all of
the stock of domestic subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc.
Blount, Inc. has also pledged 65% of the stock of its direct
non-domestic subsidiaries as additional collateral.

Debt of PBL. In conjunction with the acquisition of PBL
we assumed $13.5 million of PBL’s debt, consisting of
current and long-term bank obligations, revolving credit
facilities, and $0.6 million in capital lease obligations.
Certain components of this debt are secured by certain of
PBL’s assets. Certain of PBL’s bank obligations include
prepayment penalty terms. During 2011, we repaid $7.8
million of PBL’s debt and we intend to retire PBL’s
remaining debt, other than its capital leases, during 2012.
Therefore, PBL’s bank debt is classified as current as of
December 31, 2011 in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

NOTE 11: INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Current
Federal $ 16,249 $ 7,828 $ 2,343
State 1,116 1,973 186
Foreign 5,572 4,521 4,266

Deferred
Federal 155 2,846 2,257
State 751 447 89
Foreign 1,425 768 (201)

Provision for income taxes $ 25,268 $ 18,383 $ 8,940

The provision is reported as
follows:
Continuing operations $ 25,268 $ 11,209 $ 8,321
Discontinued operations – 7,174 619

Provision for income taxes $ 25,268 $ 18,383 $ 8,940
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The Company also recorded the following deferred tax
amounts directly to the components of stockholders’ equity:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Pension liability adjustment $ 15,340 $ 700 $ (5,680)
Change in unrealized losses
(gains) (2,180) 261 (1,000)

Stock options exercised 877 1,340 (73)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Income before income taxes:
Domestic $ 50,357 $ 27,521 $ 2,383
Foreign 24,593 25,090 27,883

Total $ 74,950 $ 52,611 $ 30,266

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income
taxes from continuing operations to the amount computed
by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income
from continuing operations before income taxes was
as follows:

% of income (loss) before tax
2011 2010 2009

U.S. Federal statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 34.0%
Impact of earnings of foreign
operations (2.2) (6.6) (17.9)

Repatriation of foreign earnings 0.3 1.7 2.6
Federal and state research tax credits (0.2) (1.7) (1.2)
State income taxes, net of federal tax
benefit 2.2 0.9 0.2

Permanent differences (0.4) (1.4) 2.3
Change in deferred taxes due to
expired foreign tax credits 2.3 3.3 –

Change in uncertain tax positions (4.6) (12.4) 5.5
Acquisition transaction costs 1.9 0.6 –
Other 1.7 2.0 1.9

Effective income tax rate before
valuation allowance 36.0 21.4 27.4

Valuation allowance (2.3) (0.1) 0.1

Effective income tax rate after
valuation allowance 33.7% 21.3% 27.5%

The tax rates that apply to our foreign locations can dif-
fer significantly from our domestic income tax rate. For
example, our subsidiary in China is currently taxed at a
reduced tax rate during the phase-out period of our pre-
vious tax holiday. Under this tax holiday program, our tax
rate was 12.5% for 2009, 2010, and 2011, and will revert
to the full statutory rate of 25% beginning in 2012. Also,
the relative proportion of taxable income earned domes-
tically versus internationally can fluctuate significantly
from year to year. Movements in currency exchange rates

can generate tax deductible foreign currency losses and
taxable foreign currency gains at our foreign subsidiaries
that are not recognized for book purposes, thus impacting
the effective tax rate reported on our book income. Differ-
ent allocations in the proportional taxable income among
jurisdictions from year to year can also affect the impact of
state income taxes. Changes in estimated tax contingencies
can also significantly impact our effective tax rate from
year to year.

The components of deferred income taxes applicable to
temporary differences at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are
as follows:

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefits and compensation $ 37,119 $ 25,421
Other accrued expenses 13,177 10,120
Net operating loss, capital loss, and
credit carryforwards 741 2,593

Foreign 2,358 3,928

Gross deferred tax assets 53,395 42,062
Less valuation allowance (603) (2,314)

Deferred tax assets net of valuation
allowance 52,792 39,748

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant, and equipment asset
basis differences (15,252) (10,572)

Intangible asset basis differences (60,497) (25,609)
Foreign (5,236) (4,517)

Total deferred tax liabilities (80,985) (40,698)

Net deferred tax liability $ (28,193) $ (950)

We currently have no federal Net Operating Loss
(“NOL”) carryforward. We estimate our state NOL carry-
forwards are $17.7 million as of December 31, 2011.
These carryforwards expire at various dates from 2012
through 2024. Additionally, the Company’s foreign tax
credit carryforward of approximately $1.7 million expired
unused in 2011, and it was written off along with its
related valuation allowance for no net effect. The state
NOL and other carryforwards are available to reduce cash
taxes on future domestic taxable income, although a por-
tion of the state NOL carryforwards are reduced by a valu-
ation allowance reflecting the expectation that the
carryforward period will expire before they can all be fully
utilized.

The periods from 2008 through 2010 remain open and
the U.S. income tax returns for these years are currently
under examination by the IRS. In 2009, the Company
entered into a Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement
(“BAPA”) with the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) and
the IRS. This BAPA brings relative certainty with respect
to transfer pricing between the Company’s U.S. and
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Canada subsidiaries for the years 2002 through 2011, and
the Company is currently working with the CRA and IRS
to extend the agreement through 2016.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on undis-
tributed earnings of international subsidiaries. Manage-
ment’s intention is to reinvest these earnings indefinitely.
As of December 31, 2011, undistributed earnings of inter-
national subsidiaries were approximately $199.2 million.
Repatriation of foreign earnings in 2011, 2010, and 2009
pertained to current earnings of one foreign subsidiary.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of
period $ 11,905 $ 29,754 $ 28,590

Increase (decrease) for tax
positions taken during a
prior period 1,485 (1,458) 91

Increase for tax positions
taken during the current
period 2,125 – 1,073

Settlements – (766) –
Statute of limitations
expirations (9,061) (15,625) –

Balance at end of period $ 6,454 $ 11,905 $ 29,754

These unrecognized tax benefits are included in other
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related
to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had recorded
$1.8 million and $2.2 million of accrued interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
Company recognized net income tax benefits of $0.4 mil-
lion and $1.9 million, respectively, for interest and penal-
ties related to uncertain tax positions. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, the Company recognized a net
income tax expense of $0.9 million for interest and penal-
ties related to uncertain tax positions.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would
affect the Company’s effective tax rate if recognized was $6.5
million as of December 31, 2011 and $11.9 million as of
December 31, 2010. Based on current information, in the
opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity, or
results of operations. However, the ultimate resolution of the
Company’s global tax uncertainties could differ significantly
from management’s expectations.

Based on the potential outcome of these uncertainties or
the expiration of the statute of limitations for specific
jurisdictions, it is reasonably possible that the unrecog-
nized tax benefits could decrease within the next
12 months. The associated net tax benefits, which would
favorably impact the effective tax rate, excluding changes
to valuation allowances, are estimated to range between
zero and $0.9 million.

NOTE 12: RETIREMENT PLANS

Funded Defined Benefit Pension Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans

covering employees in Canada and certain countries in
Europe, and many of its employees in the U.S. The U.S.
plan was frozen effective January 1, 2007. The changes in
benefit obligations, plan assets, and funded status of these
plans for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
were as follows:

Pension Benefits
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year $ (198,180) $ (182,040)

Service cost (3,578) (2,525)
Interest cost (10,935) (10,600)
Actuarial losses (32,255) (15,251)
Benefits and plan expenses paid 12,541 12,236
Projected benefit obligation
assumed in acquisitions (482) –

Projected benefit obligations at end
of year (232,889) (198,180)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of year 179,570 155,711

Actual return on plan assets 5,703 20,101
Company contributions 17,790 15,994
Benefits and plan expenses paid (12,541) (12,236)

Fair value of plan assets at end of
year 190,522 179,570

Net funded status at end of year $ (42,367) $ (18,610)

Amounts recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Non-current assets $ – $ 1,450
Non-current liabilities (42,367) (20,060)

The accumulated benefit obligations for the above defined
benefit pension plans at December 31, 2011 and 2010 totaled
$216.7 million and $184.5 million, respectively.
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The fair value of plan assets was as follows:

December 31, 2011
(Amounts in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Category:
Money market mutual funds $ 639 $ 639 $ – $ –
Guaranteed insurance contracts 2,803 – 2,803 –
U.S. large cap equity securities 45,008 – 45,008 –
U.S. small/mid cap equity securities 4,116 – 4,116 –
International equity securities 41,399 – 41,399 –
Emerging markets equity securities 3,559 – 3,559 –
U.S. debt securities 64,001 – 64,001 –
International debt securities 23,482 – 23,482 –
Hedge funds 5,515 – – 5,515

Total fair value of plan assets $ 190,522 $ 639 $ 184,368 $ 5,515

December 31, 2010
(Amounts in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Category:
Money market mutual funds $ 282 $ 282 $ – $ –
Guaranteed insurance contracts 2,287 – 2,287 –
U.S. large cap equity securities 44,257 – 44,257 –
U.S. small/mid cap equity securities 4,169 – 4,169 –
International equity securities 41,492 – 41,492 –
Emerging markets equity securities 3,638 – 3,638 –
U.S. debt securities 54,487 – 54,487 –
International debt securities 23,627 – 23,627 –
Hedge funds 5,331 – – 5,331

Total fair value of plan assets $ 179,570 $ 282 $ 173,957 $ 5,331

As specified in ASC 820, the framework for measuring
fair value is based on independent observable inputs of
market data and follows the following hierarchy:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.
Level 2 – Significant observable inputs based on quoted
prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are not active, and model-based valuations for which all
significant assumptions are observable.
Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs that are
supported by little or no market activity that are sig-
nificant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

When developing fair value measurements, it is the
Company’s policy to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The money market mutual funds are valued by reference
to quoted market prices.

The guaranteed insurance contracts are valued based on
information provided by the investment custodians.

The U.S. large cap equity securities consist of mutual
funds and commingled pooled funds that invest in equity
securities of U.S. companies with large market capital-
izations. These funds seek long-term growth and invest in
diversified portfolios across multiple industries. These

funds are valued based on information provided by the
plan’s investment custodians.

The U.S. small/mid cap equity securities consist of mutual
funds and commingled pooled funds that invest in equity
securities of U.S. companies with small to medium market
capitalizations. These funds seek higher rates of long-term
growth and invest in diversified portfolios across multiple
industries. These funds are valued based on information pro-
vided by the plan’s investment custodians.

The international equity securities consist of mutual
funds and commingled pooled funds that invest in equity
securities of international companies in developed coun-
tries. These funds seek long-term growth and invest in
diversified portfolios across multiple industries and geo-
graphic regions. These funds are valued based on
information provided by the plan’s investment custodians.

The emerging markets equity securities consist of
mutual funds and commingled pooled funds that invest in
equity securities of international companies in developing
countries with emerging economies. These funds seek
higher rates of long-term growth and invest in diversified
portfolios across multiple industries and geographic
regions. These funds are valued based on information
provided by the plan’s investment custodians.
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The U.S. debt securities consist of mutual funds and
commingled pooled funds that invest in debt securities of
U.S. companies. These funds seek lower volatility than
equity investments and invest in diversified portfolios
across multiple industries and with varying maturity peri-
ods. These funds are valued based on information provided
by the plan’s investment custodians.

The international debt securities consist of mutual funds
and commingled pooled funds that invest in debt securities
of companies outside the U.S. These funds seek lower
volatility than international equity investments and invest
in diversified portfolios across multiple industries and
geographies, as well as with varying maturity periods.
These funds are valued based on information provided by
the plan’s investment custodians.

The hedge funds consist of investments in partnerships
and other entities that in turn invest in portfolios of under-
lying securities. The fund manager seeks returns that move
in the opposite direction of the securities to which they are
hedged. These funds are valued based on information
provided by the plan’s investment custodians.

The financial statements of the funds are audited annu-
ally by independent accountants. The value of the under-
lying investments is determined by the investment
manager based on the estimated fair value of the various
holdings of the portfolio as reported in the financial state-
ments at net asset value. The preceding methods described
may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of the net realizable value or reflective of future
fair values. Furthermore, although the plan believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with
other market participants, the use of different method-
ologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of cer-
tain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The assets of these plans are invested in various invest-
ment securities. There were no significant concentrations
of investment risk in plan assets. Investment securities are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and
credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investment securities will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect
the amount of the plan assets.

There were no significant transfers between assets in
Level 1 and Level 2, except for amounts moved from
Level 2 to money market mutual funds for the purpose of
making cash disbursements for plan expenses and benefit
payments. The Level 1 and Level 2 plan assets above may

generally be redeemed with 5 or fewer days’ notice. The
Level 3 plan assets above may be redeemed with a mini-
mum of 30 days’ notice and after certain other conditions
are met.

The change in fair value of Level 3 plan assets for the
year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

(Amounts in thousands) 2011

Fair value at beginning of year $ 5,331
Actual return on assets:
Relating to assets still held at end of year 184
Relating to assets sold during the year –

Purchases, sales, and settlements –
Transfers in/out of Level 3 –

Fair value at end of year $ 5,515

The projected benefit payments for these plans over the
next ten years are estimated as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

Estimated
Benefit

Payments

2012 $ 8,387
2013 8,738
2014 9,229
2015 9,725
2016 10,220
2017 – 2021 60,213

Total estimated benefit payments over next ten years $ 106,512

The Company annually contributes the required mini-
mum amounts required by pension funding regulations.
From time to time, the Company also makes additional
voluntary contributions to these plans in order to increase
the funding levels and reduce the amount of required
future contributions, as well as to reduce the amount of
expense recognized for these plans. The Company expects
to contribute approximately $16 million to $18 million to
its funded pension plans in 2012, including $10 million
of voluntary contribution to the U.S. defined benefit
pension plan.

Unfunded Supplemental Non-Qualified Retirement Plans

The Company sponsors various supplemental
non-qualified retirement plans covering certain employees
and former employees in the U.S. These plans were frozen
effective January 1, 2007, and employees who were partic-
ipants in these non-qualified plans on that date ceased
accruing additional benefits. New employees are not eligi-
ble to participate in these plans. All retirement benefits
accrued up to the time of the freeze were preserved.

56 BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.



g

285309 TX 57BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL
FORM 10-K

17-Mar-2012 04:22 EST
CLN PSNYM

RR Donnelley ProFile NER kumar9ap 5*
PMT 1C

nerdoc1
10.10.12

The changes in benefit obligations and funded status of
these non-qualified plans for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Unfunded Retirement Plans
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Change in Benefit Obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year $ (5,700) $ (5,733)

Service cost – –
Interest cost (302) (319)
Actuarial losses (746) (231)
Benefits and plan expenses paid 583 583

Projected benefit obligations at
end of year (6,165) (5,700)

Net unfunded status at end of year $ (6,165) $ (5,700)

Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Current liabilities $ (558) $ (556)
Non-current liabilities (5,607) (5,144)

Net liability recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets $ (6,165) $ (5,700)

The Company accounts for its retirement plans in accord-
ance with ASC 715. The net obligation for the Company’s
retirement plans is included in accrued expenses and employee
benefit obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Periodic Benefit Cost and Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other

comprehensive loss and the weighted average assumptions
used in accounting for funded and unfunded pension bene-
fits follow:

Pension Benefits
Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 3,577 $ 2,524 $ 2,268
Interest cost 11,238 10,920 10,725
Expected return on
plan assets (13,976) (12,258) (10,178)

Amortization of
actuarial losses 4,294 3,702 5,055

Amortization of prior
service cost (6) (6) (6)

Total net periodic benefit cost
recognized in
income statement $ 5,127 $ 4,882 $ 7,864

Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial (gains) losses $ 37,491 $ 3,936 $(14,305)
Prior service cost 6 6 6

Total recognized in
accumulated other
comprehensive loss $ 37,497 $ 3,942 $(14,299)

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to
determine net periodic
benefit cost 5.6% 6.1% 6.2%

Discount rate used to
determine year end benefit
obligations 4.6% 5.6% 6.0%

Expected return on assets
used to determine net
periodic benefit cost 7.7% 7.9% 8.2%

Rate of compensation increase 3.0% 3.0% 3.5%
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The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss
expected to be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost in 2012 are actuarial losses of $7.7 million and
prior service costs of $6 thousand.

The Company annually evaluates and selects the dis-
count rates to be used for its pension plans. Consideration
is given to relevant indices for high quality fixed rate debt
securities, as well as comparable rates for high quality
corporate bonds with terms comparable to the projected
cash flows for the respective plans, as of the measurement
date. The expected long-term rate of return on assets was
chosen from the range of likely results of compound aver-
age annual returns based on the current investment poli-
cies. The expected return and volatility for each asset class
was based on historical equity, bond, and cash returns over
a twenty year time horizon, based on repetitive modeling
of outcomes using an extended period of historical actual
results. While this approach gives appropriate consid-
eration to recent fund performance and historical returns,
the assumption is primarily a long-term, prospective rate.

The Company maintains target allocation percentages
among various asset classes based on investment policies
established for these plans. The target allocation is
designed to achieve long-term objectives of return, while
mitigating downside risk and considering expected cash
flows. For the U.S. retirement plan the allocation of pen-
sion plan assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and
target allocation as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
Actual Allocation

December 31, 2011 Target
2011 2010 Allocation

Money market mutual funds 0.5% 0.2% 2.0%
U.S. large cap equity securities 26.8% 28.7% 26.2%
U.S. small/mid cap equity
securities 3.1% 3.4% 3.0%

International equity securities 13.6% 14.9% 14.3%
Emerging markets equity
securities 1.4% 1.6% 1.5%

U.S. debt securities 48.4% 44.8% 46.0%
International debt securities 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Hedge funds 4.2% 4.4% 5.0%

For the Canadian retirement plan the allocation of pen-
sion plan assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and
target allocation as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
Actual Allocation

December 31, 2011 Target
2011 2010 Allocation

U.S. large cap equity securities 17.2% 16.8% 17.0%
International equity securities 42.3% 42.0% 42.0%
Emerging markets equity
securities 3.0% 3.1% 3.0%

International debt securities 37.5% 38.1% 38.0%

Defined Contribution Plan
The Company also sponsors a 401(k) plan covering

substantially all U.S. employees and matches a portion of
employee contributions as well as making an additional
contribution to all employees based on years of service and
regardless of whether or not the employee contributes to
the plan.

Total expenses recognized for the 401(k) Plan are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Expense $ 6,052 $ 5,466 $ 5,166
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NOTE 13: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors two unfunded post-retirement
medical programs covering many of its current and former
employees in the U.S. and one post-retirement death bene-
fit plan covering a limited number of former employees.

The changes in benefit obligations, plan assets, and
funded status of these plans for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, were as follows:

Other Post-Retirement Benefits
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year $ (38,126) $ (37,854)

Service cost (261) (270)
Interest cost (1,972) (2,095)
Participant contributions (1,878) (1,890)
Actuarial losses, net (8,083) (1,273)
Benefits and plan expenses paid 4,655 5,256

Projected benefit obligations at
end of year $ (45,665) $ (38,126)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of year $ – $ –

Company contributions 2,777 3,366
Participant contributions 1,878 1,890
Benefits and plan expenses paid (4,655) (5,256)

Fair value of plan assets at end
of year – –

Net unfunded status at
end of year $ (45,665) $ (38,126)

Other Post-Retirement Benefits
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Current liabilities $ (2,713) $ (2,801)
Non-current liabilities (42,952) (35,325)

Net liability recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets $ (45,665) $ (38,126)

The projected benefit payments for these plans, net of
the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy expected to be
received by the Company over the next ten years, are
estimated as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

Estimated
Gross Benefit

Payments

Estimated
Medicare

Part D
Subsidy

Estimated Net
Benefit

Payments

2012 $ 3,029 $ 257 $ 2,772
2013 3,092 276 2,816
2014 3,153 293 2,860
2015 3,177 309 2,868
2016 3,190 317 2,873
2017 – 2021 15,644 1,646 13,998

Total estimated benefit
payments over next
ten years $ 31,285 $ 3,098 $ 28,187

The Company expects to meet funding requirements for
its unfunded post-retirement medical and other benefit
plans on a pay-as-you-go basis during 2012.

The Company accounts for post-retirement medical
plans in accordance with ASC 712. The obligation for the
other post-retirement benefit plans is reported in employee
benefit obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Periodic Benefit Cost and Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other

comprehensive loss and the weighted average assumptions
used in accounting for other post-retirement benefits were
as follows:

Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $ 261 $ 270 $ 266
Interest cost 1,972 2,095 2,021
Amortization of actuarial losses 871 849 765

Total net periodic benefit
cost recognized in
income statement $ 3,104 $ 3,214 $ 3,052

Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial losses (gains) $ 7,212 $ 424 $ (663)

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to determine
net periodic benefit cost 5.5% 5.8% 5.8%

Discount rate used to determine
year end benefit obligations 4.3% 5.5% 5.8%

The amount in accumulated other comprehensive loss
expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic
benefit cost in 2012 is $1.8 million in actuarial losses.

The Company annually evaluates and selects the dis-
count rates to be used in accounting for these plans. Con-
sideration is given to relevant indices for high quality fixed
rate debt securities and to specific debt securities with
maturity dates similar to the expected timing of cash out-
flows for the plans as of the measurement date. The annual
rate of increase in the cost of health care benefits was
assumed to be 9% in 2009, 10% in 2010, and 9% in 2011.
As of December 31, 2011, the annual rate of increase in
cost of health care benefits is assumed to be 10% in 2012,
declining by 1% per year until 5% is reached. A 1%
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have
had the following effects for 2011:

(Amounts in thousands) 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on service and interest cost
components $ 257 $ (212)

Effect on other post-retirement
benefit obligations 5,329 (4,382)
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NOTE 14: COMMITMENTS

The Company leases office space and equipment under
operating leases expiring in one to 17 years. Most leases
include renewal options and some contain purchase
options and escalation clauses. Future minimum rental
commitments required under operating leases having ini-
tial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of
one year as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

Future Minimum
Operating Lease

Commitments

2012 $ 6,375
2013 6,114
2014 5,500
2015 4,134
2016 3,761
2017 – beyond 19,217

Total commitment $ 45,101

Rentals charged to costs and expenses for continuing
operations under cancelable and non-cancelable lease
arrangements were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Rental charges $ 5,101 $ 3,573 $ 2,155

As of December 31, 2011 the Company did not have any
material capital leases. See also Note 10.

Guarantees and other commercial commitments include
the following:

(Amounts in thousands) December 31, 2011

Product warranty reserves $ 1,539
Letters of credit outstanding 6,488
Other financial guarantees 3,470

Total $ 11,497

In addition to these amounts, the Company also guaran-
tees certain debt of its subsidiaries. See also Note 10.

Changes in the warranty reserve were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of period $ 616 $ 125 $ 136
Warranty reserve of acquired
businesses 785 421 –

Warranty reserve related to
discontinued operations – (40) –

Accrued warranty expense 631 1,495 735
Payments made (in cash or
in-kind) (493) (1,385) (746)

Balance at end of period $ 1,539 $ 616 $ 125

The warranty reserve related to our discontinued oper-
ations, Gear Products, was assumed by the buyer under the
terms of the stock purchase agreement. See also Note 21.

Other guarantees and claims arise during the ordinary
course of business from relationships with suppliers and
customers when we undertake an obligation to guarantee
the performance of others if specified triggering events
occur. Nonperformance of a contract could trigger an obli-
gation of the Company. In addition, certain guarantees
relate to contractual indemnification provisions in con-
nection with transactions involving the purchase or sale of
stock or assets. These claims include actions based upon
intellectual property, environmental, product liability, and
other indemnification matters. The ultimate effect on
future financial results is not subject to reasonable estima-
tion because considerable uncertainty exists as to the
occurrence or, if triggered, final outcome of these claims.
However, while the ultimate liabilities resulting from such
claims may be potentially significant to results of oper-
ations in the period recognized, management does not
anticipate they will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or liquidity.
See also Note 15.

NOTE 15: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company reserves for product liability, environ-
mental remediation, and other legal matters as manage-
ment becomes aware of such matters. A portion of these
claims or lawsuits may be covered by insurance policies
that generally contain both deductible and coverage limits.
Management monitors the progress of each legal matter to
ensure that the appropriate reserve for its obligation has
been recognized and disclosed in the financial statements.
Management also monitors trends in case types to
determine if there are any specific issues that relate to the
Company that may result in additional future exposure on
an aggregate basis. As of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, management believes the Company
has appropriately recorded and disclosed all material costs
for its obligations in regard to known matters. Manage-
ment believes that the recoverability of the costs of claims
from insurance companies will continue in the future.
Management periodically assesses these insurance compa-
nies to monitor their ability to pay such claims.

The Company was named a potentially liable person
(“PLP”) by the Washington State Department of Ecology
(“WDOE”) in connection with the Pasco Sanitary Landfill
Site (“Site”). This Site has been monitored by WDOE
since 1988. From available records, the Company believes
that it sent 26 drums of chromic hydroxide sludge in a
non-toxic, trivalent state to the Site. The Company further
believes that the Site contains more than 50,000 drums in
total and millions of gallons of additional wastes, some
potentially highly toxic in nature. Accordingly, based both
on volume and on the nature of the waste, the Company
believes that it is a de minimis contributor.
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The current on-site monitoring program is being con-
ducted and funded by certain PLPs, excluding the Com-
pany and several other PLPs, under the supervision of
WDOE. During 2007 and 2008, WDOE requested that the
participating PLPs conduct further study and prepare a
new “scope of work.” It is likely that such new scope of
work, once proposed by the participating PLPs and
approved by WDOE, will result in additional work and
costs in the future. The Company may or may not be
required to contribute to the cost of this new or any sub-
sequent studies or remediation, if any. The Company is
unable to estimate such costs, or the likelihood of being
assessed any portion thereof. The Company incurred no
costs during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009 in connection with the remediation efforts at
the Site.

In March 2010, the Company received an offer from
Region 9 of the Environmental Protection Agency of the
U.S. (the “EPA”) to resolve its potential liability regarding
the Operating Industries, Inc. Superfund Site in Monterey
Park, California, involving a subsidiary of the former
Omark Industries, Inc., which merged with the Company
in 1985. The Company submitted its consent to enter into
an administrative settlement agreement for the Company’s
pro rata share of the site’s clean-up costs as a de minimis
participant. Accordingly, the Company recognized a
charge of $0.1 million in the first quarter of 2010 in
settlement of this matter. In February 2011, the Company
received notice from the EPA that the de minimis settle-
ment agreement has been accepted by a sufficient number
of parties and payment of $0.1 million was made to the
EPA on March 1, 2011. In May 2011 the EPA notified the
Company that the administrative order embodying the set-
tlement was in full effect with respect to the Company.

With respect to certain proceedings involving Carlton,
which the Company acquired on May 2, 2008, the Com-
pany has determined that in 1989 contamination of soil
and groundwater by trichloroethylene (“TCE”) and other
volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) was discovered at
Carlton’s facility located in Milwaukie, Oregon (the
“Carlton Site”) in connection with the removal of two
underground storage tanks. On November 19, 1990, Carl-
ton entered into a Consent Order with the Oregon Depart-
ment of Environmental Quality (“DEQ”), which was
amended in 1996, 1997, and 2000, pursuant to which the
Company continues to investigate, remediate, and monitor
the contamination under the supervision of the DEQ. The

Company recognized an initial reserve of $3.4 million at
the time of its acquisition of Carlton representing the esti-
mated costs to remediate this site. Although there can be
no assurance that the currently estimated cost and scope of
remediation will not change in the future due to the
imposition of additional remediation obligations by the
DEQ, the detection of additional contamination in the
future or other later discovered facts, the Company does
not believe that any remediation will have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position,
operating results or cash flows. In addition, beginning
October 2010 and continuing through November 2011, the
Company received insurance proceeds to reimburse certain
of the expenditures for this remediation effort. The Com-
pany does not expect to receive additional insurance pro-
ceeds in this matter.

The Company is a defendant in a number of product
liability lawsuits, some of which seek significant or
unspecified damages involving serious personal injuries,
for which there are retentions or deductible amounts under
the Company’s insurance policies. Some of these lawsuits
arise out of the Company’s duty to indemnify certain
purchasers of the Company’s discontinued operations for
lawsuits involving products manufactured prior to the sale
of certain of these businesses. In addition, the Company is
a party to a number of other suits arising out of the normal
course of its business, including suits concerning commer-
cial contracts, employee matters, and intellectual property
rights. In some instances the Company has been the plain-
tiff, and has sought recovery of damages. In others, the
Company is a defendant against whom damages are
sought. While there can be no assurance as to their ulti-
mate outcome, management does not believe these law-
suits will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, operating results or cash
flows in the future. However, during the year ended
December 31, 2009, the Company recognized a total of
$8.7 million in expense related to legal settlements, the
majority of which pertained to a single case in which the
Company was a defendant on a patent infringement claim.

The Company accrues, by a charge to income, an
amount representing management’s best estimate of the
undiscounted probable loss related to any matter deemed
by management and its counsel as a reasonably probable
loss contingency in light of all of the then known circum-
stances.
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NOTE 16: EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

Shares used in the denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Shares in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Actual weighted average common shares outstanding-used for basic per share computation 48,701 47,917 47,758
Dilutive effect of common stock equivalents 733 591 516

Shares for diluted income per share computation 49,434 48,508 48,274

Common stock equivalents excluded from computation as anti-dilutive 381 961 1,696

Unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) considered to be participating securities 124 121 126
Effect of allocation of undistributed earnings to participating securities under the two class method –
basic earnings per share $ – $ (0.01) $ –

Effect of allocation of undistributed earnings to participating securities under the two class method –
diluted earnings per share $ (0.01) $ – $ –

No adjustment was required to reported amounts for
inclusion in the numerators of the per share computations.

NOTE 17: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with ASC 718. All share-based compensation to
employees, directors, and others who perform services for the
Company is valued at estimated fair value on the date of grant
and expensed over the applicable service period.

On April 25, 2006, the Company’s stockholders
approved the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”). The 2006 Plan provides
for a variety of stock-based award instruments and terms.
Stock awards generally vest over a three year period and
stock options and stock appreciation rights (“SARS”)
generally carry a ten year expiration term. The maximum
number of shares that may be awarded under the 2006
Plan was initially set at 4,236,919, of which 736,919
represented shares that remained unused under the
Company’s previous plans that were transferred to
the 2006 Plan. The maximum number of incentive
stock options that may be issued under the 2006 Plan
is 1,750,000.

The fair values of options and stock-settled SARs were
estimated on their respective grant dates using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model. The estimated average life
of SARs granted in 2009, 2010, and 2011 was derived
from the “simplified” method. The risk-free interest rate is

based on the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury
zero-coupon issues with the remaining term equal to the
average life. The expected volatility factors used are based
on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The
expected dividend yield is based on historical information
and management estimate. The Company generally applies
an estimated average forfeiture rate on its broad-based
stock awards granted to a diverse population of employees,
which reduces the expense recognized. A zero percent
forfeiture rate assumption was applied on the two stock
grants made in 2009 to two new executive officers, as the
Company estimates that such grants will not result in any
forfeitures. The estimated forfeiture rate is based on the
historical forfeiture rate, and is adjusted to the actual for-
feiture rate over the life of the stock awards.

The following assumptions were used to estimate fair
value of stock options and SARs:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Estimated average lives 6 years 6 years 6 years
Risk-free interest rate 2.4% 2.8% 2.7%
Expected volatility 48.4%-49.5% 49.7% 44.5%-44.9%
Weighted average
volatility 47.5% 49.7% 44.9%

Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Weighted average grant
date fair value $ 7.36 $ 5.94 $ 4.26

Estimated forfeiture rate 5.5% 5.0% 0.0%
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A summary of stock option and stock-settled SARs activity is presented in the following tables:

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Shares
(in 000’s)

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted
Average

Contractual
Life

(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in 000’s)

Outstanding options and SARs at beginning of period 3,601 $ 11.02
SARs granted 479 15.10
Options exercised (220) 4.72
SARs exercised (90) 12.96
Options forfeited or expired (18) 14.92
SARs forfeited or expired (68) 14.49

Outstanding options and SARs at end of period 3,684 11.79 5.8 $ 12,230

Outstanding options at end of period 1,748 9.56 4.8 9,538
Outstanding SARs at end of period 1,936 13.81 6.6 2,692
Options exercisable at end of period 1,465 9.64 4.3 8,026
SARs exercisable at end of period 958 14.26 4.9 1,046

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 2,655 $ 3,512 $ 418
Estimated fair value of options and SARs that vested 3,747 2,890 1,815
Stock-based compensation cost recognized in income 4,441 3,290 1,582
Total tax benefit related to share-based compensation recognized 1,560 1,016 441
Total amount of cash received from options exercised 1,041 2,398 283
Tax (expense) benefit realized from options exercised 877 1,340 (73)
Cash used to settle equity instruments – – –

As of December 31, 2011, the total compensation cost
related to awards not yet recognized was $6.7 million. The
weighted average period over which this expense is
expected to be recognized is two years. The Company’s
policy upon the exercise of options or SARs has been to
issue new shares into the market place.

Under certain conditions, some of the stock options,
SARs, restricted stock, and RSUs granted by the Company
before 2009 were eligible for continued vesting upon a
qualified retirement of the employee. ASC Section 718
requires that the fair value of such stock-based compensa-
tion should be expensed based on an accelerated service
period, or immediately, rather than ratably over the vesting
period stated in the grant, for employees who are eligible
for a qualified retirement prior to the completion of the
vesting period. The net effect of applying accelerated
expense recognition for those employees who were eligi-
ble for retirement on the grant date, or became eligible for

retirement within the vesting period, was an increase of
$0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2011, a
decrease of $0.4 million during the year ended
December 31, 2010, and a decrease of $1.2 million during
the year ended December 31, 2009.

Restricted Stock Awards. The following activity occurred
in the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

RSUs awarded 112 119 –
Total fair value of RSUs awarded $ 1,695 $ 1,413 $ –
Total expense recognized for
RSUs 920 639 465

Tax Benefits. The Company has elected to use the tran-
sition short-cut method to determine its pool of windfall
tax benefits in accordance with ASC 718. Tax attributes
are determined under the tax law ordering method.
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NOTE 18: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company identifies operating segments primarily
based on organizational structure, reporting structure, and
the evaluation of the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(Chief Executive Officer). Our organizational structure
reflects our view of the end user market segments we
serve. Following the acquisition of Woods/TISCO in 2011,
the Company reorganized its business into two operating
segments. Segment disclosures in all periods presented
have been restated on a comparable basis. The FLAG
segment, manufactures and markets cutting chain, guide
bars, and drive sprockets for chain saw use, and lawn-
mower and edger blades for outdoor power equipment.
The FLAG segment also purchases branded replacement
parts and accessories from other manufacturers and mar-
kets them to our FLAG customers through our global sales
and distribution network. The FLAG segment currently
includes the operations of the Company that have histor-
ically served the FLAG markets, as well as Carlton, KOX,
and a portion of the PBL business.

The Company’s FRAG segment manufactures and
markets attachments for tractors in a variety of mowing,
cutting, clearing, material handling, landscaping and
grounds maintenance applications, as well as log splitters,
post-hole diggers, self-propelled lawnmowers, attachments
for off-highway construction equipment applications, and
other general purpose tractor attachments. In addition, the
FRAG segment manufactures a variety of attachment cut-
ting blade component parts. The FRAG segment also
purchases replacement parts and accessories from other
manufacturers that we market to our FRAG customers
through our sales and distribution network. The FRAG
segment currently includes the operations of SpeeCo,
Woods/TISCO, and a portion of the PBL business.

The Company also operates a concrete cutting and finish-
ing equipment business that represented 2.9% of 2011
consolidated sales and is reported within the Corporate and
Other category. This business manufactures and markets
diamond cutting chain and assembles and markets concrete
cutting chain saws for the construction equipment market.

The Corporate and Other category also includes the
costs of providing certain centralized administrative func-
tions including accounting, banking, our continuous
improvement program, credit management, finance,
information systems, insurance, legal, our mergers and
acquisitions program, treasury and other functions. We
also include the gain on sale of land and building and plant
closure and severance costs recognized in 2009 within this
Corporate and Other category, because we do not consider
such events to be ongoing aspects of our business seg-
ments’ activities. The accounting policies of the segments
are the same as those described in the summary of sig-
nificant accounting policies.

We evaluate our segment operating performance before
income taxes, and do not consider it meaningful to allocate
tax by segment. Estimations and judgments relevant to the
determination of tax expenses, assets, and liabilities
require analysis of the tax environment and the future prof-
itability, for tax purposes, of local statutory legal entities
rather than business segments. Our statutory legal entity
structure generally does not mirror the way that we organ-
ize, manage, and report our business operations. For
example, the same legal entity or location may include
activity related to our FLAG, FRAG, or concrete cutting
and finishing businesses in a particular country.

Financial information about our segments is presented in
the following tables.

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Sales:
Forestry, lawn, and garden sales to external customers $ 659,883 $ 554,053 $ 467,845
Forestry, lawn, and garden intersegment sales 751 1,040 762
Farm, ranch, and agriculture sales to external customers 147,475 34,200 –
Farm, ranch, and agriculture intersegment sales 50 – –
Corporate and other 24,272 23,227 19,521
Elimination of intersegment sales (801) (1,040) (762)

Total sales $ 831,630 $ 611,480 $ 487,366

Operating income (expense):
Forestry, lawn, and garden $ 115,597 $ 104,113 $ 74,792
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 4,474 1,671 –
Corporate and other (22,118) (20,229) (20,266)

Total operating income $ 97,953 $ 85,555 $ 54,526

Depreciation and amortization:
Forestry, lawn, and garden $ 24,424 $ 21,898 $ 20,631
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 10,024 3,135 –
Corporate and other 1,359 2,567 4,225

Total depreciation and amortization $ 35,807 $ 27,600 $ 24,856
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Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Capital expenditures:
Forestry, lawn, and garden $ 38,767 $ 19,693 $ 16,492
Farm, ranch, and
agriculture 1,600 83 –

Corporate and other 6 226 226

Total capital expenditures $ 40,373 $ 20,002 $ 16,718

Sales by geographic region:
United States $308,593 $194,416 $151,233
European Union 229,103 166,960 147,868
China 45,134 38,967 23,821
Brazil 33,242 29,402 22,372
Canada 25,285 18,853 15,580
Russian Federation 23,375 23,669 14,352
All others, individually
insignificant 166,898 139,213 112,140

Total sales $831,630 $611,480 $487,366

The geographic sales information is by country of desti-
nation. One customer, Husqvarna AB, accounted for
approximately 10% of sales in 2011, 12% of sales in 2010,
and 13% of sales in 2009. While we expect this business
relationship to continue in the future, the loss of this cus-
tomer could significantly affect our operations. No other
single customer represented more than 7% of sales in any
of the preceding three years.

December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

Assets:
Forestry, lawn, and garden $ 472,881 $ 510,639
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 370,422 21,136
Corporate and other 41,269 49,089

Total assets from continuing
operations 884,572 580,864

Discontinued operations – 23

Total assets $ 884,572 $ 580,887

Goodwill:
Forestry, lawn, and garden $ 66,319 $ 60,906
Farm, ranch, and agriculture 97,967 42,794
Corporate and other 13 –

Total goodwill $ 164,299 $ 103,700

Property, plant, and equipment, net:
United States $ 86,677 $ 61,360
China 22,706 15,210
Canada 18,572 18,634
European Union 14,461 2,846
Brazil 12,837 9,851
All other 619 447

Total property, plant, and
equipment, net $ 155,872 $ 108,348

Property, plant, and equipment is shown net of accumu-
lated depreciation. Each of our business units purchases
certain important materials from a limited number of sup-

pliers that meet quality criteria. Although alternative sour-
ces of supply are available, the sudden elimination of cer-
tain suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, a
reduction in product quality, and a possible loss of sales in
the near term.

NOTE 19: SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Interest paid $ 16,961 $ 30,007 $ 20,800
Income taxes paid, net 24,827 14,858 11,895

On August 5, 2011 we assumed $13.5 million in debt
of PBL.

NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity
of those instruments. The carrying amount of accounts
receivable approximates fair value because the maturity
period is short and the Company has reduced the carrying
amount to the estimated net realizable value with an
allowance for doubtful accounts. The fair value of the
senior credit facility principal outstanding is determined by
reference to prices of recent transactions whereby buyers
and sellers exchange their interest in portions of these
loans. Derivative financial instruments are carried on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, as determined
by reference to quoted terms for similar instruments.

The carrying amount of other financial instruments
approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity
periods and variable interest rates associated with the
instruments. The estimated fair values of the senior credit
facility loans at December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010 are presented below. See also Note 10.

2011 2010
(Amounts in
thousands)

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Senior credit
facility debt $524,450 $521,828 $350,000 $352,188

The Company has manufacturing and/or distribution
operations in Brazil, Canada, China, Europe, Japan, Mex-
ico, Russia, and the U.S. The Company sells to customers
in these locations and other countries throughout the
world. At December 31, 2011, approximately 52% of
accounts receivable were from customers outside the U.S.
One customer accounted for 4.8% and 12.2% at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, of the total
accounts receivable balance. No other customer accounted
for more than 3% of accounts receivable at December 31,
2011 or 2010. Accounts receivable are principally from
dealers, distributors, mass merchants, chain saw manu-
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facturers, and other OEMs. The majority of accounts
receivable are not collateralized.

Foreign currency exchange rate movements create a
degree of risk by affecting the U.S. Dollar value of certain
balance sheet positions denominated in foreign currencies.
Additionally, the interest rates available in certain juris-
dictions in which the Company holds cash may vary,
thereby affecting the return on cash equivalent invest-
ments. The Company’s practice has been to occasionally
use foreign currency and interest rate swap agreements to
manage exposure to foreign currency and interest rate
changes on certain cash held in foreign locations. The
objective is to minimize earnings volatility resulting from
conversion and the re-measurement of foreign currency
cash balances to U.S. Dollars. Changes in the fair value of
derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment are reported in current earnings as a
component of interest income and resulted in income of
$0.1 million in 2010, and a loss of $0.1 million in 2009.
There was no such effect in 2011.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Currency Hedg-
ing. The Company makes regular payments to its wholly-
owned subsidiary Blount Canada, for contract
manufacturing services performed by Blount Canada on
behalf of the Company. The Company is exposed to
changes in Canadian Dollar to U.S. Dollar exchange rates
from these transactions, which may adversely affect its
results of operations and financial position.

The Company manages a portion of Canadian Dollar
exchange rate exposures with derivative financial instru-
ments. These derivatives are zero-cost collar option
combinations consisting of a purchased call option to buy
Canadian Dollars and a written put option to sell Canadian
Dollars. Each pair of contracts constituting a collar has the
same maturity date in a monthly ladder extending out 12
months. Each month, the Company intends to extend the
ladder one more month, on a rolling basis, so that a 12
month rolling hedge is maintained. These instruments are
designated as cash flow hedges and are recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. The effective
portion of the gains or losses on these contracts due to
changes in fair value is initially recorded as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive loss and is sub-
sequently reclassified into cost of goods sold when the
contracts mature and the Company settles the hedged
payment to Blount Canada. These contracts are highly
effective in hedging the variability in future cash flows
attributable to changes in currency exchange rates.

As of December 31, 2011, the cumulative unrealized
pre-tax loss on these contracts included in other compre-
hensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheet was $0.5
million. As of December 31, 2010, the cumulative unreal-
ized pre-tax gain on these contracts included in other
comprehensive gain on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
was $0.6 million. Amounts recognized in cost of sales in
the Consolidated Statements of Income at the maturity of
the related Canadian Dollar derivative financial instru-
ments were as follows.

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Gain on Canadian Dollar
derivative financial instruments $ 788 $ 2,353 $ 902

Gains and losses on these Canadian Dollar derivative
financial instruments are offset in cost of sales by the
effects of currency exchange rate changes on the under-
lying transactions. Through December 31, 2011, the
Company has not recognized any amount from these con-
tracts in earnings due to ineffectiveness. The aggregate
notional amount of these Canadian Dollar contracts out-
standing was $37.5 million at December 31, 2011 and
$34.5 million at December 31, 2010.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Interest Rates. In the first
quarter of 2011, we entered into interest rate cap agree-
ments covering 35% of the outstanding principal on our
then-outstanding term loans A and B that capped the
maximum LIBOR used to determine the interest rate we
pay at 5.00% through February 28, 2013. During the third
quarter of 2011, following the Fourth Amendment and
Restatement of our senor credit facilities, we terminated
these interest rate cap contracts with a charge to expense of
$0.1 million. The Fourth Amendment and Restatement of
our senior credit facilities includes a similar requirement to
cover 35% of the outstanding principal on our term loan
with fixed or capped interest rates. In October 2011, we
entered into an interest rate cap agreement covering an
initial notional amount of $103.7 million of term loan
principal outstanding that caps the maximum interest rate
at 7.50%. This cap is designated as a cash flow hedge and
is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value. In October and November 2011, we also entered
into a series of interest rate swap contracts whereby the
interest rate we pay will be fixed at between 3.30% and
4.20% on $130.0 million of term loan principal for the
period of June 2013 through varying maturity dates
between December 2014 and August 2016.
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The fair values of derivatives held by the Company were:

(Amounts in thousands)

Carrying
Value of

Assets
(Liabilities) on
Balance Sheet

Assets
Measured at

Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets

Inputs
Level 1

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

Level 2

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
Level 3

December 31, 2011:
Interest rate hedge agreements $ (1,303) $ (1,303) $ – $ (1,303) $ –
Foreign currency hedge instruments (505) (505) – (505) –

December 31, 2010:
Foreign currency hedge instruments $ 636 $ 636 $ – $ 636 $ –

See Note 12 for a description of the framework for
measuring fair value and Levels 1, 2, and 3.

Derivative contracts outstanding at December 31, 2011
and 2010 were measured at fair value using models or
other market-accepted valuation methodologies derived
from observable market data. These quoted prices are
primarily industry-standard models that consider various
inputs, including currency rates, market interest rates, time
value, and volatility factors, as well as other relevant
economic measures.

In accordance with ASC 820, the Company includes
nonperformance risk in calculating fair value adjustments.
The impact of the credit risk adjustments for all out-
standing derivatives was immaterial to the fair value calcu-
lation at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

NOTE 21: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 30, 2010, we sold our indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary Gear Products to Tulsa Winch, Inc., an
operating unit of Dover Industrial Products, Inc., for net
cash proceeds of $24.8 million. Under terms of the stock
purchase agreement, the parties agreed to treat the stock
sale as if it were an asset sale for income tax purposes,
which resulted in an increase in income tax expense we
recognized on the sale. Gear Products results up to the date
of the sale are reported as discontinued operations for all
periods presented, and are summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Sales $ – $ 12,297 $ 15,060

Operating income $ – $ 1,031 $ 1,667
Gain on sale of subsidiary – 11,941 –

Income before income taxes – 12,972 1,667
Income tax provision – 7,174 619

Income from discontinued
operations $ – $ 5,798 $ 1,048

NOTE 22: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2011, the FASB issued new guidance on the
financial statement presentation of comprehensive income,
which eliminates the option of presenting other compre-
hensive income as a component of the Statement of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. The new guidance
requires that all non-owner changes to comprehensive
income be presented in either a single continuous state-
ment of comprehensive income or in two separate but
consecutive statements. In December 2011, the FASB
deferred some aspects of the June 2011 guidance that
relate to the presentation of reclassification adjust-
ments. We elected to adopt this new guidance early and
implemented it for the reporting period September 30,
2011 under the two-statement approach.

In September 2011, the FASB issued accounting guid-
ance on the testing of goodwill for impairment. The guid-
ance allows entities testing goodwill for impairment the
option of performing a qualitative assessment to determine
the likelihood of goodwill impairment and whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step impairment test cur-
rently required. This guidance is effective for annual and
interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2011. We elected to
adopt this new guidance early and implemented it in 2011.
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SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

The following tables set forth a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2011 and 2010.

2011 results were as follows:

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total 2011

(Amounts may not sum due to rounding)
Sales $ 180,874 $ 201,337 $ 212,904 $ 236,515 $ 831,630
Gross profit 60,048 64,188 65,560 66,013 255,809
Net income 15,622 13,752 10,805 9,502 49,682
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.32 $ 0.28 $ 0.22 $ 0.19 $ 1.02
Diluted 0.31 0.28 0.22 0.19 1.01

2010 results were as follows:

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total 2010

(Amounts may not sum due to rounding)
Sales $ 133,129 $ 144,788 $ 162,581 $ 170,982 $ 611,480
Gross profit 49,090 51,102 50,407 53,427 204,026
Net income 8,783 10,443 15,613 12,362 47,200
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.18 $ 0.22 $ 0.33 $ 0.26 $ 0.99
Diluted 0.18 0.22 0.32 0.25 0.97

Results in all four quarters of 2011 reflect the acquisition of KOX in March. Results for the third and fourth quarters of
2011 also include the acquisitions of PBL and Woods/TISCO. Acquisition accounting effects included in the above quar-
terly results totaled $2.1 million in the first quarter, $2.6 million in the second quarter, $4.2 million in the third quarter,
and $6.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2011. In addition, net income in the third quarter of 2011 reflects a pretax charge
of $3.9 million for the early extinguishment of debt.

Net income in the third quarter of 2010 includes a charge of $7.0 million related to the early extinguishment of debt. In
addition, the results for the third and fourth quarters of 2010 reflect the acquisition of SpeeCo on August 10, 2010.
Accordingly, SpeeCo’s results are included for the third and fourth quarters, including acquisition accounting effects of
$1.6 million and $1.8 million respectively. The third quarter of 2010 also reflects the $5.3 million after tax gain on the sale
of Gear Products on September 30, 2010.
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PART III

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are
designed with the objective of providing reasonable assur-
ance that information required to be disclosed in the
reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summar-
ized, and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accu-
mulated and communicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our dis-
closure controls and procedures, our management recog-
nizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assur-
ance of achieving the desired control objectives, and our
management is required to apply their judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls
and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation was performed on the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered
by this annual report. Based on that evaluation, our manage-
ment, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in our internal control over finan-

cial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Certifications

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act have been filed as Exhibits 31.1 and
31.2 to this report.

Management’s report on internal control over financial
reporting and the audit report of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP are included in Item 8 of this Report.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE
REGISTRANT

See the “Election of Directors” and “Executive Officers”
sections of our Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which sections are incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

See the “Compensation of Directors”, Compensation
Discussion and Analysis”, “Executive Compensation”, and
“Employment Contracts” sections of our Proxy Statement
for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which sec-
tions are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

See the “Principal Stockholders” and “Equity Compensa-
tion Plan Information” sections of our Proxy Statement for
the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which sections
are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

See the “Election of Directors”, “The Board and Its
Committees”, “Audit Committee Disclosure”, “Audit
Committee Report”, and “Certain Transactions and Other
Matters” sections of our Proxy Statement for the 2012
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which section is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

See the “Ratify the Appointment of Independent Regis-
tered Public Accounting Firm” section of our Proxy
Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
which section is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page
Reference

(A) Certain documents filed as part of Form 10-K

(1) Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 . . . . . . . . 41

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010, and 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43

Supplementary Data . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the information is presented in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(B) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

*3(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Blount International, Inc. (included as Exhibit A to the Agreement and
Plan of Merger and Recapitalization which is Exhibit 2.1) filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which
forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed by Blount International, Inc. on July 15, 1999
(Reg. No. 333-82973).

*3(b) By-laws of Blount International, Inc. filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed by Blount International, Inc. on
January 25, 2011 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*4(a) Form of Stock Certificate of New Blount Common Stock filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which
forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed by Blount International, Inc. on July 15, 1999
(Reg. No. 333-82973).

*4(b) Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 13, 2011, by and among Blount Inc., a
Delaware corporation, Omark Properties, Inc., an Oregon corporation, Windsor Forestry Tools LLC, the other
Credit Parties signatory thereto; General Electric Capital Corporation, in its capacity as Agent for the Lenders;
and the other Lenders party thereto filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report of Blount International, Inc. on
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(a) Supplemental Retirement and Disability Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(e) to the Annual
Report of Blount, Inc., on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File
No. 1-7002).

*10(b) Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Annual Report of
Blount, Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-7002).

*10(c) Blount International, Inc. 2011 Executive Management Annual Incentive Plan, effective as of January 1, 2011,
filed as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement of Blount, International, Inc. for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held May 26, 2011 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
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*10(d) Blount, Inc. Executive Benefit Plans Trust Agreement and Amendment to and Assumption of Blount, Inc.
Executive Benefit Plans Trust filed as Exhibits 10(x)(i) and 10(x)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(e) Blount, Inc. Benefits Protection Trust Agreement and Amendment To And Assumption of Blount, Inc. Benefits
Protection Trust filed as Exhibits 10(y)(i) and 10(y)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc. on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(f) The Blount Deferred Compensation Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(g) Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, effective as of February 15, 2006, filed as Exhibit B to
the Proxy Statement of Blount, International, Inc. for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held April 25, 2006
(Commission File No. 001-11549), and the Amendment to the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive
Plan dated February 23, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 file by Blount
International, Inc., which became effective on March 7, 2008 (Reg. No. 333-149584).

**10(h) Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Andrew W. York dated as of
February 13, 2012.

*10(i) Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Joshua L. Collins dated September 28,
2009, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed by Blount International, Inc. on October 1, 2009 (Commission
File No. 001-11549).

*10(j) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Richard H.
Irving, III, dated as of January 1, 2011 filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc.
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(k) Consulting Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Russell L. German, dated as of July 2,
2010 filed as Exhibit 10(k) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(l) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Calvin E.
Jenness dated as of December 30, 2010 filed as Exhibit 10(l) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc.
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(m) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Kenneth Owen
Saito dated as of December 30, 2010 filed as Exhibit 10(m) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc.
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(n) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and James Lee
VanderZanden dated as of December 30, 2010 filed as Exhibit 10(n) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(o) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and Cyrille Benoit
Michel dated as of December 30, 2010 filed as Exhibit 10(o) to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc.
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*10(p) Employment Agreement by and between Blount International, Inc. and David A. Willmott dated December 14,
2009, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 (Commission File
No. 001-11549).

*10(q) Stock Purchase Agreement by and between Blount, Inc. and SpeeCo Companies L.L.C. dated as of August 9,
2010, filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed by Blount International, Inc. on August 11, 2010 (Commission
File No. 001-11549).

*10(r) Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Tulsa Winch, Inc., Blount, Inc. and Dover Industrial Products, Inc.
dated as of September 30, 2010, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010
(Commission File No. 001-11549).
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*10(s) Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 15, 2011, by and among SP Companies, Inc., Grenade LLC,
Blount, Inc., and GenWoods HoldCo, LLC, filed as Exhibit 99.4 to Form 8-K/A filed by Blount International,
Inc. on November 7, 2011 (Commission File No. 001-11549).

*14 Code of Ethics for Covered Officers as approved by Audit Committee on February 2, 2004, filed as Exhibit 14
to the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
(Commission File No. 001-11549).

21 A list of the significant subsidiaries of Blount International, Inc. included herein on page 75

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm included herein on page 75

31.1 Certifications pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Joshua L. Collins, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer included herein on page 76

31.2 Certifications pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer included herein on page 77

32.1 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Joshua L. Collins, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer included herein on page 78

32.2 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer included herein on page 79

* Incorporated by reference

.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the duly authorized undersigned.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Registrant

Dated: March 13, 2012

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness /s/ Mark V. Allred

Calvin E. Jenness Mark V. Allred
Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report is signed below by the following per-
sons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: March 13, 2012

/s/ Robert E. Beasley, Jr.

Robert E. Beasley, Jr.

Director

/s/ Ronald Cami

Ronald Cami

Director

/s/ Andrew C. Clarke

Andrew C. Clarke

Director

/s/ Joshua L. Collins

Joshua L. Collins

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Director

/s/ Thomas J. Fruechtel

Thomas J. Fruechtel

Director

/s/ E. Daniel James

E. Daniel James

Director

/s/ Harold E. Layman

Harold E. Layman

Director
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SCHEDULE II

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Blount International, Inc. And Subsidiaries
(Amounts in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E

Additions

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charged
(Credited)

to Cost and
Expenses

Business
Acquisitions

(Dispositions), Net
(Deductions)

Recoveries

Balance at
End of
Period

Year Ended December 31, 2011:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable $1,490 $ 608 $1,097 $ (53) $3,142
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 2,314 (1,711) – – 603

Year Ended December 31, 2010:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 3,339 120 169 (2,138) 1,490
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 2,366 (52) – – 2,314

Year Ended December 31, 2009:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 3,800 1,052 – (1,513) 3,339
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 2,348 18 – – 2,366
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

At December 31, 2011, consolidated, directly or indirectly, wholly-owned Significant Subsidiaries of Blount Interna-
tional, Inc. were deemed as follows:

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY PLACE OF INCORPORATION/ORGANIZATION

BI Holdings, C.V. Netherlands
Blount, Inc. Delaware
Blount Canada Ltd. Canada
Blount Europe, S.A. Belgium
Blount Holdings Ltd. Canada
Blount Industrial Ltda. Brazil
Blount Industries Company Ltd. China
Blount Netherlands B.V. Netherlands
Finalame SA France
KOX GmbH Germany
PBL SAS France
SP Companies, Inc. Delaware
SpeeCo, Inc. Delaware
Woods Equipment Company Delaware

The names of certain subsidiaries have been omitted because when considered in the aggregate or as a single subsidiary
they would not constitute a “Significant Subsidiary” as of December 31, 2011.

EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-168689) and

Form S-8 (No. 333-149584) of Blount International, Inc. of our report dated March 13, 2012 relating to the financial
statements, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears
in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 13, 2012
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Joshua L. Collins, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011 of Blount Interna-
tional, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure con-
trols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finan-
cial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial report-
ing to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finan-
cial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over finan-
cial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2012

/s/ Joshua L. Collins
Joshua L. Collins

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Calvin E. Jenness, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011 of Blount Interna-
tional, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure con-
trols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finan-
cial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial report-
ing to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finan-
cial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over finan-
cial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2012

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness
Calvin E. Jenness

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Joshua L.
Collins, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the report.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Blount International, Inc. and
will be retained by Blount International, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

Date: March 13, 2012

/s/ Joshua L. Collins
Joshua L. Collins

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Blount International, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Calvin E.
Jenness, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the report.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Blount International, Inc. and
will be retained by Blount International, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.

Date: March 13, 2012

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness
Calvin E. Jenness

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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g70n09-4.0

The graph below matches the cumulative 5-year total return of holders of Blount International, Inc.’s common stock
with the cumulative total returns of the NYSE Composite index, and two customized peer groups of companies that
includes the old peer group of eight companies, which are Actuant, AGCO Corp., Briggs & Stratton Corp., Husqvarna
AB, Kennametal Inc., Makita Corp., Snap-On Inc., and The Toro Company; and another new peer group of nine compa-
nies which are Actuant, AGCO Corp., Alamo Group Inc., Briggs & Stratton Corp., Husqvarna AB, Kennametal Inc.,
Makita Corp., Snap-On Inc., and The Toro Company. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in the Compa-
ny’s common stock, in each peer group, and the index (including reinvestment of dividends) was $100 on 12/31/2006 and
tracks it through 12/31/2011.
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The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Blount International, Inc. 100.00 91.47 70.44 75.05 117.12 107.91
NYSE Composite 100.00 112.54 67.68 87.01 98.87 95.14
Old Peer Group 100.00 132.08 71.44 95.72 126.55 102.79
New Peer Group 100.00 131.51 71.39 95.51 126.58 103.07
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   SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM | BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Joshua L. Collins
Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

David A. Willmott
President
Chief Operating Officer

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President 
Chief Financial Officer

Cyrille B. Michel
Senior Vice President
European Operations 

Chad E. Paulson
Vice President 
General Counsel & Secretary

Kenneth O. Saito
Senior Vice President
Supply Chain & Manufacturing Operations 

Paul A. Valas
President 
Farm, Ranch & Agriculture

Andrew W. York
Senior Vice President 
Global Sales & Marketing
Forestry, Lawn & Garden

SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

Left to Right: Cyrille Michel, David Willmott, Chad Paulson, Josh Collins, Andy York, Ken Saito, Cal Jenness, Paul Valas



BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC. | OTHER CORPORATE MANAGEMENT & BOARD OF DIRECTORS   

| N - Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 
| A - Audit Committee 
| C - Compensation Committee
| * - Denotes Committee Chair

Robert E. Beasley, Jr. | A, N *

Retired Chief Executive Officer, 
The Hunter Fan Company 
Director since 2010

Ronald Cami
Partner & General Counsel, 
TPG Capital
Director since 2010

Andrew C. Clarke | A *, N 
President & Chief Executive Officer,
Panther Expedited Services, Inc.
Director since 2010
 

Joshua L. Collins
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer, 
Blount International, Inc. 
Director since 2005

Nelda J. Connors
Founder & Chairman,  
Pine Grove Holdings, LLC 
Director since 2012

Thomas J. Fruechtel | A, C 

Retired President &  
Chief Executive Officer,  
Leupold & Stevens, Inc. 
Director since 2003
 
 

E. Daniel James | C, N

Founding Partner &  
Head of North America,
Trilantic Capital Management LLC 
Director since 1999 

Harold E. Layman | C *

Retired President &  
Chief Executive Officer, 
Blount International, Inc. 
Director since 1999

David A. Willmott
President &  
Chief Operating Officer, 
Blount International, Inc. 
Director since 2012

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

William C. Alford
Vice President
Continuous Improvement  

Mark V. Allred
Vice President
Corporate Controller 

Barry J. Brunetto
Vice President
Information Systems 

Matthew D. Clark
Vice President
Finance & Corporate Development

Wendy J. Gilligan
Treasurer 

Jeffrey S. Moore
Vice President
Manufacturing Development 

David K. Parrish
Vice President
Supply Chain

OTHER CORPORATE MANAGEMENT



Blount’s efforts to continually reduce our 
environmental impact support our mission to 
create long-term value for our shareholders. 
We believe that by reducing waste, 

conserving natural resources, and fulfilling our regulatory 
commitments, we enhance our continuing profitability.    

•	 Reduced operating costs
•	 Improved capital utilization
•	 Mitigation of environmental liabilities
•	 Reduced regulatory exposure 
•	 Preservation of corporate reputation and  

brand image 

For our efforts, Blount has been recognized as a leader in 
environmental performance and energy conservation.
Blount was awarded an EPA Outstanding Partner award 
for our success in reducing waste under the National 
Partnership for Environmental Priorities program.

Blount’s two facilities in Portland, Oregon and its facility in 
Kansas City, Missouri each received an EPA Energy Star award 
for reducing energy usage by more than 10% in one year.

As we continue our growth, Blount is dedicated to 
continuing improvement in our environmental performance 
to the benefit of our shareholders, customers, employees, 
and communities.

Stockholders with questions about their stock holdings 
are invited to call 877.498.8865 between 8am and 7pm 
Eastern Time, Monday through Friday. Internet account 
access is available at www.computershare.com. 

Inquiries for general information about Blount 
International, Inc., including stock records or address 
changes, should be directed to Chad E. Paulson, Vice 
President, General Counsel and Secretary, at our Corporate 
Office. Security analysts, portfolio managers, and  
others seeking financial information should contact  
David M. Dugan, Director, Corporate Communications and 
Investor Relations, at the Corporate Office.

Additional information is available at www.blount.com.

Year End
The Company’s fiscal year ends December 31.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
The 2012 Annual Meeting will be held at Sheraton 
New York Hotel & Towers, 811 7th Ave., New York, NY 
on May 24, 2012 at 10:00 AM EDT.

A Proxy Statement and Notice of Annual Meeting was 
mailed to stockholders of record as of April 24, 2012.  
 

 

Blount International, Inc. Common Stock
The common stock is traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the ticker symbol “BLT”. Blount 
International, Inc. is incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Delaware.

Registrar & Transfer Agent
Computershare Investor Services 
PO Box 43078, Providence, RI 02940-3078 
p: 781.575.2879 | 877.498.8865

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Portland, OR 

Blount Corporate Office
4909 SE International Way
Portland, OR 97222-4679 
p: 503.653.8881 | f: 503.653.4201

Forward-Looking Statements
Forward-looking statements in this report, as defined by 
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, are 
based upon available information and upon assumptions 
that the Company believes are reasonable; however, these 
forward-looking statements involve certain risks and 
uncertainties and may not be indicative of actual results 
that the Company may achieve in the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUCCESS

OTHER INFORMATION

  ENVIRONMENTAL SUCCESS & OTHER INFORMATION | BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.



4909 SE International Way 

Portland, Oregon 97222-4679 

www.blount.com




